
 
BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

Regular Meeting AGENDA South BRANCH 
APRIL 13, 2011 6:00 PM 1901 Russell Street 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704   (510) 981‐6195   (510) 548‐1240 (TDD)   (510) 981‐6111 fax   BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

The Board of Library Trustees may act on any item on this agenda. 

I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

A. Call to Order 

B. Public Comments (6:00 – 6:30 PM) 
(Proposed 30‐minute time limit, with speakers allowed 3 minutes each) 

C. Report from library employees and unions, discussion of staff issues 
Comments / responses to reports and issues addressed in packet. 

D. Report from Board of Library Trustees  

E. Approval of Agenda 

II. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Presentation on Proposed FY2012 ‐ FY2013 Biennial Budget and Proposed Budget Balancing Measures 

III. CONSENT CALENDAR 

The Board will consider removal and addition of items to the Consent Calendar prior to voting on the Consent 
Calendar. All items remaining on the Consent Calendar will be approved in one motion. 

A. Approve minutes of March 9, 2011 Regular Meeting 
Recommendation: Approve the minutes of the March 9, 2011 regular meeting of the Board of Library Trustees. 

B. Approve minutes of March 17, 2011 Special Meeting 
Recommendation: Approve the minutes of the March 17, 2011 special meeting of the Board of Library Trustees. 

C. Accept and Appropriate Gift Funds for FY2011 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution to authorize the Director of Library Services to accept and appropriate to FY 
2011 the gift of $500 from the Friends of the Berkeley Public Library, the gift of $100,000 from the Foundation  and 
to accept the private party gift donation of $200. 

D. Contract Amendment: Ricoh Business Solutions 
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution authorizing the Director of Library Services to amend the value of contract no. 
7605 with Ricoh Business Solutions for the provision of equipment leasing and maintenance services for public‐use 
copiers at the Central Library and branch libraries by an incremental amount of $15,000 for a total contract not‐to‐
exceed amount of $90,000. 

E. Circulation Policy 
Recommendation: Adopt the resolution approving the Policy on Use of Library Collections by Library Staff for the 
Berkeley Public Library. 

F. Revision of Library Aide and Library Assistant Classifications to accurately reflect the scope of duties and creation 
of a new classification Library Page to address operational needs of the library.  
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution approving and recommending to the Personnel Board that it revise the Library 
Aide and Library Assistant Classifications, which is a Service Employees International Union (SEIU), Local 1021, 
Community Services and PTRLA Association, to accurately reflect the scope of duties and to create a new 
classification of Library Page to meet library needs. 

IV. TRUSTEE INTERVIEWS (Starting at 7:30) 

A. Interviews for Upcoming Trustee Vacancies on the Board of Library Trustees  
Trustees will conduct interviews during this meeting of candidates for the two upcoming vacancies on the Board of 
Library Trustees in order for the Trustees to make a recommendation to the City Council. Candidate applications will 
be available for review by the public at the meeting. 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY   BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA  
April 13, 2011  Page 2 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704   (510) 981‐6195   (510) 548‐1240 (TDD)   (510) 981‐6111 fax   BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

V. ACTION CALENDAR 

A. Contract: BHM Construction for Renovation and Construction of the North Branch Library   
Recommendation: Adopt a resolution to recommend City Council adopt a resolution: 1) Approving plans and 
specifications for the Berkeley Public Library North Branch Improvement Project; 2) Accepting the bid of BHM; and 3) 
Authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract and any extensions or change orders until completion of the 
project in an amount not to exceed $4,760,000.  

B. Discussion and recommendation to City Council for trustee appointments effective May 14, 2011 
Recommendation: Discussion of candidates interviewed, vote by the Board on which two to recommend, and direct 
staff to send names of recommended candidates to the City Council for appointment.  

VI. INFORMATION REPORTS 

A. Update on the Branch Bond Program  
Discussion of staff report on status of implementation of the Measure FF branch improvement program, to include 
update on Request for Proposals, schedule, and budget. 

B. April 2011 Monthly Report from Library Director  
i. Library Development 
ii. Professional Activities 
iii. Programs, Services and Collections 
iv. Personnel 

C. Library events: Calendar of events and press releases for various Library programs are posted at 
http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org 

VII. AGENDA BUILDING 

The next meeting will be a Regular Meeting held at 6:30 PM on Wednesday, May 11, 2011 at the Central Branch Library, 
2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley. 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * *  
Written materials may be viewed  in advance of the meeting at the Central Library Reference Desk (2090 Kittredge Street), or 
any of the branches, during regular library hours. 

Wheelchair accessible. To  request a  sign  language  interpreter,  real‐time  captioning, materials  in 
large print or Braille, or other accommodations for this event, please call (510) 981‐6107 (voice) or 
(510) 548‐1240 (TTY); at least three working days will help ensure availability.    

Please refrain from wearing scented products to public programs. 

I hereby certify that the agenda for this regular meeting of the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley was posted in 
the display cases located at 2134 Martin Luther King, Jr. Way and in front of the Central Public Library at 2090 Kittredge Street, 
as well as on the Berkeley Public Library’s website on April 6, 2011. 

 
  //s//  __________________________________________________  
  Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
  Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 

For further information, please call (510) 981‐6195. 

COMMUNICATIONS 
Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public record and will become part of the City’s electronic 
records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: e‐mail addresses, names, addresses, and other contact 
information are not required, but if included in any communication to a City board, commission or committee, will become 
part of the public record. If you do not want your e‐mail address or any other contact information to be made public, you may 
deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service or in person to the secretary of the relevant board, commission or committee. If 
you  do  not want  your  contact  information  included  in  the  public  record,  please  do  not  include  that  information  in  your 
communication. Please contact the secretary to the relevant board, commission or committee for further information. 
 

None. 



 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 

 
PRESENTATION 
April 13, 2011  

TO: Board of Library Trustees 

FROM: Dennis Dang, Administrative Services Manager 
SUBJECT: Proposed Biennial Budget FY 2012 and FY 2013 – All Library Funds 

INTRODUCTION 

This presentation report details a proposed Biennial Budget for all Library Funds for FY 2012 with 
revenue of $15,694,096 and expenditures of $27,405,201, and for FY 2013 with revenue of 
$15,903,199 and expenditures of $17,893,578.  The Biennial Budget as proposed this evening is 
subject to revision and adjustment either as specifically requested or as offered by direction of the 
board up to the time of final approval by the board. 

FISCAL IMPACT OF RECOMMENDATION 

The total proposed expenditure budgets for all funding sources along with the recommendations 
contained herein present a budget for this biennial period of fiscal years 2012 and 2013.  The 
implications of the proposed budgets on the various fund balances are as follows: 

Library Tax Fund 

Using the most recent estimates available and employing guidance provided by the City the Library 
Tax Fund is projected to attain revenues of $14,525,722 in FY 2012, and $14,739,325 the following 
fiscal year.  As currently configured, the portion of revenues generated by the library tax is 
estimated to increase 1.5% year-over-year to $14,240,222 in FY 2012 and to $14,453,825 in FY 
2013.  The actual library tax rate options as determined by either the San Francisco Bay Area 
Consumer Price Index or the CA Personal Income Growth Factor is released in mid-May; upon 
their release the current 1.5% estimated rate will be supplanted by the selected index rate for FY 
2012.  The remainder of receipts, primarily attributable to fines and fees, is forecasted in both fiscal 
years at $285,500.  Anticipated division expenditure budgets total $14,929,280 in FY12 and 
$15,139,070 in FY13, a prior period increase of 1.6% and 1.4%, respectively.  Operating deficits, 
to be offset by monies in the Fund’s balance, are expected in both fiscal years.  Projected Fund 
deficits are $403,558 in FY12 and $399,745 in FY13. 

In comparison, modifying an earlier analysis of the Baseline Biennial Budget with the most recent 
revenue estimates for fiscal years 2012 and 2013 one can see that if the Library elects not to 
pursue any operational or programmatic changes the Fund’s structural deficit would approach $1M 
in both FY12 and FY13; and consume the entire Fund’s balance sometime in FY13, plunging the 
Fund into deficit by $801,000 at fiscal year-end. 

II Presentation, Item A



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
PRESENTATION 
FY12 and FY13 Proposed Budget    Page 2 

 
 

 FY11 Projected FY12 Projected FY13 Projected 

Revenue $14,340,275 14,525,722 $14,739,325 

Expenses $14,690,618 $15,522,939 $15,654,648 

Surplus/(Shortfall) ($350,343) ($997,217) ($915,323) 

Begin Bank Balance $1,461,883 $1,111,540 $114,323 

Ending Bank Balance 1,111,540 $114,323 ($801,000) 

Significant events impacting the budget during this biennial period include a relatively fluid 
economic environment both nationally and in the state.  In particular, the state budget remains in 
flux as uncertainty remains as to how the state will address a $26 billion funding gap.  Due to this 
situation CA state library funding is at risk of partial, or even possibly, total elimination; and 
although affecting primarily other Library fund accounts, any significant funding loss may have 
material residual impacts on the Library Tax Fund.  Additionally, the City is expected to undertake 
and complete by late September 2011 replacement of the existing NEC PBX phone system with a 
VoIP based system.  The Library will be responsible for its allocated share of the overall project 
costs which at this time is undetermined but approximated at $172,500 and split equally between 
both FY 2012 and FY2013.  The installation of the Bibliotheca self-check system begun in FY 2011 
continues into fiscal years 2012 and 2013 with contracted costs of $127,896 in FY 2012 and 
$38,892 the following fiscal year.  These costs are partially offset by reductions of $20,000 in FY 
2012 and $12,000 in FY 2013 for RFID tags. Millennium system costs are expected to increase 
$51,500 from the biennial baseline for each year due to the Library maintaining its present 
integrated library system and purchasing additional modules.  And, the Library, due to its 
prominence as a major downtown Berkeley institution will be a participant in the new downtown 
Property-based Business Improvement District (PBID) with an FY 2012 assessment of $14,527 
followed by a projected $15,000 in FY 2013. 

In an effort to alleviate a large portion of the structural deficit the Biennial Budget includes 
substantial personnel FTE modifications and shifts to the reporting structure among divisional 
units. However, absent are any cost of living adjustments effective fiscal year 2014 for which 
negotiations are yet to be opened.  For both years of the budget the salary savings rate, as 
reflected by the practice of restraining or not backfilling vacant or vacated positions, is set at 1.5%, 
yielding personnel costs savings of $182,578 in FY 2012 and $186,193 in FY 2013. This increase 
is in contrast to a current FY 2011 rate of 1.0%; and is in part, in response to concern that 
decreasing FTEs make it more difficult to maintain service levels.   

Personnel 

FY 2012 cost of living adjustments are scheduled to occur in 2.0% increments on June 26, 2011 
and again on December 25, 2011; FY 2013 remains to be negotiated.  Imputed rises in medical 
costs are 12.75% in the first year, followed by 15.0% in FY 2013; dental costs are configured for a 
10.0% increase in both years.  CalPERS announced rates are 19.0% in FY 2012, and 19.9% in FY 
2013.  There are no estimated personnel cost savings due to construction closure of the North and 
Claremont branches as branch personnel will be reassigned throughout the library system.  

Proposed FY2012 and FY 2013 adjustments to FTE: 
           FTE  FY 2012  FY 2013  Division 
• Elimination of Library Services Manager   (1.00) ($137,575) ($140,226) Youth Svcs 
• ½ Scale-back of Youth Enrollee Intern Program  (.80)  ($11,240)  ($11,295)  Various 
• Discontinuation of Paid Intern Program   (0.515)  ($9,187)  ($9,187)  Various 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
PRESENTATION 
FY12 and FY13 Proposed Budget    Page 3 

 
• Elimination of Senior Librarian     (1.00) ($131,515) ($134,099) Youth Svcs 
• Elimination of Librarian I      (0.80) ($82,992)  ($83,917)   Cntrl Childrens 
• Addition of Librarian II (upgrade from Librarian I)  1.00   $143,297   $136,644  Cntrl Childrens 
• Elimination of Library Specialist II    (0.50) ($52,862)  ($53,386)  Claremont 
• Elimination of Special Services Coordinator   (1.00) ($143,297) ($146,968)  Outreach 
• Elimination of Library Assistant     (0.60) ($53,711)  ($54,966)  Tech Svcs  
• Elimination of Library Aide      (0.375) ($16,759)  ($16,759)  Tech Svcs  
• Elimination of (1 qty) Tool Lending Specialist  (0.50) ($52,125)  ($53,819)  Tool 
• Upgrade of (3 qty) Tool Lending Specialist   0.475 $47,868  $48,338  Tool 

(5.615) ($500,098) ($519,640) BPL 

The elimination of one Library Services Manager position presents the opportunity to shift 
operations and programs among several divisions and consequently accrue significant savings in 
personnel costs without large impacts on continuing services.  Under the proposed scenario 
Library Information Technology, Technical Services, Neighborhood Services, Central Library Adult 
Services, and Youth Services are restructured to create three internal groupings: 
Technology/Collection Support Services, Adult/Teen Services/Collection Development, and 
Neighborhood/Children’s Services.  The implementation of this strategy allows the Library to retain 
solid leadership, maintain managerial and administrative constancy, and achieve a sizable 
recurring reduction to the structural deficit. 

• Technology and Collection Support Services divisions: The current Library Information 
Technology is aligned with the existing Technical Services division managed by the Library 
Information Systems Administrator.  Two long-term vacancies in Technical Services, a 
vacant 0.6 FTE Library Assistant position and a vacant 0.375 FTE Library Aide position, are 
eliminated with minimal impacts. The duties formerly assigned to these positions have 
already been absorbed by other staff. 

• Adult and Teen Services divisions: This structure brings together Central Library Reference, 
Art and Music, and oversight of Collection Development and the system-wide Teen 
Services program by the Library Services Manager in charge of Adult and Teen Services.  
The reduction of a 1.0 FTE Senior Librarian teen specialist will impact the level of 
programming and outreach activities achievable.  Supervision of the Art and Music staff is 
absorbed by Central Reference’s Supervising Librarian. To mitigate this workload impact, 
two 0.375 FTE Library Aides and two 0.5 FTE Library Aides are reassigned from Art and 
Music to the Circulation Services division. 

• Neighborhood and Children’s Services divisions: Children’s Services becomes the 
responsibility of the Neighborhood Services Manager, who continues as supervisor of the 
four Branch Library supervisors and of the Berkeley READS literacy program. The renamed 
Neighborhood and Children’s Services Manager will serve as the lead employee providing 
managerial direction for Children’s Services system-wide. 

• To compensate for the absence of a management position devoted solely to a single 
service (Youth Services), the vacant Supervising Librarian position currently assigned to Art 
and Music is assigned to oversee Children’s Services at the Central Library. This position 
will provide valuable support to ongoing services on the 4th floor.  

• Additionally, a vacant 0.8 FTE Librarian I position in Central Children’s is proposed for 
upgrade to a full time 1.0 FTE Librarian II resulting in no loss to staff FTE devoted to 
Children’s Services; instead there would be increases in front-line Librarian time at the 
Central Children’s Room, an addition of a Supervising Librarian, and the retention of 
management oversight and support.  



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
PRESENTATION 
FY12 and FY13 Proposed Budget    Page 4 

 
• Special Services Coordinator: On elimination of this position much of the responsibility for 

Library outreach and press relations activities will shift to administrative and management 
personnel.  Program publicity is proposed to be handled by the originating work unit and 
ADA referrals will be directed to the Deputy Director.  Staff affected by this 1.0 FTE position 
reduction will be reassigned to an open position. 

• Neighborhood Services: One 0.5 FTE Library Specialist II will be eliminated from the 
Claremont Branch Library, with affected staff reassigned to an existing vacancy at an 
alternate location. Duties performed by this elimination are to be absorbed by remaining 
Claremont Branch staff.   

• Tool Lending Library: Although one 0.5 FTE Tool Lending Specialist is proposed to be 
eliminated, the remaining three Tool Lending Specialists – one 0.625 FTE and two 0.5 FTE 
Tool Lending Specialists – are recommended for upgrade to one 0.675 FTE and two 0.7 
FTE positions.  These changes absorb the duties of the position to be eliminated and 
permits increased scheduling flexibility. 

Non-Personnel 

Non-personnel costs are expected to increase in fiscal years 2012 to $2,919,009 and 2013 to 
$2,890,958 primarily due to contract costs and obligatory participation fees; this despite several 
planned cost cutting initiatives.  

Major summary changes to non-personnel costs are as follows: 
              FY 2012 FY 2013 Type 
• Downtown Property-based Business Improvement District (PBID) $14,527 $15,000 Participatory 
• Bay Area Library Information System  (consortium membership)  $8,500 $11,000 Participatory 
• Replacement to a VoIP Telephone System  (CoB)    $86,250 $86,250 Participatory 
• Self-Check System Replacement (ongoing)      $127,896 $38,892 Contractual 
• Circulation and Cataloguing System (Innovative: Millennium)  $51,500 $51,500 Contractual 
• Reduction of Cellphone Service Lines (Blackberries 5 qty.)   ($3,000) ($3,000) Initiative 
• Reduction of Postage          ($10,000) ($10,000) Initiative 
• Reduction of Office Supplies at 5%       ($1,270) ($1,370) Initiative 
• Vendor Change to Sky River from OCLC      ($14,600) ($14,600) Initiative 
• Reduction of purchased Tags        ($20,000) ($12,000) Initiative 

Savings of $49,720 due to branch closures is estimated for FY 2012 only; and as previously 
mentioned do not involve personnel costs savings due to staff reassignment. 

Other Funds 

The five-year projection table for Other Funds is made up of an aggregation of the Direct and Inter-
library Loan Fund (302), the Grants Fund (304), and the Public Library Fund (305).  These three 
Funds primarily receive revenue originating from the California State Library.  The Direct and Inter-
library Loan Fund receipts, supported by the California Library Services Act (CLSA), are calculated 
quarterly paid amounts derived from the difference between the unit counts of library materials 
loaned by BPL to other libraries’ residents, such that the greater count of units loaned versus 
borrowed maximizes the payout received; while the Grants Fund receives the bulk of its monies 
from the State Library’s California Library Literacy Services (CLLS) program and funds much of the 
Berkeley READS literacy program, and to a much lesser extent receives program funds from 
parties other than the State Library.  Lastly, the Public Library Fund (PLF) is funded by an annual 
allocation from the State Library based on a per capita calculation and share of population. 

These three Funds are likely to see a drop in their CA State Library support due to budget 
cutbacks in the state budget.  In a late March budget announcement state support for libraries are 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
PRESENTATION 
FY12 and FY13 Proposed Budget    Page 5 

 
proposed for reductions as follows: a decrease of 34% to CLSA, a drop of 20% to the CLLS 
program, and a substantial 77% reduction to the PLF.  The following table translates these 
proposed percentage changes to BPL’s FY 2011 receipts to estimate program revenues in FY12 
and FY13.  As depicted, these proposed reductions would reduce BPL’s overall state-sourced 
revenue almost 40% from FY 2011. 

Source FY12 % Change FY11 FY12 / FY13 

CLSA (BPL Fund 302) -34.1% $70,000 estimated $46,124

CLLS (BPL Fund 304) -19.6% $46,808 actual $37,650

PLF (BPL Fund 305) -76.7% $36,982 actual $8,600

The Direct and Inter-library Loan Fund (302) having begun fiscal year 2011 with a surplus balance 
of $142,696 is running a favorable balance.  It is likely that at the end of this fiscal year the Fund’s 
balance will increase.  The biennial period forecasts that during both years, expenditures will 
moderately exceed revenues in light of anticipated reductions to state support and assuming no 
material changes to programs charged out of this Fund – primarily the direct loan program and 
public-use copier service. 

The Grants Fund (304) is the main funding support for the Berkeley READS Literacy Program; and 
a reduction of almost 20% to CLLS support would have noticeable impact to the program’s budget.  
However, the program’s permanent staff positions totaling 2.5 FTE would remain unchanged due 
to their being funded through the Library Tax Fund.  Nonetheless, in anticipation of a cut to 
revenues, the instructor program is being restructured, including but not limited to reducing the 
number of hours and weeks instructors will be scheduled.  Additionally, permanent staff would 
absorb more tasks typically assigned to instructors, such as tutor training and computer lab 
instruction.  The program will utilize its volunteer pool to assist with group learning in addition to 
one-on-one literacy instruction and continue to solicit donations and grants, e.g. from BALIS and 
the Friends of the Library, to supplement its core services.  Berkeley READS is committed to 
maintaining its outstanding reputation for service quality as it navigates through a climate of fiscal 
uncertainty. 

The Public Library Foundation Fund (305) is not targeted for any program support at this time. 

Gifts Fund 

To date, the balance of Gifts Fund that is restricted-use is comprised of the Max Delaware Trust at 
$17,171 and the Alice Meyer Trust at $235,526; the remaining portion of the Fund is largely 
unrestricted.  In FY12 remaining monies in the Max Delaware Trust are expected to be fully 
expended to purchase early literacy computer stations replacement equipment.  For the Alice 
Meyer Trust, the anticipated expenditures in the budget are $50,000 in fiscal year 2012 for 
children’s books and audio collections, and $40,000 allocated the following fiscal year for opening-
day children’s collections at the South and West branches.  Additionally, the Biennial Budget 
includes a placeholder of $50,000 each year for Friends of the Library gift support that is 
traditionally targeted to specific pre-approved programs – although, the Library has submitted to 
the Friends a request of $88,554 for FY 2012. 

Measure FF Fund 

All revenues from the bond measure sales have been completed and received as of August 2010.  
Any additional revenues to the Fund would be investment interest. 

Fiscal years 2012 and 2013 are expected to see all four branch libraries undergoing major 
construction activities.  It is anticipated that the North and Claremont branches will be completed 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
PRESENTATION 
FY12 and FY13 Proposed Budget    Page 6 

 
prior to the conclusion of FY 2012 and consequently the bulk of expenditures for these two projects 
will have occurred in FY 2011.  The South and West branches are projected to finish a year later 
and similarly their construction costs constitute much of the FY 2012 expenditure budget of 
$11,250,000. 

Library Foundation – FF&E Fund 

The FF&E Fund is poised for significant activity commencing in FY12 with the anticipated 
completion of major construction at the North and Claremont branches followed by South and West 
branches the year after.  Annual revenue receipts and expenditures are projected at $1,000,000 
each year during this biennial period. 

CURRENT SITUATION 

Budget Priorities 

At the January 12, 2011 Board of Library Trustees meeting, the Trustees adopted the following 
budget priorities to serve as guideposts for the development of fiscal years 2012 and 2013 biennial 
budget. 

• Confirm stability of operating budget and plan for future operational needs – to include 
establishing / maintaining a balanced budget 

• Monitor and manage bond funds (Measure FF program) 

• Maximize effectiveness of services 

• Pursue establishment of a reserve fund  

The proposed FY11 and FY12 budget seeks to address these identified priorities within the 
constraints imposed by the current economic climate and the resources available.  Emphasis is 
particularly directed to achieving a stable operating budget, continued execution of the Branch 
Libraries Improvement Program as mandated by Measure FF, and continuing to deliver library 
services that exceed the expectations of library patrons. 

Although the proposed Biennial Budget does not eliminate the structural deficit impacting the 
Library Tax Fund it does materially address the mismatch between revenue and expenses as 
previously detailed in the Library Tax Fund section of this report. 

The Biennial Budget will be updated upon release of the San Francisco Bay Area Consumer Price 
Index or the CA Personal Income Growth Factor in mid-May. 

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS 

No alternative actions are proposed at this time. 

FUTURE ACTION 

In May staff will present an updated Biennial Budget including the application of the selected library 
tax rate to the board for final adoption. 

Once adopted, the Library will report the final budget to the City Manager’s Office for inclusion in 
the comprehensive budget for the City.   

 

 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
PRESENTATION 
FY12 and FY13 Proposed Budget    Page 7 

 
Attachments: 

1. Proposed Revenue Biennial Budget by Fund 
2. Proposed Expense Biennial Budget by Fund 
3. Proposed Biennial Budget Revenue Adjustments 
4. Proposed Biennial Budget Personnel Expense Adjustments 
5. Proposed Biennial Budget Non-Personnel Expense Adjustments 
6. Library Tax Fund 5-Year Fund Analysis  
7. Other Funds 5-Year Fund Analysis 
8. Gifts Fund 5-Year Fund Analysis 
9. Measure FF Fund 5-Year Fund Analysis 
10. Berkeley Public Library Organization Chart 
11. Position FTE Summary by Division 
12. Position FTE Summary by Classification 
13. Friends of the Berkeley Public Library FY12 Grant Funding Requests 



 



BE
R

KE
LE

Y 
PU

BL
IC

 L
IB

R
AR

Y
6‐
A
pr
‐1
1

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 R

EV
EN

U
E 

BI
EN

N
IA

L 
BU

D
G

ET
 b

y 
FU

N
D

 - 
LI

BR
AR

Y 
w

/C
oB

G
:\A

dm
in

 A
ss

is
ta

nt
\B

O
LT

\A
ge

nd
a 

Pa
ck

et
s\

20
11

\0
4\

[P
os

iti
on

sF
Y 

20
12

FY
 2

01
3

Li
b 

D
sc

r
D

L/
IL

L
G

ra
nt

s
Pu

b 
Li

b
G

ift
Fn

dn
 F

FE
M

se
 F

F
R

ev
en

ue
Li

b 
D

sc
r

D
L/

IL
L

G
ra

nt
s

Pu
b 

Li
b

G
ift

Fn
dn

 F
FE

M
se

 F
F

R
ev

en
ue

El
e/

O
bj

Ac
co

un
t D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
30

1-
12

30
2-

12
30

4-
12

30
5-

12
30

6-
12

30
7-

12
30

8-
12

FY
12

30
1-

13
30

2-
13

30
4-

13
30

5-
13

30
6-

13
30

7-
13

30
8-

13
FY

13
01

-0
1

R
ef

un
d 

on
 B

ills
2,

00
0

2,
00

0
2,

00
0

2,
00

0
02

-3
5

M
or

tg
ag

e 
Ln

s 
D

ev
'P

m
t P

ro
05

-0
1

O
ve

r a
nd

 S
ho

rts
10

-0
1

C
ol

le
ct

io
n 

by
 C

ity
10

-1
7

G
.O

. B
on

ds
 M

se
 F

F
13

-1
5

Li
br

ar
y 

Ta
x

14
,2

40
,2

22
14

,2
40

,2
22

14
,4

53
,8

25
14

,4
53

,8
25

20
-0

7
Li

br
ar

y 
Sv

c&
C

on
st

r A
ct

37
,6

50
37

,6
50

37
,6

50
37

,6
50

20
-1

1
Li

br
ar

y 
Fi

ne
s

22
3,

00
0

22
3,

00
0

22
3,

00
0

22
3,

00
0

20
-1

2
Li

nk
 +

 F
in

es
20

-1
5

Lo
st

 B
oo

k 
Fi

ne
s

30
,0

00
30

,0
00

30
,0

00
30

,0
00

20
-1

7
Li

b/
Fi

n 
Ac

t/S
.B

. 3
58

8,
60

0
8,

60
0

8,
60

0
8,

60
0

20
-1

8
C

al
if 

Li
br

ar
y 

Sv
cs

 B
oa

rd
20

-2
1

To
ol

 L
en

di
ng

 F
in

es
20

,0
00

20
,0

00
20

,0
00

20
,0

00
20

-8
8

JH
BP

21
-0

3
M

or
tg

ag
e 

Ln
s 

D
ev

'P
m

t P
ro

21
-2

0
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t L

oa
ns

23
-1

2
BP

L 
Fo

un
da

tio
n

1,
00

0,
00

0
1,

00
0,

00
0

1,
00

0,
00

0
1,

00
0,

00
0

23
-1

3
Fr

ie
nd

s 
of

 B
PL

50
,0

00
50

,0
00

50
,0

00
50

,0
00

28
-0

2
W

or
kf

or
ce

 H
ou

si
ng

 R
ew

ar
d

30
-0

1
In

te
re

st
-In

ve
st

m
en

t P
oo

l
6,

00
0

6,
00

0
1,

50
0

1,
50

0
50

-0
1

D
ire

ct
 B

oo
k 

Lo
an

50
-0

2
In

te
r-

Li
br

ar
y 

Bo
ok

 L
oa

n
5,

00
0

5,
00

0
5,

00
0

5,
00

0
50

-0
3

D
ire

ct
 B

oo
k 

Lo
an

41
,1

24
41

,1
24

41
,1

24
41

,1
24

65
-0

1
M

ee
tin

g 
R

oo
m

 F
ee

s
2,

00
0

2,
00

0
2,

00
0

2,
00

0
99

-0
1

Ap
pr

op
ria

tio
ns

 O
rd

 #
1

99
-0

3
D

on
at

io
ns

99
-2

0
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

s/
Fe

es
99

-9
9

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
R

ev
en

ue
8,

50
0

20
,0

00
28

,5
00

8,
50

0
20

,0
00

28
,5

00
To

ta
l

B
PL

 w
/C

oB
14

,5
25

,7
22

66
,1

24
37

,6
50

8,
60

0
50

,0
00

1,
00

0,
00

0
6,

00
0

15
,6

94
,0

96
14

,7
39

,3
25

66
,1

24
37

,6
50

8,
60

0
50

,0
00

1,
00

0,
00

0
1,

50
0

15
,9

03
,1

99

II Presentations, Item A 
Attachment 1



 



B
E

R
K

E
LE

Y 
P

U
B

LI
C

 L
IB

R
A

R
Y

6‐
A
pr
‐1
1

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 E
XP

E
N

S
E

 B
IE

N
N

IA
L 

B
U

D
G

E
T 

by
 F

U
N

D
 - 

LI
B

R
A

R
Y 

w
/C

oB
G

:\A
dm

in
 A

ss
is

ta
nt

\B
O

LT
\A

ge
nd

a 
P

ac
ke

ts
\2

01
1\

04
\[P

rjc
tn

 5
YR

_F
Y
FY

 2
01

2
FY

 2
01

3
Li

b 
D

sc
r

D
L 

/ I
LL

G
ra

nt
s

G
ift

FF
E

M
se

 F
F

E
xp

en
se

Li
b 

D
sc

r
D

L 
/ I

LL
G

ra
nt

s
G

ift
FF

E
M

se
 F

F
E

xp
en

se
D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
30

1-
12

30
2-

12
30

4-
12

30
6-

12
30

7-
12

30
8-

12
FY

12
30

1-
13

30
2-

13
30

4-
13

30
6-

13
30

7-
13

30
8-

13
FY

13
7,

72
7,

24
7

27
,9

31
65

,1
73

7,
82

0,
35

1
7,

75
5,

70
5

32
,5

87
65

,3
31

7,
85

3,
62

3
4,

46
5,

60
1

2,
06

9
4,

82
7

4,
47

2,
49

7
4,

67
8,

60
0

2,
41

3
4,

83
8

4,
68

5,
85

1
S

al
ar

y 
S

av
in

gs
(1

82
,5

78
)

(1
82

,5
78

)
(1

86
,1

93
)

(1
86

,1
93

)
12

,0
10

,2
71

30
,0

00
70

,0
00

12
,1

10
,2

71
12

,2
48

,1
12

35
,0

00
70

,1
69

12
,3

53
,2

81
75

1,
27

9
2,

50
0

12
5,

00
0

87
8,

77
9

76
2,

38
9

2,
50

0
12

5,
00

0
88

9,
88

9
5,

00
0

5,
00

0
5,

00
0

5,
00

0
54

8,
88

8
55

7,
02

0
1,

10
5,

90
8

58
7,

83
1

45
0,

44
2

1,
03

8,
27

3
12

,0
75

40
,0

00
12

6,
87

5
17

8,
95

0
12

,0
75

40
,0

00
57

,5
00

10
9,

57
5

21
,5

00
25

,0
00

46
,5

00
21

,5
00

25
,0

00
46

,5
00

1,
06

5,
26

0
8,

50
0

11
9,

92
1

1,
19

3,
68

1
1,

07
6,

16
0

8,
50

0
90

,0
00

1,
17

4,
66

0
18

0,
00

0
18

0,
00

0
18

0,
00

0
18

0,
00

0
75

,0
00

10
,3

55
,0

00
10

,4
30

,0
00

75
,0

00
83

4,
29

2
90

9,
29

2
19

7,
34

6
50

0,
00

0
16

,1
05

71
3,

45
1

10
8,

34
2

50
0,

00
0

16
,1

05
62

4,
44

7
56

,0
00

50
0,

00
0

55
6,

00
0

56
,0

00
50

0,
00

0
55

6,
00

0
6,

66
1

6,
66

1
6,

66
1

6,
66

1
2,

91
9,

00
9

76
,0

00
11

9,
92

1
1,

00
0,

00
0

11
,1

80
,0

00
15

,2
94

,9
30

2,
89

0,
95

8
76

,0
00

90
,0

00
1,

00
0,

00
0

1,
48

3,
33

9
5,

54
0,

29
7

14
,9

29
,2

80
76

,0
00

30
,0

00
11

9,
92

1
1,

00
0,

00
0

11
,2

50
,0

00
27

,4
05

,2
01

15
,1

39
,0

70
76

,0
00

35
,0

00
90

,0
00

1,
00

0,
00

0
1,

55
3,

50
8

17
,8

93
,5

78

P
er

so
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s-
S

al
ar

ie
s 

an
d 

W
ag

es
P

er
so

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s-

Fr
in

ge
 B

en
ef

its

Pe
rs

on
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s-
Em

pl
oy

ee
P

ur
ch

as
ed

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l &
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 S
vc

s
G

ra
nt

s 
&

 G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l P
ay

m
en

ts
O

th
er

 P
ur

ch
as

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
s

R
en

ta
ls

 / 
Le

as
es

M
ai

l S
er

vi
ce

s
S

up
pl

ie
s

P
ur

ch
as

ed
 P

ro
pe

rty
 S

er
vi

ce
s

In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e

B
ER

K
EL

EY
 P

U
B

LI
C

 L
IB

R
A

R
Y 

(w
/C

oB
)

P
ro

pe
rty

P
ro

pe
rty

 U
nd

er
 C

ap
 L

im
it

In
te

rn
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s
O

th
er

 E
xp

en
se

s

II Presentations, Item A 
Attachment 2



 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 6‐Apr‐11

PROPOSED BIENNIAL BUDGET REVENUE ADJUSTMENTS
G:\Admin Assistant\BOLT\Agenda Packets\2011\04\[Prjctn 5YR_FY10 14_8APR11.xlsx]Othr

Fund DepDiv Base EleObj Description FY12 FY13 Comment
301 9101 351 20-11 Library Fines 23,000 23,000 Increase to FY11 annualized
302 9101 331 50-03 Direct Book Loan (23,876) (23,876) Est. CA CLSA budget decrease = 34.1%
304 9101 331 20-07 Library Svc&Constr Act (12,350) (12,350) Est. CA CLLS budget decrease = 19.6%
305 9101 331 20-17 Lib/Fin Act/S.B. 358 (31,400) (31,400) Est. CA PLF budget decrease = 76.7%
306 9101 368 23-13 Friends of BPL (2,122) (2,122) Est. gift total of $50K
306 9202 368 23-13 Friends of BPL (9,696) (9,696) Est. gift total of $50K, 1/3% cut
306 9203 368 23-13 Friends of BPL (3,167) (3,167) Est. gift total of $50K, 1/3% cut
306 9204 368 23-13 Friends of BPL (2,674) (2,674) Est. gift total of $50K, 1/3% cut
306 9205 368 23-13 Friends of BPL (1,131) (1,131) Est. gift total of $50K, 1/3% cut
306 9206 368 23-13 Friends of BPL (2,947) (2,947) Est. gift total of $50K, 1/3% cut
306 9302 368 23-13 Friends of BPL (617) (617) Est. gift total of $50K, 1/3% cut
306 9304 368 23-13 Friends of BPL (1,000) (1,000) Est. gift total of $50K, 1/3% cut
306 9305 368 23-13 Friends of BPL (323) (323) Est. gift total of $50K, 1/3% cut
306 9306 368 23-13 Friends of BPL (1,322) (1,322) Est. gift total of $50K, cut, Xfr to 9101
308 9707 361 30-01 Interest-Investment Pool (4,000) (8,500) Reduce estimated interest
307 9301 368 23-12 BPL Foundation 950,000 950,000 Branches Capital Campaign
308 9707 393 10-17 G.O. Bonds Mse FF (15,943,320) (15,943,320) Bond sales ended in FY10

Revenue - TOTAL (15,066,945) (15,071,445)

II Presentations, Item A 
Attachment 3



 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 6‐Apr‐11

PROPOSED BIENNIAL BUDGET PERSONNEL EXPENSE ADJUSTMENTS
G:\Admin Assistant\BOLT\Agenda Packets\2011\04\[Prjctn 5YR_FY10 14_8APR11.xlsx]Othr

Fund DepDiv Base EleObj Description FY12 FY13 Comment
301 9306 450 (143,297) (146,968) Cut: Library Special Services Coordinator
301 9202 450 (131,515) (134,099) Cut: Senior Librarian
301 9305 450 (52,862) (53,386) Cut: Library Specialist II
301 9401 450 (53,711) (54,966) Cut: Library Assistant
301 9305 450 12-12 (11,240) (11,295) Cut 1/2: Youth Enrollee Intern Program
301 9401 450 (16,759) (16,759) Cut: Library Aide 0.375 FTE
301 9201 450 (9,187) (9,187) Cut: Intern placement positions (4)
301 9202 450 (82,992) (83,917) Cut: 80% Librarian I
301 9202 450 143,297 136,644 Add: 100% Librarian II
301 9202 450 (137,575) (140,226) Cut: Youth Services - Library Services Manager
301 9307 450 (52,125) (53,819) Cut: Tool Lending Specialist 0.5 FTE
301 9307 450 17,257 17,440 Add: Tool Lending Specialist (1 qty) 0.5 to 0.675 FTE
301 9307 450 19,647 19,846 Add: Tool Lending Specialist (1 qty) 0.5 to 0.7 FTE
301 9307 450 8,573 8,650 Add: Tool Lending Specialist (1 qty) 0.625 to 0.7 FTE
301 9307 450 6,646 7,783 Add: Residual savings to Tool Intermittents
301 9203 450 (33,826) (33,992) Xfr Library Aides (2 qty @ 0.375 FTE each) to 9201
301 9201 450 33,826 33,992 Xfr Library Aides (2 qty @ 0.375 FTE each) from 9203
301 9203 450 (33,368) (33,729) Xfr Library Aides (0.5 FTE) to 9201
301 9203 450 (38,430) (38,801) Xfr Library Aides (0.5 FTE) to 9201
301 9401 450 (167,022) (170,946) Xfr Library Services Manager (1.0 FTE) to 9402
301 9401 450 (130,408) (132,843) Xfr Senior Librarian (1.0 FTE) to 9402
301 9201 450 33,368 33,729 Xfr Library Aides (0.5 FTE) from 9203
301 9201 450 38,430 38,801 Xfr Library Aides (0.5 FTE) from 9203
301 9402 450 167,022 170,946 Xfr Library Services Manager (1.0 FTE) from 9401
301 9402 450 130,408 132,843 Xfr Senior Librarian (1.0 FTE) from 9401
301 9101 450 20-99 Salary Savings (182,578) (186,193) at 1.5%

Personnel - 301 (678,422) (700,452)
304 9205 450 (25,046) (20,320) Literacy: Scale-back Intermittent Hours

Personnel - 304 (25,046) (20,320)
306 9101 450 (16,514) (16,594) Central Space Planning

Personnel - 306 (16,514) (16,594)
308 9301 450 14,954 14,849 CoB Project Representative

Personnel - 308 14,954 14,849
Personnel - TOTAL (705,028) (722,517)

II Presentations, Item A 
Attachment 4



 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 6‐Apr‐11

PROPOSED BIENNIAL BUDGET NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE ADJUSTMENTS
G:\Admin Assistant\BOLT\Agenda Packets\2011\04\[Prjctn 5YR_FY10 14_8APR11.xlsx]Othr

Fund DepDiv Base EleObj Description FY12 FY13 Comment
301 9101 450 40-10 Professional Dues and Fee 14,527 15,000 Downtown PBID
301 9101 450 40-10 Professional Dues and Fee 8,500 11,000 Higher PLP (BALIS) fee
301 9101 450 40-33 Communications: Cellular (3,000) (3,000) Delete Blackberries (5qty): IT (4 qty) and JD
301 9101 450 51-10 Postage 17,000 17,000 Consolidate to 9101 fr 9201; and reduce fr $32K
301 9101 450 55-11 Office Supplies (300) (300) Reduce: 5%
301 9101 450 55-50 Food (2,000) (2,000) Reduce from $3,000
301 9101 450 75-60 City Parking Permits 20 20 To match $500 permit cost (1 qty)
301 9102 450 30-47 Maint Svcs: Software Maintenance 51,500 51,500 Millenium
301 9102 450 40-61 Travel: Commerical Travel (4,000) (4,000) Activity completed: Self-check research travel
301 9102 450 40-62 Travel: Meals and Lodging (6,000) (6,000) Activity completed: Self-check research travel
301 9102 450 55-11 Office Supplies (100) (100) Reduce: 5%
301 9150 450 40-31 Communications: Telephones 86,250 86,250 VoIP system installation
301 9150 450 70-41 Machinery and Equipment 127,896 38,892 Self-check system replacement (Bibliotheca)
301 9201 450 30-42 Maint Svcs: Office Equip Maint Svcs (4,000) (4,000) JD: projects lower expense
301 9201 450 30-51 Bank Credit Card Fees 2,400 2,400 CC fees
301 9201 450 40-10 Professional Dues and Fee (2,000) (2,000) JD: projects lower expense
301 9201 450 40-50 Printing and Binding (5,000) (5,000) JD: projects lower expense
301 9201 450 51-10 Postage (27,000) (27,000) Consolidate to 9101
301 9201 450 55-11 Office Supplies (250) (250) Reduce: 5%
301 9201 450 55-50 Food (500) (500) Eliminate from $500
301 9202 450 55-11 Office Supplies (125) (125) Reduce: 5%
301 9203 450 55-11 Office Supplies (75) (75) Reduce: 5%
301 9204 450 55-11 Office Supplies (100) (100) Reduce: 5%
301 9205 450 51-10 Postage (1,000) (1,000) Reduction to $500
301 9205 450 55-11 Office Supplies (45) (45) Reduce: 5%
301 9301 450 55-11 Office Supplies (10) (10) Reduce: 5%
301 9302 450 30-38 Maint Svcs: Bldg & Structures Maint Svcs 3,800 Expense Shifting
301 9302 450 30-42 Maint Svcs: Office Equip Maint Svcs (500) FY12: Branch Closure Savings
301 9302 450 30-43 Maint Svcs: Bldg & Structures Maint Svcs (4,500) (3,800) FY12: Branch Closure Savings; FY13 Expense Shifting
301 9302 450 30-51 Bank Credit Card Fees 60 240 CC fees
301 9302 450 40-31 Communications: Telephones (3,000) FY12: Branch Closure Savings
301 9302 450 40-41 Utilities: Water (4,500) FY12: Branch Closure Savings
301 9302 450 40-42 Utilities: Gas/Electricity (11,250) FY12: Branch Closure Savings
301 9302 450 40-43 Utilities: Refuse (1 620) FY12: Branch Closure Savings301 9302 450 40-43 Utilities: Refuse (1,620) FY12: Branch Closure Savings
301 9302 450 55-11 Office Supplies (500) (50) FY12: Branch Closure Savings; FY13: Reduce: 5%
301 9302 450 55-20 Field Supplies (1,000) FY12: Branch Closure Savings
301 9303 450 30-38 Maint Svcs: Bldg & Structures Maint Svcs 3,800 3,800 Expense Shifting
301 9303 450 30-43 Maint Svcs: Bldg & Structures Maint Svcs (3,800) (3,800) Expense Shifting
301 9303 450 30-51 Bank Credit Card Fees 240 240 CC fees
301 9303 450 55-11 Office Supplies (60) (60) Reduce: 5%
301 9304 450 30-38 Maint Svcs: Bldg & Structures Maint Svcs 3,800 3,800 Expense Shifting
301 9304 450 30-43 Maint Svcs: Bldg & Structures Maint Svcs (3,800) (3,800) Expense Shifting
301 9304 450 30-51 Bank Credit Card Fees 240 240 CC fees
301 9304 450 55-11 Office Supplies (45) (45) Reduce: 5%
301 9305 450 30-38 Maint Svcs: Bldg & Structures Maint Svcs (1,250) 3,800 FY12: Branch Closure Savings; FY13 Expense Shifting
301 9305 450 30-43 Maint Svcs: Bldg & Structures Maint Svcs (4,500) (3,800) FY12: Branch Closure Savings; FY13 Expense Shifting
301 9305 450 30-51 Bank Credit Card Fees 60 240 CC fees
301 9305 450 40-31 Communications: Telephones (2,625) FY12: Branch Closure Savings
301 9305 450 40-41 Utilities: Water (975) FY12: Branch Closure Savings
301 9305 450 40-42 Utilities: Gas/Electricity (10,500) FY12: Branch Closure Savings
301 9305 450 40-43 Utilities: Refuse (1,500) FY12: Branch Closure Savings
301 9305 450 55-11 Office Supplies (500) (50) FY12: Branch Closure Savings; FY13: Reduce: 5%
301 9305 450 55-20 Field Supplies (1,000) FY12: Branch Closure Savings
301 9306 450 55-11 Office Supplies (50) (50) Reduce: 5%
301 9307 450 55-11 Office Supplies (10) (10) Reduce: 5%
301 9401 450 30-38 Professional: Misc Prof Svcs (14,600) (14,600) Lower costs due to replacing OCLC by Sky River
301 9401 450 55-11 Office Supplies (100) (100) Reduce: 5%
301 9401 450 55-20 Field Supplies (20,000) (12,000) Lower qty of RFID tags to purchase
301 9401 450 55-60 Library Materials (876,000) (876,000) Xfr to 9402
301 9402 450 55-60 Library Materials 876,000 876,000 Xfr from 9401

Non-Personnel - 301 168,603 140,552
306 9101 450 30-38 Professional: Misc Prof Svcs (8,110) (8,110) Central Space Planning
306 9101 450 40-50 Printing and Binding (85) (85) Central Space Planning
306 9101 450 40-90 Other (244,900) (244,900) Central Space Planning
306 9101 450 55-20 Field Supplies 50,000 50,000 Friends Annual Gift Placeholder
306 9101 450 55-20 Field Supplies (789) (789) Central Space Planning
306 9202 450 30-38 Professional: Misc Prof Svcs (18,247) (18,247) Delete from Base: FY11 Friends Gifts
306 9202 450 55-20 Field Supplies (10,667) (10,667) Delete from Base: FY11 Friends Gifts
306 9202 450 55-60 Library Materials 7,121 (20,050) FY12: M. Delaware+A. Meyers; FY13: A. Meyers
306 9203 450 30-38 Professional: Misc Prof Svcs (3,508) (3,508) Delete from Base: FY11 Friends Gifts
306 9203 450 55-20 Field Supplies (705) (705) Delete from Base: FY11 Friends Gifts
306 9204 450 30-38 Professional: Misc Prof Svcs (6,170) (6,170) Delete from Base: FY11 Friends Gifts

II Presentations, Item A 
Attachment 5



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 6‐Apr‐11

PROPOSED BIENNIAL BUDGET NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE ADJUSTMENTS
G:\Admin Assistant\BOLT\Agenda Packets\2011\04\[Prjctn 5YR_FY10 14_8APR11.xlsx]Othr

Fund DepDiv Base EleObj Description FY12 FY13 Comment
306 9205 450 30-38 Professional: Misc Prof Svcs (176) (176) Delete from Base: FY11 Friends Gifts
306 9205 450 55-20 Field Supplies (467) (3,217) Delete from Base: FY11 Friends Gifts
306 9206 450 30-38 Professional: Misc Prof Svcs (1,895) (1,895) Delete from Base: FY11 Friends Gifts
306 9206 450 55-20 Field Supplies (6,470) (6,470) Delete from Base: FY11 Friends Gifts
306 9302 450 30-38 Professional: Misc Prof Svcs (1,322) (1,322) Delete from Base: FY11 Friends Gifts
306 9302 450 55-20 Field Supplies (291) (291) Delete from Base: FY11 Friends Gifts
306 9303 450 55-20 Field Supplies (100) (100) Delete from Base: FY11 Friends Gifts
306 9304 450 30-38 Professional: Misc Prof Svcs (992) (992) Delete from Base: FY11 Friends Gifts
306 9304 450 55-20 Field Supplies (2,010) (2,010) Delete from Base: FY11 Friends Gifts
306 9305 450 30-38 Professional: Misc Prof Svcs (881) (881) Delete from Base: FY11 Friends Gifts
306 9305 450 55-20 Field Supplies (88) (88) Delete from Base: FY11 Friends Gifts
306 9306 450 30-38 Professional: Misc Prof Svcs (1,190) (1,190) Delete from Base: FY11 Friends Gifts
306 9306 450 55-20 Field Supplies (132) (132) Delete from Base: FY11 Friends Gifts

Non-Personnel - 306 (252,074) (281,995)
307 9301 450 70-43 Furniture and Fixtures 450,000 450,000 Branches Capital Campaign FF&E
307 9301 450 71-43 Mach & Equip: Furniture And Fixtures 450,000 450,000 Branches Capital Campaign FF&E

Non-Personnel - 307 900,000 900,000
308 9301 450 30-35 Professional: Engnrng & Architecural Svcs (253,040) (253,040) per Budget estimate on 21MAR11
308 9301 450 30-38 Professional: Misc Prof Svcs 45,000 45,000 per Budget estimate on 21MAR11
308 9301 450 40-31 Communications: Telephones 5,000 (15,000) per Budget estimate on 21MAR11
308 9301 450 40-41 Utilities: Water 20,000 15,000 per Budget estimate on 21MAR11
308 9301 450 40-42 Utilities: Gas/Electricity (15,750) (15,750) per Budget estimate on 21MAR11
308 9301 450 40-50 Printing and Binding (15,000) per Budget estimate on 21MAR11
308 9301 450 40-70 Advertising 5,000 5,000 per Budget estimate on 21MAR11
308 9301 450 40-90 Other 401,770 335,192 per Budget estimate on 21MAR11
308 9301 450 50-10 Rental of Land/Buildings 51,875 (17,500) per Budget estimate on 21MAR11
308 9301 450 65-70 Building 669,105 (8,729,603) per Budget estimate on 21MAR11
308 9301 450 65-80 Other Infrastructure (5,908) (127,908) per Budget estimate on 21MAR11
308 9301 450 70-42 Vehicles 16,105 16,105 per Budget estimate on 21MAR11
308 9902 470 82-30 Debt Svc - Issuance Costs (2,400) (2,400) Not applicable in FY12 & FY13

Non-Personnel - 308 936,757 (8,759,904)
Non-Personnel - TOTAL 1,753,286 (8,001,347)

II Presentations, Item A 
Attachment 5



B
E

R
K

E
L

E
Y

 P
U

B
L

IC
 L

IB
R

A
R

Y
L

IB
R

A
R

Y
 T

A
X

 F
U

N
D

 (3
01

):
 5

-Y
E

A
R

 F
U

N
D

 A
N

A
L

Y
SI

S

4/
6/

20
11

FY
 2

01
0

FY
 2

01
1

FY
 2

01
1

FY
 2

01
1

FY
 2

01
2

FY
 2

01
3

FY
 2

01
4

FI
N

AL
AD

O
PT

ED
R

EV
IS

ED
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
B

eg
in

ni
ng

 F
un

d 
B

al
an

ce
1,

10
2,

15
1

$ 
  

1,
46

1,
88

3
$ 

  
1,

46
1,

88
3

$ 
   

 
1,

46
1,

88
3

$ 
   

1,
11

1,
54

0
$ 

   
 

70
7,

98
2

$ 
   

   
 

30
8,

23
8

$ 
   

  
R

ev
en

ue
s

  L
ib

ra
ry

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Ta

x
13

,8
44

,4
89

$ 
 

13
,9

04
,7

89
$ 

 
13

,9
04

,7
89

$ 
   

14
,0

29
,7

75
$ 

 
14

,2
40

,2
22

$ 
   

14
,4

53
,8

25
$ 

   
14

,6
70

,6
32

$ 
 

  F
in

es
/F

ee
s

29
3,

25
4

25
2,

00
0

30
0,

00
0

30
0,

00
0

27
5,

00
0

27
5,

00
0

30
0,

00
0

  D
on

at
io

ns
/P

riv
at

e 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
  M

is
c.

 R
ev

en
ue

 / 
In

te
re

st
 / 

R
ef

un
ds

14
,5

32
10

,5
00

10
,5

00
10

,5
00

10
,5

00
10

,5
00

10
,5

00
TO

TA
L 

R
EV

EN
U

E:
14

,1
52

,2
75

$ 
14

,1
67

,2
89

$ 
14

,2
15

,2
89

$ 
  

14
,3

40
,2

75
$ 

 
14

,5
25

,7
22

$ 
  

14
,7

39
,3

25
$ 

  
14

,9
81

,1
32

$ 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s
  O

pe
ra

tio
ns

   
   

  S
al

ar
ie

s,
 W

ag
es

, B
en

ef
its

11
,6

45
,5

44
$ 

 
11

,6
49

,9
48

$ 
 

11
,6

49
,9

48
$ 

   
11

,6
49

,9
48

$ 
 

12
,1

71
,8

52
$ 

   
12

,4
12

,8
90

$ 
   

12
,4

12
,8

90
$ 

 
   

Sa
la

rie
s,

 W
ag

es
, B

en
ef

its
   

   
  l

es
s:

 L
ab

or
 V

ac
an

cy
 S

av
in

gs
11

6,
49

9
11

6,
49

9
11

6,
49

9
18

2,
57

8
18

6,
19

3
18

6,
19

3
   

 P
er

so
nn

el
 

11
,6

45
,5

44
$ 

 
11

,5
33

,4
49

$ 
 

11
,5

33
,4

49
$ 

   
11

,5
33

,4
49

$ 
 

11
,9

89
,2

74
$ 

   
12

,2
26

,6
97

$ 
   

12
,2

26
,6

97
$ 

 
   

 N
on

-P
er

so
nn

el
 

45
8,

70
9

59
8,

99
0

95
0,

76
3

95
0,

76
3

70
7,

85
5

63
8,

10
4

63
8,

10
4

   
 L

ib
ra

ry
 M

at
er

ia
ls

 (i
nc

l T
oo

l L
nd

ng
)

82
3,

06
8

90
0,

00
0

90
0,

00
0

90
0,

00
0

90
0,

00
0

90
0,

00
0

90
0,

00
0

   
 M

is
c.

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s
19

8,
06

3
29

0,
85

0
34

6,
04

2
34

6,
04

2
28

2,
60

0
29

1,
45

0
29

1,
45

0
   

 U
til

iti
es

+T
el

ep
ho

ne
37

8,
34

6
41

2,
26

2
41

2,
26

2
41

2,
26

2
42

8,
75

0
46

1,
60

0
46

1,
60

0
   

 J
an

ito
ria

l
16

7,
42

8
18

0,
00

0
21

5,
63

1
21

5,
63

1
18

0,
00

0
18

0,
00

0
18

0,
00

0
   

 S
of

tw
ar

e 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
54

,0
45

23
4,

30
4

24
3,

25
5

24
3,

25
5

28
5,

80
4

28
5,

80
4

28
5,

80
4

   
 C

om
pu

te
r &

 S
of

tw
ar

e 
Pu

rc
ha

se
31

,0
13

55
,0

00
55

,0
00

55
,0

00
55

,0
00

55
,0

00
55

,0
00

   
 C

IP
 (B

ui
ld

in
g)

12
,5

39
75

,0
00

15
,0

00
15

,0
00

75
,0

00
75

,0
00

75
,0

00
(

g)
  S

ub
to

ta
l:

13
,7

68
,7

55
$ 

14
,2

79
,8

55
$ 

14
,6

71
,4

02
$ 

  
14

,6
71

,4
02

$ 
 

14
,9

04
,2

83
$ 

  
15

,1
13

,6
55

$ 
  

15
,1

13
,6

55
$ 

  C
ha

rg
es

 F
ro

m
 O

th
er

 D
ep

ts
   

 F
in

an
ce

 - 
Bi

llin
g 

(3
60

1)
12

,6
85

$ 
   

   
  

11
,2

67
$ 

   
   

  
11

,2
67

$ 
   

   
   

 
7,

91
2

$ 
   

   
   

 
12

,8
49

$ 
   

   
   

 
13

,1
18

$ 
   

   
   

 
13

,1
18

$ 
   

   
  

   
 F

ac
ilit

ie
s 

- A
dm

n 
(5

40
1)

 +
Tx

cs
 (5

40
3)

11
,1

03
11

,5
12

11
,5

74
11

,3
04

12
,1

48
12

,2
97

12
,2

97
   

 In
te

rfu
nd

 T
ra

ns
fe

rs
Su

bt
ot

al
:

23
,7

88
$ 

   
   

 
22

,7
79

$ 
   

   
 

22
,8

41
$ 

   
   

   
19

,2
16

$ 
   

   
  

24
,9

97
$ 

   
   

   
25

,4
15

$ 
   

   
   

25
,4

15
$ 

   
   

 

TO
TA

L 
EX

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

ES
:

13
,7

92
,5

43
$ 

14
,3

02
,6

34
$ 

14
,6

94
,2

43
$ 

  
14

,6
90

,6
18

$ 
 

14
,9

29
,2

80
$ 

  
15

,1
39

,0
70

$ 
  

15
,1

39
,0

70
$ 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Su

rp
lu

s/
(S

ho
rt

fa
ll)

 
{R

ev
 - 

Ex
p}

35
9,

73
2

$ 
   

   
(1

35
,3

45
)

$ 
   

  
(4

78
,9

54
)

$ 
   

   
 

(3
50

,3
43

)
$ 

   
  

(4
03

,5
58

)
$ 

   
   

 
(3

99
,7

45
)

$ 
   

   
 

(1
57

,9
37

)
$ 

   
  

G
R

O
SS

 F
U

N
D

 B
AL

AN
C

E 
{B

al
 +

 R
ev

 - 
Ex

p}
1,

46
1,

88
3

$ 
   

1,
32

6,
53

8
$ 

   
98

2,
92

9
$ 

   
   

  
1,

11
1,

54
0

$ 
   

70
7,

98
2

$ 
   

   
  

30
8,

23
8

$ 
   

   
  

15
0,

30
0

$ 
   

   
G

:\A
dm

in
 A

ss
is

ta
nt

\B
O

LT
\A

ge
nd

a 
P

ac
ke

ts
\2

01
1\

04
\[P

rjc
tn

 5
Y

R
_F

Y
10

 1
4_

8A
P

R
11

.x
ls

x]
O

th
r

pr
in

te
d:

6-
A

pr
-1

1

II Presentations, Item A 
Attachment 6



 



B
E

R
K

E
L

E
Y

 P
U

B
L

IC
 L

IB
R

A
R

Y
O

T
H

E
R

 F
U

N
D

S 
(3

02
, 3

04
, 3

05
):

 5
-Y

E
A

R
 F

U
N

D
 A

N
A

L
Y

SI
S

4/
6/

20
11

FY
 2

01
0

FY
 2

01
1

FY
 2

01
1

FY
 2

01
1

FY
 2

01
2

FY
 2

01
3

FY
 2

01
4

FI
N

AL
AD

O
PT

ED
R

EV
IS

ED
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
B

eg
in

ni
ng

 F
un

d 
B

al
an

ce
17

6,
75

8
$ 

   
  

14
7,

73
4

$ 
   

  
14

7,
73

4
$ 

   
   

 
14

7,
73

4
$ 

   
   

18
6,

50
7

$ 
   

  
19

2,
88

1
$ 

   
  

19
4,

25
5

$ 
   

  
  D

ire
ct

 L
oa

n 
Fu

nd
 (3

02
)

18
8,

85
3

14
2,

69
6

14
2,

69
6

14
2,

69
6

  G
ra

nt
s 

Fu
nd

 (3
04

)
(1

,6
55

)
(1

6,
69

3)
(1

6,
69

3)
(1

6,
69

3)
  P

ub
lic

 L
ib

ra
ry

 F
un

d 
(3

05
)

(1
0,

44
0)

21
,7

31
21

,7
31

21
,7

31
R

ev
en

ue
s

  D
ire

ct
 L

oa
n 

Fu
nd

10
5,

97
3

$ 
   

   
70

,0
00

$ 
   

   
  

70
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
 

70
,0

00
$ 

   
   

  
46

,1
24

$ 
   

   
  

46
,1

24
$ 

   
   

  
  L

ite
ra

cy
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

& 
LS

TA
49

,6
32

50
,0

00
50

,0
00

46
,8

08
37

,6
50

37
,6

50
  M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s 

G
ra

nt
 R

ev
en

ue
3,

75
0

23
,0

00
  P

ub
lic

 L
ib

ra
ry

 F
un

d 
(S

B 
35

8)
37

,9
61

40
,0

00
40

,0
00

36
,9

82
8,

60
0

8,
60

0
  O

th
er

18
,1

05
20

,0
00

20
,0

00
20

,0
00

20
,0

00
20

,0
00

20
,0

00
TO

TA
L 

R
EV

EN
U

E:
21

5,
42

1
$ 

   
  

18
0,

00
0

$ 
   

  
18

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

 
19

6,
79

0
$ 

   
   

11
2,

37
4

$ 
   

  
11

2,
37

4
$ 

   
  

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s
  O

pe
ra

tio
ns

   
 P

er
so

nn
el

 
61

,0
51

$ 
   

   
  

53
,7

05
$ 

   
   

  
56

,0
74

$ 
   

   
   

 
56

,0
74

$ 
   

   
  

30
,0

00
$ 

   
   

  
35

,0
00

$ 
   

   
  

   
 N

on
-P

er
so

nn
el

 
18

3,
39

4
76

,0
00

78
,9

43
10

1,
94

3
76

,0
00

76
,0

00
   

 L
ib

ra
ry

 M
at

er
ia

ls

TO
TA

L 
EX

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

ES
:

24
4,

44
5

$ 
   

  
12

9,
70

5
$ 

   
  

13
5,

01
7

$ 
   

   
 

15
8,

01
7

$ 
   

   
10

6,
00

0
$ 

   
  

11
1,

00
0

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Su

rp
lu

s/
Sh

or
tfa

ll 
(R

ev
 - 

Ex
p)

(2
9,

02
4)

$ 
   

   
50

,2
95

$ 
   

   
 

44
,9

83
$ 

   
   

   
38

,7
73

$ 
   

   
  

6,
37

4
$ 

   
   

   
1,

37
4

$ 
   

   
   

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
(

p)
(2

9,
02

4)
$ 

   
   

50
,2

95
$ 

   
   

 
44

,9
83

$ 
   

   
   

38
,7

73
$ 

   
   

  
6,

37
4

$ 
   

   
   

1,
37

4
$ 

   
   

   
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
 

G
R

O
SS

 F
U

N
D

 B
AL

AN
C

E 
(B

al
 +

 R
ev

 - 
Ex

p)
14

7,
73

4
$ 

   
   

19
8,

02
9

$ 
   

   
19

2,
71

7
$ 

   
   

  
18

6,
50

7
$ 

   
   

19
2,

88
1

$ 
   

   
19

4,
25

5
$ 

   
   

21
4,

25
5

$ 
   

   
G

:\A
dm

in
 A

ss
is

ta
nt

\B
O

LT
\A

ge
nd

a 
P

ac
ke

ts
\2

01
1\

04
\[P

rjc
tn

 5
Y

R
_F

Y
10

 1
4_

8A
P

R
11

.x
ls

x]
O

th
r

pr
in

te
d:

6-
A

pr
-1

1

II Presentations, Item A 
Attachment 7



 



B
E

R
K

E
L

E
Y

 P
U

B
L

IC
 L

IB
R

A
R

Y
G

IF
T

S 
FU

N
D

 (3
06

):
 5

-Y
E

A
R

 F
U

N
D

 A
N

A
L

Y
SI

S

4/
6/

20
11

FY
 2

01
0

FY
 2

01
1

FY
 2

01
1

FY
 2

01
1

FY
 2

01
2

FY
 2

01
3

FY
 2

01
4

FI
N

AL
AD

O
PT

ED
R

EV
IS

ED
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
B

eg
in

ni
ng

 F
un

d 
B

al
an

ce
87

9,
74

0
$ 

   
  

81
5,

63
1

$ 
   

  
81

5,
63

1
$ 

   
  

81
5,

63
1

$ 
   

   
59

7,
81

9
$ 

   
  

52
7,

89
8

$ 
   

  
48

7,
89

8
$ 

   
 

R
ev

en
ue

s
  F

rie
nd

s 
of

 B
PL

 
92

,1
51

$ 
   

   
  

75
,0

00
$ 

   
   

  
75

,0
00

$ 
   

   
  

57
,8

07
$ 

   
   

  
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
  

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

  
  B

PL
 F

ou
nd

at
io

n
  D

on
at

io
ns

/P
riv

at
e

7,
02

8
6,

41
5

  I
nt

er
es

t/M
is

c.
 R

ev
en

ue
s

1,
36

0
1,

00
0

TO
TA

L 
R

EV
EN

U
E:

10
0,

53
9

$ 
   

  
75

,0
00

$ 
   

   
 

75
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
65

,2
22

$ 
   

   
  

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s

  O
pe

ra
tio

ns
   

Pe
rs

on
ne

l 
16

,3
74

$ 
   

   
  

27
,2

52
$ 

   
   

  
37

,4
19

$ 
   

   
  

37
,4

19
$ 

   
   

  
   

N
on

-P
er

so
nn

el
 

25
,5

01
26

9,
45

4
20

6,
80

8
16

0,
61

5
52

,7
50

50
,0

00
   

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s
62

,7
32

42
,4

91
96

,0
02

60
,0

00
   

Li
br

ar
y 

M
at

er
ia

ls
59

,1
46

60
,0

50
67

,3
00

25
,0

00
67

,1
71

40
,0

00
   

C
om

pu
te

r H
ar

dw
ar

e/
S

of
tw

ar
e

89
5

   
C

IP
 (I

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e)
6,

58
0

  S
ub

to
ta

l:
16

4,
64

8
$ 

   
  

39
9,

24
7

$ 
   

  
41

4,
10

9
$ 

   
  

28
3,

03
4

$ 
   

   
11

9,
92

1
$ 

   
  

90
,0

00
$ 

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 

TO
TA

L 
EX

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

ES
:

16
4,

64
8

$ 
   

  
39

9,
24

7
$ 

   
  

41
4,

10
9

$ 
   

  
28

3,
03

4
$ 

   
   

11
9,

92
1

$ 
   

  
90

,0
00

$ 
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Su

rp
lu

s 
/ (

D
ef

ic
it)

 (R
ev

 
- E

xp
)

(6
4,

10
9)

$ 
   

   
 

(3
24

,2
47

)
$ 

   
  

(3
39

,1
09

)
$ 

   
  

(2
17

,8
12

)
$ 

   
  

(6
9,

92
1)

$ 
   

   
 

(4
0,

00
0)

$ 
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

G
R

O
SS

 F
U

N
D

 B
AL

AN
C

E 
G

R
O

SS
 F

U
N

D
 B

AL
AN

C
E 

(B
al

 +
 R

ev
 - 

Ex
p)

81
5,

63
1

$ 
   

   
49

1,
38

4
$ 

   
   

47
6,

52
2

$ 
   

   
59

7,
81

9
$ 

   
   

52
7,

89
8

$ 
   

   
48

7,
89

8
$ 

   
   

48
7,

89
8

$ 
   

  
G

:\A
dm

in
 A

ss
is

ta
nt

\B
O

LT
\A

ge
nd

a 
P

ac
ke

ts
\2

01
1\

04
\[P

rjc
tn

 5
Y

R
_F

Y
10

 1
4_

8A
P

R
11

.x
ls

x]
O

th
r

pr
in

te
d:

6-
A

pr
-1

1

II Presentations, Item A 
Attachment 8



 



B
E

R
K

E
L

E
Y

 P
U

B
L

IC
 L

IB
R

A
R

Y
M

E
A

SU
R

E
 F

F 
FU

N
D

 (3
08

):
 5

-Y
E

A
R

 F
U

N
D

 A
N

A
L

Y
SI

S

4/
6/

20
11

FY
 2

00
9

FY
 2

01
0

FY
 2

01
1

FY
 2

01
1

FY
 2

01
1

FY
 2

01
2

FY
 2

01
3

FI
N

AL
FI

N
AL

AD
O

PT
ED

R
EV

IS
ED

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

PR
O

JE
C

TE
D

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

9,
95

5,
29

9
$ 

  
8,

51
0,

95
9

$ 
  

8,
51

0,
95

9
$ 

   
  

8,
51

0,
95

9
$ 

  
12

,7
96

,0
07

$ 
1,

55
2,

00
7

$ 
  

R
ev

en
ue

s
  B

on
d 

Pr
oc

ee
ds

10
,0

00
,0

00
$ 

 
15

,9
43

,3
20

$ 
 

15
,9

43
,3

20
$ 

   
16

,4
28

,5
36

$ 
 

  M
is

c.
/ I

nt
er

es
t

13
,6

41
10

,0
00

10
,0

00
25

,0
00

6,
00

0
1,

50
0

TO
TA

L 
R

EV
EN

U
E:

10
,0

00
,0

00
$ 

 
13

,6
41

$ 
   

   
 

15
,9

53
,3

20
$ 

15
,9

53
,3

20
$ 

   
16

,4
53

,5
36

$ 
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s
   

 B
on

d 
Is

su
an

ce
: C

os
ts

/P
re

m
iu

m
s

35
,4

25
2,

40
0

2,
40

0
31

0,
20

6
  O

pe
ra

tio
ns

   
 P

er
so

nn
el

6,
12

6
$ 

   
   

   
 

53
,7

05
$ 

   
   

  
53

,7
05

$ 
   

   
   

 
53

,7
05

$ 
   

   
  

70
,0

00
$ 

   
   

  
70

,1
69

$ 
   

   
  

   
 C

on
su

lta
nt

s
9,

27
7

1,
32

4,
94

2
33

3,
04

0
3,

57
1,

55
3

3,
55

8,
07

4
12

5,
00

0
12

5,
00

0
   

 B
ui

ld
in

g
11

2,
70

4
9,

55
5,

89
5

10
,9

17
,7

36
7,

55
0,

00
0

10
,2

25
,0

00
82

6,
29

2
   

 M
is

c.
/U

til
iti

es
/O

th
er

14
,2

09
21

8,
40

0
31

7,
62

1
59

6,
00

2
70

0,
00

0
52

4,
04

7
   

 O
th

er
 In

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e/

Pu
bl

ic
 A

rt 
13

5,
90

8
13

5,
90

8
10

0,
50

0
13

0,
00

0
8,

00
0

TO
TA

L 
EX

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

ES
:

44
,7

02
$ 

   
   

 
1,

45
7,

98
1

$ 
  

10
,2

99
,3

48
$ 

14
,9

98
,9

23
$ 

   
12

,1
68

,4
87

$ 
11

,2
50

,0
00

$ 
1,

55
3,

50
8

$ 
  

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Su

rp
lu

s/
Sh

or
tfa

ll 
(R

ev
 - 

Ex
p)

9,
95

5,
29

9
$ 

   
(1

,4
44

,3
40

)
$ 

  
5,

65
3,

97
2

$ 
   

95
4,

39
7

$ 
   

   
  

4,
28

5,
04

9
$ 

   
(1

1,
24

4,
00

0)
$ 

(1
,5

52
,0

08
)

$ 
  

G
R

O
SS

 F
U

N
D

 B
AL

AN
C

E 
(B

al
 +

 R
ev

 - 
Ex

p)
9,

95
5,

29
9

$ 
  

8,
51

0,
95

9
$ 

  
14

,1
64

,9
31

$ 
9,

46
5,

35
6

$ 
   

  
12

,7
96

,0
07

$ 
1,

55
2,

00
7

$ 
  

(0
)

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

(
p)

9,
95

5,
29

9
$ 

  
8,

51
0,

95
9

$ 
  

14
,1

64
,9

31
$ 

9,
46

5,
35

6
$ 

   
  

12
,7

96
,0

07
$ 

1,
55

2,
00

7
$ 

  
(0

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
G

:\A
dm

in
 A

ss
is

ta
nt

\B
O

LT
\A

ge
nd

a 
P

ac
ke

ts
\2

01
1\

04
\[P

rjc
tn

 5
Y

R
_F

Y
10

 1
4_

8A
P

R
11

.x
ls

x]
O

th
r

pr
in

te
d:

6-
A

pr
-1

1

II Presentations, Item A 
Attachment 9



 



Attachment 10



Attachment 10



Attachment 10



Attachment 10



Attachment 10



Attachment 10



Attachment 10



Attachment 10



Attachment 10



Attachment 10



Attachment 10



Attachment 10



Attachment 10



Attachment 10



Attachment 10



 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY
POSITION FTE SUMMARY BY DIVISION
G:\Admin Assistant\BOLT\Agenda Packets\2011\04\[Positions_Corrected 8APR11.xlsx]pos

Dep/Div Position Pos # FY13 Pr FY12 Pr FY11 FY10
9101 ACCOUNTING OFF SPEC III 4240 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000

ACCOUNTING OFF SPEC SUPER 4243 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
ADMINISTRATIVE SECRETARY 4613 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
ASSOCIATE HUMAN RESOURCES 2703 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF LIBRAR 1211 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
DIRECTOR OF LIBRARY SERVI 1115 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
LIBRARY ADMINISTRATIVE MA 1466 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
LIBRARY SERVICES MANAGER 1468 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
OFFICE SPECIALIST II 4703 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000

9101 Administration 9.000 9.000 9.000 9.000

9102 INFORMATION SYSTEMS SPECI 2830 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000
LIBRARIAN II 2604 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
LIBRARY INFO SYS ADMINIST 1464 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000

9102 Information Systems 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000

9103 BUILDING MAINTENANCE MECH 5106 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
BUILDING MAINTENANCE SUPE 5117 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000

9103 Facilities 2.000 2.000 2.000 2.000

9201 CENTRAL SERVICES AIDE 4401 1.750 1.750 1.750 1.750
CIRCULATION SERVICES MANA 1469 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
LIBRARY AIDE 4245 4.625 4.625 3.625 3.625
LIBRARY ASSISTANT 4213 7.000 7.000 7.000 7.000
LIBRARY SPECIALIST I 4250 2.000 2.000 2.000 2.000
SUPERVISING LIBRARY ASSIS 9609 3 000 3 000 3 000 3 000

FTE

SUPERVISING LIBRARY ASSIS 9609 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000
LIBRARY AIDE 42452 3.750 3.750 3.000 3.375

9201 Circulation Services 23.125 23.125 21.375 21.750

9202 SUPERVISING LIBRARIAN 2603 1.000 1.000
LIBRARIAN I 2605 1.000 1.000 1.800 1.800
LIBRARIAN II 2604 2.100 2.100 1.100 1.100
LIBRARY AIDE 4245 1.500 1.500 1.500 1.500
LIBRARY SERVICES MANAGER 1468 1.000 1.000
LIBRARY SPECIALIST II 9610 0.800 0.800 0.800 0.800
SENIOR LIBRARIAN 2606 1.000 1.000 2.000 2.000
SUPERVISING LIBRARY ASSIS 9609 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
LIBRARY AIDE 42452 1.125 1.125 1.125 1.125
YOUTH ENROLLEE 6718 0.600 0.600

9202 Children's Services 9.525 9.525 10.925 10.925

9203 LIBRARIAN I 2605 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
LIBRARIAN II 2604 1.500 1.500 1.500 1.500
LIBRARY AIDE 4245 1.000 1.000
LIBRARY SPECIALIST II 9610 1.300 1.300 1.300 1.300
SUPERVISING LIBRARIAN 2603 1.000 1.000
LIBRARY AIDE 42452 0.750 0.750

9203 Art+Music 3.800 3.800 6.550 6.550

9204 LIBRARIAN II 2604 5.500 5.500 5.500 5.500
LIBRARY SPECIALIST II 9610 2.400 2.400 2.400 2.400
SUPERVISING LIBRARIAN 2603 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000

9204 Reference 8.900 8.900 8.900 8.900

9205 LIBRARY ASSISTANT 4213 0.500 0.500 0.500 0.500
LIBRARY LITERACY PROGRAM 2615 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
LIBRARY SPECIALIST I 4250 1 000 1 000 1 000 1 000LIBRARY SPECIALIST I 4250 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000

9205 Literacy Programs 2.500 2.500 2.500 2.500

9302 LIBRARIAN II 2604 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
LIBRARY AIDE 4245 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000

II Presentations, Item A 
Attachment 11



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY
POSITION FTE SUMMARY BY DIVISION
G:\Admin Assistant\BOLT\Agenda Packets\2011\04\[Positions_Corrected 8APR11.xlsx]pos

Dep/Div Position Pos # FY13 Pr FY12 Pr FY11 FY10
FTE

LIBRARY ASSISTANT 4213 1.500 1.500 1.500 1.500
LIBRARY SPECIALIST II 9610 1.800 1.800 1.800 1.800
SUPERVISING LIBRARIAN 2603 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
SUPERVISING LIBRARY ASSIS 9609 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
LIBRARY AIDE 42452 1.125 1.125 1.125 1.125
YOUTH ENROLLEE 6718 0.200 0.200 0.200 0.200

9302 North Branch 8.625 8.625 8.625 8.625

9303 LIBRARIAN II 2604 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
LIBRARY ASSISTANT 4213 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
LIBRARY SPECIALIST II 9610 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
SUPERVISING LIBRARIAN 2603 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
SUPERVISING LIBRARY ASSIS 9609 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
LIBRARY AIDE 42452 1.125 1.125 1.125 1.125
YOUTH ENROLLEE 6718 0.200 0.200 0.200 0.200

9303 South Branch 6.325 6.325 6.325 6.325

9304 LIBRARIAN I 2605 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
LIBRARIAN II 2604 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
LIBRARY ASSISTANT 4213 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
LIBRARY SPECIALIST II 9610 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
SUPERVISING LIBRARIAN 2603 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
SUPERVISING LIBRARY ASSIS 9609 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
LIBRARY AIDE 42452 1.125 1.125 1.125 1.125
YOUTH ENROLLEE 6718 0 200 0 200 0 200 0 200YOUTH ENROLLEE 6718 0.200 0.200 0.200 0.200

9304 West Branch 7.325 7.325 7.325 7.325

9305 LIBRARIAN II 2604 2.000 2.000 2.000 2.000
LIBRARY ASSISTANT 4213 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
LIBRARY SPECIALIST II 9610 1.250 1.250 1.750 1.750
SUPERVISING LIBRARIAN 2603 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
SUPERVISING LIBRARY ASSIS 9609 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
LIBRARY AIDE 42452 1.500 1.500 1.500 1.500
YOUTH ENROLLEE 6718 0.200 0.200 0.200 0.200

9305 Claremont Branch 7.950 7.950 8.450 8.450

9306 LIBRARY SPECIAL SERVICES 2610 1.000 1.000
9306 Special Services 1.000 1.000

9307 TOOL LENDING SPECIALIST 6301 2.075 2.075 2.125 2.125
9307 Tool Lending 2.075 2.075 2.125 2.125

9401 LIBRARIAN II 2604 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
LIBRARY AIDE 4245 0.500 0.500 0.500 0.500
LIBRARY ASSISTANT 4213 2.500 2.500 3.100 3.600
LIBRARY SERVICES MANAGER 1468 1.000 1.000
LIBRARY SPECIALIST II 9610 3.750 3.750 3.750 3.000
SENIOR LIBRARIAN 2606 1.000 1.000
SUPERVISING LIBRARIAN 2603 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
SUPERVISING LIBRARY ASSIS 9609 1.000 1.000 1.000 2.000
LIBRARY AIDE 42452 0.750 0.750 1.125 1.125
YOUTH ENROLLEE 6718 0.200 0.200

9401 Technical Services 10.500 10.500 13.675 14.425

9402 LIBRARY SERVICES MANAGER 1468 1.000 1.000
SENIOR LIBRARIAN 2606 1.000 1.000

9402 Collections Management 2 000 2 0009402 Collections Management 2.000 2.000
Total Berkeley Public Library 108.650 108.650 113.775 114.900

II Presentations, Item A 
Attachment 11



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY
POSITION FTE SUMMARY BY CLASSIFICATION
G:\Admin Assistant\BOLT\Agenda Packets\2011\04\[Prjctn 5YR_FY10 14_8APR11.xlsx]Exp

Pos # Position FY13 Pr FY12 Pr FY11 FY10
1115 DIRECTOR OF LIBRARY SERVI 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
1211 DEPUTY DIRECTOR OF LIBRAR 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
1464 LIBRARY INFO SYS ADMINIST 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
1466 LIBRARY ADMINISTRATIVE MA 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
1468 LIBRARY SERVICES MANAGER 2.000 2.000 3.000 3.000
1469 CIRCULATION SERVICES MANA 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
2603 SUPERVISING LIBRARIAN 7.000 7.000 7.000 7.000
2604 LIBRARIAN II 16.100 16.100 15.100 15.100
2605 LIBRARIAN I 3.000 3.000 3.800 3.800
2606 SENIOR LIBRARIAN 2.000 2.000 3.000 3.000
2610 LIBRARY SPECIAL SERVICES 0.000 0.000 1.000 1.000
2615 LIBRARY LITERACY PROGRAM 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
2703 ASSOCIATE HUMAN RESOURCES 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
2830 INFORMATION SYSTEMS SPECI 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000
4213 LIBRARY ASSISTANT 14.500 14.500 15.100 15.600
4240 ACCOUNTING OFF SPEC III 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
4243 ACCOUNTING OFF SPEC SUPER 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
4245 LIBRARY AIDE 7.625 7.625 7.625 7.625
4250 LIBRARY SPECIALIST I 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000
4401 CENTRAL SERVICES AIDE 1.750 1.750 1.750 1.750
4613 ADMINISTRATIVE SECRETARY 1 000 1 000 1 000 1 000

FTE

4613 ADMINISTRATIVE SECRETARY 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
4703 OFFICE SPECIALIST II 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
5106 BUILDING MAINTENANCE MECH 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
5117 BUILDING MAINTENANCE SUPE 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000
6301 TOOL LENDING SPECIALIST 2.075 2.075 2.125 2.125
6718 YOUTH ENROLLEE 0.800 0.800 1.600 1.600
9609 SUPERVISING LIBRARY ASSIS 9.000 9.000 9.000 10.000
9610 LIBRARY SPECIALIST II 13.300 13.300 13.800 13.050
42452 LIBRARY AIDE 10.500 10.500 10.875 11.250
Total Berkeley Public Library 108.650 108.650 113.775 114.900

II Presentations, Item A 
Attachment 12



 



FRIENDS OF THE BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY

Grant Funding Requests

Period:  July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2012

Salaries & 

Benefits

Services & 

Contracts
Supplies

1 Admin - Staff development/events/refreshments 9,731$             125$                7,500$             500$                

2 Admin - Employee Wellness 800$                800$                -$                     

3 Art & Music - Concerts / Classes / Exhibits / Programs 8,000$             3,300$             4,350$             350$                

4 Berkeley READS - Literacy Program 3,350$             200$                3,150$             

5 Children's Services -Summer reading / programs 26,350$           200$                14,800$           11,350$           

6 Teen Services - Programs, Summer reading, Outreach 8,323$             1,008$             1,440$             5,875$             

7 Reference - programs & special projects 6,000$             100$                5,700$             200$                

8 West Branch - Café Literaria / programs 3,500$             1,200$             2,300$             

9 Volunteer Services celebration 500$                1,200$             300$                

10 Collection Development / Opening day North & Claremont 20,000$           20,000$           

11 Branch FF closures and openings 2,000$             2,000$             

88,554$           4,733$             37,190$           44,025$           

Revised 4.5.11

TOTALS

AMOUNT 

REQUESTED

EXPENDITURE CATEGORIES

DIVISION / PROGRAM

II Presentations, Item A 
Attachment 13 



 



Berkeley Public Library 
Board of Library Trustees 

 
Regular Meeting  MINUTES  South Branch 
March 9, 2011  6:30 p.m.  1901 Russell Street 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981‐6195   (510) 548‐1240 (TDD)   (510) 981‐6111 fax   BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

III Consent, Item A 

I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 
A copy of the agenda packet and a digital recording of this meeting is accessible at 

http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/about_the_library/bolt/bolt.php 

A. Call to Order 

  The regular meeting of March 9, 2011 was called to order by Chair Kupfer at 6:32 PM. 

Present:  Trustees Winston Burton, Abigail Franklin, Carolyn Henry‐Golphin, Susan Kupfer and Darryl 
Moore. 

Absent:  none   

Also present:  Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services; Douglas Smith, Deputy Director; Dennis Dang, 
Library Admin Manager; Suzanne Olawski, Branch Library Manager; Eve Franklin, 
Administrative Secretary  

  Jenifer Shurson, Assoc. Human Resources Analyst; Armin Arethna, Children’s Librarian; Erica 
Glenn, Children’s Sr. Librarian; Joy Shioshita, Acting Youth Services Manager; Kay Finney, 
Librarian II; Barbara Bent, Library Aide; Jack Baur, Librarian I; Debbie Carton, Librarian II 
(SEIU 1021 Steward); Shani Leonards, Supervisor Central Reference; Lisa Hesselgesser, 
Library Specialist II (SEIU 1021 Steward); Jeri Ewart, South Branch Manager; Uma Paul, 
Supervising Library Assistant; Deirdre Cerkanowicz, Library Specialist II. 

B. Public Comments 

1. Joy  Shioshita,  Acting  Youth  Services Manager  –  Expressed  concerns  that  Youth  Services will  absorb  a 
disproportionate amount of the proposed staffing reductions. Asked the Board to consider that children’s, 
teens and families will lose the most with these cuts.  

2. Jack Baur, Teen Services Librarian – Express concerns that budget cuts to Teen Services which will make it 
difficult to meet current commitments, already stretched thin. 

3. Cynthia Alman,  teacher  at Malcolm  X  School  –  Spoke  in  support  of Children’s  /  Youth  Services  in  the 
library. Not every child in Berkeley has shelf upon shelf of interesting books, except they do in the library. 
The librarian can find them books for their parents to read to them and to practice their skills. 

4. David Snyder, Berkeley Public Library Foundation Executive Director – Expressed concern about wasting 
money and time for outside consultants, architects, lawyers and fees because a small group of individuals 
is  trying  to  circumvent  the public process  that was utilized  to  select  architects, design  teams  and  the 
projects. Urged the Board to push ahead to move this project along and  invited others to support these 
projects.   

5. Armin Arethna, Children’s Librarian – Spoke regarding proposed budget cuts to Youth Services. It will be 
difficult  to maintain  current  services with  the  proposed  cuts.  Expressed  concern  about  loss  of  Youth 
Services Manager position.   

6. Linda  Perkins  –  Identified  self  as  former  Youth  Services Manager  and  Acting  Deputy  Director  of  the 
Library. Spoke regarding proposed cuts to Youth Services. 

7. Peter Warfield,  Library Users  Association  –  Requested  status  report  of  the Nuclear  Free  Berkeley Act 
waiver regarding 3M maintenance contract for the self‐check system. Spoke regarding Library BranchVan, 
Central Library layout changes and Branch Improvement Projects. 

8. Becca Todd, BUSD District Library Coordinator – Expressed concerns regarding cuts to Youth Services.  



Berkeley Library Board of Trustees Minutes 
March 9, 2011      Page 2 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981‐6195   (510) 548‐1240 (TDD)   (510) 981‐6111 fax   BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

C. Report from Library employees and Unions, Discussion of Staff Issues – Debbie Carton spoke regarding the 
FY12/13 Budget and provided a copy of the Union Cost Saving Proposals to the Board. (Attachment #1)  

D. Report from Board of Library Trustees 

1. Trustee Burton reported on the recent Planning Commission 6‐2 vote to adopt the zoning amendment for 
Library projects, an upcoming San Pablo Park event sponsored by Max Anderson and Darryl Moore, the 
North Branch closing event held on March 5 and the upcoming Claremont closing event. 

2. Trustee Moore – reported the San Pablo Park event  is  local meeting which will be expanded to a public 
meeting at a future date. 

E. Approval of Agenda 

 

II. BUDGET WORKSHOP 

A. FY 2012/13 Budget Workshop 

Director Corbeil thanked everyone for the helpful, respectful way staff has worked on budget. It’s been really 
helpful to get input from staff at all levels. To‐Be‐Delivered materials were distributed and discussed. 

Dennis Dang gave an update on the budget development process for the  FY2012‐13 biennial budget. 
(Attachments 2 & a‐j) 

Deputy Director Smith reviewed proposed personnel changes. 

Deputy Director Smith reported that budget workshop with staff, Library Council meetings, subcommittees 
and individual staff meetings with the Director and Deputy Director were held. Suggestions were gathered by 
the Union.  

Director Corbeil – Goal is to reduce costs at manager and administrative levels, want to avoid reductions of 
front line staff. Have confidence in the Management Team to make the transitions. 

Trustee Franklin – Is it possible to ask for more support from Friends and Foundation?  The Foundation is 
committed to the Capital Campaign. The Friends will continue to support existing programs. They also 
committed to making a large contribution to the Capital Campaign. 

III. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Kitchell CEM Quarterly Update  – Steve Dewan provided an update on the Branch Improvement Project. 
(Attachment #3)  

North and Claremont are at building permit process with just a couple of issues to resolve. 

North Branch – apparent lower bid was withdrawn, city is reviewing/evaluating the next lowest bid. 

Claremont Branch – received 13 bids, Lowest bid was Fine Line Construction. A protest was received, Fine Line 
Construction is working on their response and the City will evaluate. 

EIR process continues, public comment ended in January, DC&E is assembling the response. The longer the EIR 
process takes the more impact it could have on the overall schedule. 

Chair Kupfer – When will the EIR be finalized? Steve Dewan – The Planning Department runs this part of the 
process, not the Library. We’ll publicize the dates when announced. 

West Branch was generally received well at the Design Review Commission. 

North Branch to be closed 2nd Quarter 2011 – 2nd Quarter 2012. 

 

 



Berkeley Library Board of Trustees Minutes 
March 9, 2011      Page 3 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981‐6195   (510) 548‐1240 (TDD)   (510) 981‐6111 fax   BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR 

R11‐015  Moved by Trustee Franklin, seconded by Trustee Henry‐Golphin, to approve Consent Calendar as presented.  
Motion passed unanimously. 

A. Approve minutes of February 16, 2011 Special Meeting 

R11‐016  Moved by Trustee Franklin seconded by Trustee Henry‐Golphin to approve the minutes of the February 16, 
2011 special meeting of the Board of Library Trustees as presented. Motion passed unanimously. 

 

V. INFORMATION REPORTS 

A. Library Budget Update – No action taken. Staff will continue discussions and development of proposed 
budget. 

B. Update on the Branch Bond Program – No discussion. 

C. February 2011 Monthly Report from Library Director – No discussion. 

D. Library events: No discussion. 
 

VI. AGENDA BUILDING 

A. The next meeting will be  a  Regular Meeting held  at  6:30  PM on Wednesday, April  13, 2011  at  the  South 
Branch Library, 1901 Russell Street, Berkeley. 

Possible agenda topics: 

1. Budget 

2. BOLT Vacancy Interviews 
 

VII. ADJOURNMENT 

R10‐017  Moved  by  Trustee Henry‐Golphin,  seconded  by  Trustee  Franklin,  to  adjourn  the  regular meeting  of  the 
board at 8:06 PM. Motion passed unanimously.  

 

VIII. CLOSED SESSION 

Closed Session called to order by Chair Kupfer at 8:11 PM 

The Trustees went into closed session pursuant to Government code Section 54957, to conduct director of 
library performance evaluation. 

R10‐018  Moved by Trustee Moore, seconded by Trustee Henry‐Golphin, to adjourn the closed session of the meeting 
of the board at 9:00 PM. Motion passed unanimously.  

 
 

This  is to certify that the foregoing  is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the regular meeting of March 9, 
2011 as approved by the Board of Library Trustees 

 

    ___________________________________  

  Donna Corbeil, Library Director, Secretary to BOLT 

 



 



III Consent, Item A 
Attachment  1



III Consent, Item A 
Attachment  1



III Consent, Item A 
Attachment  1



 



 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 
 
 WORKSHOP  CALENDAR 
 March 9, 2011 
 
 
TO:  Board of Library Trustees 

FROM:  Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services  

SUBJECT: FY 2012 & FY 2013 Biennial Budget Development  

The purpose of this presentation is to provide a summary overview of the initial budget-
balancing plan for the Library in anticipation of presentation of a proposed FY 2012 & FY 2013 
biennial Library budget on April 13, 2011.  Direction provided by the board during this meeting 
will be integrated into the development of the proposed biennial budget. 

Background 

• December 2010 – Information relevant to the development of the biennial budget 
presented, including calendar 

• January 2011 – Priorities for the FY 2012 and 2013 Library budget adopted (Attachment 
A) and mid-year budget projections developed 

• February 2011 – Discussion of mid-year budget, projections for all Funds; and baseline 
expenditures  

Revenue and Expenditure Projections 

Major Assumptions: 
• Ending FY 2011 library tax revenue estimated per mid-year analysis projections; 
• Library tax rate projected increase of 1.5% for fiscal years 2012, 2013, and 2014; 
• Vacancy savings rate of 1.5% annually through FY 2014 built into the budget; 
• Unfunded liabilities, i.e. (see: City Council Special Session of January 18, 2011) 

personnel costs updated in baseline to align with contract and known benefit rate 
increases – including increase to CalPERS and medical premiums;  

• Library Foundation funds are directed exclusively to the FF&E Fund (307) for the 
purchase of furniture, fixtures, and equipment associated with Measure FF capital 
improvements; and 

• California state revenue allocations drastically reduced or eliminated. 

Balancing the Budget 

The Library Tax Fund 5-Year projection forecasts annual deficits through FY 2014.  Staff 
proposes a balance of reductions and allocation of carry forward (fund balance) to address the 
structural deficit through this biennial cycle.  Among the proposed measures are a combination 

III Consent, Item A 
Attachment 2



Biennial Budget Development – FY12 & FY13 Page 2 
 
 

2 

of non-personnel and personnel proposed expenditure reductions.  In addition, staff has put 
forth a concerted effort to identify ways for improving the Library’s operational efficiencies. 
Though these ideas do not reflect budgetary line items or reductions in personnel, they may 
enable library staff to better absorb the impact of such changes.   

 The board’s adopted priorities, served as guideposts in developing the proposed budget; and 
prudently included consideration of the Library’s long term fiscal health. The preliminary budget 
plan presented for the board’s consideration seeks to balance the budget over the two-year 
budget cycle and into the future through the implementation of recurring expenditure reductions 
in relation to expected revenues.  The 5-year Library Tax Fund projection is calculated with a 
minimal set of proposals (Attachment C); and with the entire set of all listed proposals 
(Attachment D).  

Summary 

NON-PERSONNEL  

Reductions to the material budget, computers, or capital project funds are not proposed at this 
time due to these line items either having been reduced over the past few years or having been 
held flat.  The proposed changes are included in two formats: in a chart of proposed balancing 
measures (Attachment F) and in a listing by line item (Attachment G). 

Reductions 
• Reduce the number of cell phone service lines – issued Blackberries 
• Reduce the amount for postage, mostly mailers to patrons, but also BOLT packets, 

flyers, etc. 
• Reduce office supplies across-the-board by 5% (50% at closing branches) and reduce 

field supplies in Technical Services  
• Estimated North and Claremont branch closure savings at $49,720  

Additions 
• Replacement of NEC phone system with VoIP 
• Increases to fees and contracts 

PERSONNEL  

Reductions 
• Change the salary savings to 1.5% from the current 1.0%  
• Eliminate positions per attachments equaling 5.275 FTE and add 1.0 FTE 

While many of the impacted positions are vacant, some are occupied; as a result, the Library 
proposes to reassign those employees in filled positions being proposed for reduction to open 
positions.  In no event under these proposals, does the Library envision any staff member’s 
employment to be at risk. One new position is proposed at the Librarian II 1.0 FTE level with an 
offset of an elimination of a Librarian I 0.8 FTE position.  Additionally, there would be 
organizational structure changes related to the elimination of positions.  Library Administrators 
are working closely with staff to develop a revised reporting structure should these changes be 
accepted.  Among the options being explored at this time is to combine the Information 
Technology and Technical Services divisions into a single division under one manager.  

III Consent, Item A 
Attachment 2



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
BUDGET WORKSHOP 
Biennial Budget Development – FY12 & FY13 Page 3 

 
 

3 

Similarly the Children’s Services division would be joined with another unit under a single 
manager to create a new division.  These actions would permit the reduction of one 
management position, representing a substantial cost savings. 

The elimination of the Library Special Services Coordinator position would result in a 
reassessment of this employee’s valued activities, with some tasks and responsibilities 
reassigned to administrative staff and, most likely some priorities adjusted.  Staff affected by this 
change would be reassigned. 

The service and operational implications of all of these proposals have been and continue to be 
under discussion by staff. This is a very brief overview of proposals that will take much planning 
and coordination to institute effectively and without a disruption to services and daily operations.  

NEXT STEPS 

Discussions internally on the proposed changes will continue, in particular in regards to 
personnel reductions and reporting structure.  City Council instructions on the budget require 
the Library to submit proposed changes (Attachment F) for inclusion to the proposed budgeting 
measures submittal to Council on March 22, 2011. The final Library budget may reflect some or 
all of these changes, as well as any additions made after that date. 

At the April 13, 2011 BOLT meeting, staff will bring a proposed FY 2012 and FY 2013 Library 
biennial budget for consideration and possible adoption.  

 

Attachments: 

A. Adopted Library FY 2012 and FY 2013 Budget Priorities 
B. Revenues vs. Expenditures, FY 07-FY 11 
C. Library Tax Fund Projection FY 10 – FY14 (minimal proposed revisions) 
D. Library Tax Fund Projection FY 10 – FY14 (entire proposed revisions) 
E. Other Funds Projections FY 10 – FY14 
F. FY 2012 and FY 2013 Proposed Balancing Measures 
G. Biennial budget FY 2012 and FY 2013, Proposed Expenditure Reductions 
H. Expenditures Year-Over-Year Incremental Change 
I. FY 2012 Budget Proposals Overview 
J. FY 2012 Budget Strategies 

III Consent, Item A 
Attachment 2



 



B
oa

rd
 o

f L
ib

ra
ry

 T
ru

st
ee

s
B

oa
rd

 o
f L

ib
ra

ry
 T

ru
st

ee
s

B
u

d
ge

t 
P

ri
or

it
ie

s E
st

a
b

lis
he

d
 fo

r 
FY

 2
0

12
-2

0
13

•
C

on
fir

m
 s

ta
bi

lit
y 

of
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

bu
dg

et
 a

nd
 p

la
n 

fo
r 

fu
tu

re
op

er
at

io
na

ln
ee

ds
--

in
cl

ud
in

g
es

ta
bl

is
hi

ng
/

fu
tu

re
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l n
ee

ds
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
es

ta
bl

is
hi

ng
 / 

m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 a
 b

al
an

ce
d 

bu
dg

et

•
M

on
ito

r a
nd

 m
an

ag
e 

bo
nd

 fu
nd

s 
(M

ea
su

re
 F

F 
g

(
pr

og
ra

m
)

•
M

ax
im

iz
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s

•
P

ur
su

e 
es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
t o

f a
 re

se
rv

e 
(s

av
in

gs
) f

un
d

III Consent, Item A 
Attachment A



 



Li
b

ra
ry

 T
a

x 
Fu

nd
 (

30
1)

Li
b

ra
ry

 T
a

x 
Fu

nd
 (

30
1)

R
ev

en
u

es
 v

s
Ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

s F
Y

0
7 

–
FY

11

$1
4.

5 

$1
5.

0 

$1
3.

5 

$1
4.

0 

ns

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s

$1
2.

5 

$1
3.

0 

Millio

R
ev

en
ue

s

$1
1.

5 

$1
2.

0 

$
FY

07
FY

08
FY

09
FY

10
FY

11

III Consent, Item A 
Attachment B



 



B
E

R
K

E
L

E
Y

 P
U

B
L

IC
 L

IB
R

A
R

Y
L

IB
R

A
R

Y
 T

A
X

 F
U

N
D

 (3
01

):
 5

-Y
E

A
R

 F
U

N
D

 A
N

A
L

Y
SI

S

3/
8

/2
01

1

FY
 2

01
0

FY
 2

01
1

FY
 2

01
1

FY
 2

01
1

FY
 2

01
2

FY
 2

01
3

FY
 2

01
4

FI
N

A
L

A
D

O
PT

ED
R

EV
IS

ED
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
B

eg
in

ni
ng

 F
un

d 
B

al
an

ce
1,

10
2,

15
1

$ 
  

1,
46

1,
88

3
$ 

  
1,

46
1,

88
3

$ 
   

 
1,

46
1,

88
3

$ 
   

1,
13

9,
00

8
$ 

   
 

19
7,

87
7

$ 
   

   
 

(7
60

,7
10

)
$ 

   
 

R
ev

en
ue

s
  L

ib
ra

ry
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

Ta
x

13
,8

44
,4

89
$ 

 
13

,9
04

,7
89

$ 
 

13
,9

04
,7

89
$ 

   
14

,0
57

,2
43

$ 
 

14
,2

91
,0

70
$ 

   
14

,5
05

,4
36

$ 
   

14
,7

23
,0

18
$ 

 
  F

in
es

/F
ee

s
29

3,
25

4
25

2,
00

0
30

0,
00

0
30

0,
00

0
25

2,
00

0
25

2,
00

0
30

0,
00

0
  D

on
at

io
ns

/P
riv

at
e 

C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

  M
is

c.
 R

ev
en

ue
 / 

In
te

re
st

 / 
R

ef
un

ds
14

,5
32

10
,5

00
10

,5
00

10
,5

00
10

,5
00

10
,5

00
10

,5
00

TO
TA

L 
R

EV
EN

U
E:

14
,1

52
,2

75
$ 

14
,1

67
,2

89
$ 

14
,2

15
,2

89
$ 

  
14

,3
67

,7
43

$ 
 

14
,5

53
,5

70
$ 

  
14

,7
67

,9
36

$ 
  

15
,0

33
,5

18
$ 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s

  O
pe

ra
tio

ns
   

   
  S

al
ar

ie
s,

 W
ag

es
, B

en
ef

its
11

,6
45

,5
44

$ 
 

11
,6

49
,9

48
$ 

 
11

,6
49

,9
48

$ 
   

11
,6

49
,9

48
$ 

 
12

,6
67

,6
95

$ 
   

12
,9

27
,1

49
$ 

   
12

,9
27

,1
49

$ 
 

   
Sa

la
rie

s,
 W

ag
es

, B
en

ef
its

   
   

  l
es

s:
 L

ab
or

 V
ac

an
cy

 S
av

in
gs

11
6,

49
9

11
6,

49
9

11
6,

49
9

11
6,

49
9

11
6,

49
9

11
6,

49
9

   
 P

er
so

nn
el

 
11

,6
45

,5
44

$ 
 

11
,5

33
,4

49
$ 

 
11

,5
33

,4
49

$ 
   

11
,5

33
,4

49
$ 

 
12

,5
51

,1
96

$ 
   

12
,8

10
,6

50
$ 

   
12

,8
10

,6
50

$ 
 

   
 N

on
-P

er
so

nn
el

 
45

8,
70

9
59

8,
99

0
95

0,
76

3
95

0,
76

3
68

0,
56

3
60

7,
69

2
60

7,
69

2
   

 L
ib

ra
ry

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 (i

nc
l T

oo
l L

nd
ng

)
82

3,
06

8
90

0,
00

0
90

0,
00

0
90

0,
00

0
90

0,
00

0
90

0,
00

0
90

0,
00

0
   

 M
is

c.
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s

19
8,

06
3

29
0,

85
0

34
6,

04
2

34
6,

04
2

28
2,

60
0

29
1,

45
0

29
1,

45
0

   
 U

til
iti

es
+T

el
ep

ho
ne

37
8,

34
6

41
2,

26
2

41
2,

26
2

41
2,

26
2

45
9,

54
2

49
5,

51
2

49
5,

51
2

   
 J

an
ito

ria
l

16
7,

42
8

18
0,

00
0

21
5,

63
1

21
5,

63
1

18
0,

00
0

18
0,

00
0

18
0,

00
0

   
 S

of
tw

ar
e 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

54
,0

45
23

4,
30

4
24

3,
25

5
24

3,
25

5
28

5,
80

4
28

5,
80

4
28

5,
80

4
   

 R
FI

D
 L

oa
n 

R
ep

ay
m

en
t

   
 C

om
pu

te
r &

 S
of

tw
ar

e 
P

ur
ch

as
e

31
,0

13
55

,0
00

55
,0

00
55

,0
00

55
,0

00
55

,0
00

55
,0

00
   

 C
IP

 (B
ui

ld
in

g)
12

,5
39

75
,0

00
15

,0
00

15
,0

00
75

,0
00

75
,0

00
75

,0
00

  S
ub

to
ta

l:
13

,7
68

,7
55

$ 
14

,2
79

,8
55

$ 
14

,6
71

,4
02

$ 
  

14
,6

71
,4

02
$ 

 
15

,4
69

,7
05

$ 
  

15
,7

01
,1

08
$ 

  
15

,7
01

,1
08

$ 
  C

ha
rg

es
 F

ro
m

 O
th

er
 D

ep
ts

   
 F

in
an

ce
 - 

B
ill

in
g 

(3
60

1)
12

,6
85

$ 
   

   
  

11
,2

67
$ 

   
   

  
11

,2
67

$ 
   

   
   

 
7,

91
2

$ 
   

   
   

 
12

,8
49

$ 
   

   
   

 
13

,1
18

$ 
   

   
   

 
13

,1
18

$ 
   

   
  

   
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

- A
dm

n 
(5

40
1)

 +
Tx

cs
 (5

40
3)

11
,1

03
11

,5
12

11
,5

74
11

,3
04

12
,1

48
12

,2
97

12
,2

97
   

 In
te

rfu
nd

 T
ra

ns
fe

rs
Su

bt
ot

al
:

23
,7

88
$ 

   
   

 
22

,7
79

$ 
   

   
 

22
,8

41
$ 

   
   

   
19

,2
16

$ 
   

   
  

24
,9

97
$ 

   
   

   
25

,4
15

$ 
   

   
   

25
,4

15
$ 

   
   

 

TO
TA

L 
EX

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

ES
:

13
,7

92
,5

43
$ 

14
,3

02
,6

34
$ 

14
,6

94
,2

43
$ 

  
14

,6
90

,6
18

$ 
 

15
,4

94
,7

02
$ 

  
15

,7
26

,5
23

$ 
  

15
,7

26
,5

23
$ 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Su

rp
lu

s/
(S

ho
rt

fa
ll)

 
{R

ev
 - 

Ex
p}

35
9,

73
2

$ 
   

   
(1

35
,3

45
)

$ 
   

  
(4

78
,9

54
)

$ 
   

   
 

(3
22

,8
75

)
$ 

   
  

(9
41

,1
32

)
$ 

   
   

 
(9

58
,5

87
)

$ 
   

   
 

(6
93

,0
05

)
$ 

   
  

G
R

O
SS

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

LA
N

C
E 

{B
al

 +
 R

ev
 - 

Ex
p}

1,
46

1,
88

3
$ 

   
1,

32
6,

53
8

$ 
   

98
2,

92
9

$ 
   

   
  

1,
13

9,
00

8
$ 

   
19

7,
87

7
$ 

   
   

  
(7

60
,7

10
)

$ 
   

   
 

(1
,4

53
,7

15
)

$ 
  

:\A
D

M
IN

\F
IN

A
N

C
E

\B
U

D
G

E
T

S
\5

Y
E

A
R

\A
llF

u
n

d
s
\[

P
rjc

tn
 5

Y
R

_F
Y

1
0

 1
1

_
1

5
F

E
B

1
1

.x
ls

x]
30

1
pr

in
te

d:
  

  
 8

-M
ar

-1
1

III Consent, Item A 
Attachment C



 



B
E

R
K

E
L

E
Y

 P
U

B
L

IC
 L

IB
R

A
R

Y
L

IB
R

A
R

Y
 T

A
X

 F
U

N
D

 (3
01

):
 5

-Y
E

A
R

 F
U

N
D

 A
N

A
L

Y
SI

S

3/
8

/2
01

1

FY
 2

01
0

FY
 2

01
1

FY
 2

01
1

FY
 2

01
1

FY
 2

01
2

FY
 2

01
3

FY
 2

01
4

FI
N

A
L

A
D

O
PT

ED
R

EV
IS

ED
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
B

eg
in

ni
ng

 F
un

d 
B

al
an

ce
1,

10
2,

15
1

$ 
  

1,
46

1,
88

3
$ 

  
1,

46
1,

88
3

$ 
   

 
1,

46
1,

88
3

$ 
   

1,
13

9,
00

8
$ 

   
 

77
0,

86
9

$ 
   

   
 

40
7,

26
2

$ 
   

  
R

ev
en

ue
s

  L
ib

ra
ry

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Ta

x
13

,8
44

,4
89

$ 
 

13
,9

04
,7

89
$ 

 
13

,9
04

,7
89

$ 
   

14
,0

57
,2

43
$ 

 
14

,2
91

,0
70

$ 
   

14
,5

05
,4

36
$ 

   
14

,7
23

,0
18

$ 
 

  F
in

es
/F

ee
s

29
3,

25
4

25
2,

00
0

30
0,

00
0

30
0,

00
0

25
2,

00
0

25
2,

00
0

30
0,

00
0

  D
on

at
io

ns
/P

riv
at

e 
C

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
  M

is
c.

 R
ev

en
ue

 / 
In

te
re

st
 / 

R
ef

un
ds

14
,5

32
10

,5
00

10
,5

00
10

,5
00

10
,5

00
10

,5
00

10
,5

00
TO

TA
L 

R
EV

EN
U

E:
14

,1
52

,2
75

$ 
14

,1
67

,2
89

$ 
14

,2
15

,2
89

$ 
  

14
,3

67
,7

43
$ 

 
14

,5
53

,5
70

$ 
  

14
,7

67
,9

36
$ 

  
15

,0
33

,5
18

$ 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s
  O

pe
ra

tio
ns

   
   

  S
al

ar
ie

s,
 W

ag
es

, B
en

ef
its

11
,6

45
,5

44
$ 

 
11

,6
49

,9
48

$ 
 

11
,6

49
,9

48
$ 

   
11

,6
49

,9
48

$ 
 

12
,1

60
,6

13
$ 

   
12

,4
01

,6
95

$ 
   

12
,4

01
,6

95
$ 

 
   

Sa
la

rie
s,

 W
ag

es
, B

en
ef

its
   

   
  l

es
s:

 L
ab

or
 V

ac
an

cy
 S

av
in

gs
11

6,
49

9
11

6,
49

9
11

6,
49

9
18

2,
40

9
18

6,
02

5
18

6,
02

5
   

 P
er

so
nn

el
 

11
,6

45
,5

44
$ 

 
11

,5
33

,4
49

$ 
 

11
,5

33
,4

49
$ 

   
11

,5
33

,4
49

$ 
 

11
,9

78
,2

04
$ 

   
12

,2
15

,6
70

$ 
   

12
,2

15
,6

70
$ 

 
   

 N
on

-P
er

so
nn

el
 

45
8,

70
9

59
8,

99
0

95
0,

76
3

95
0,

76
3

68
0,

56
3

60
7,

69
2

60
7,

69
2

   
 L

ib
ra

ry
 M

at
er

ia
ls

 (i
nc

l T
oo

l L
nd

ng
)

82
3,

06
8

90
0,

00
0

90
0,

00
0

90
0,

00
0

90
0,

00
0

90
0,

00
0

90
0,

00
0

   
 M

is
c.

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l S
er

vi
ce

s
19

8,
06

3
29

0,
85

0
34

6,
04

2
34

6,
04

2
28

2,
60

0
29

1,
45

0
29

1,
45

0
   

 U
til

iti
es

+T
el

ep
ho

ne
37

8,
34

6
41

2,
26

2
41

2,
26

2
41

2,
26

2
45

9,
54

2
49

5,
51

2
49

5,
51

2
   

 J
an

ito
ria

l
16

7,
42

8
18

0,
00

0
21

5,
63

1
21

5,
63

1
18

0,
00

0
18

0,
00

0
18

0,
00

0
   

 S
of

tw
ar

e 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
54

,0
45

23
4,

30
4

24
3,

25
5

24
3,

25
5

28
5,

80
4

28
5,

80
4

28
5,

80
4

   
 R

FI
D

 L
oa

n 
R

ep
ay

m
en

t
   

 C
om

pu
te

r &
 S

of
tw

ar
e 

P
ur

ch
as

e
31

,0
13

55
,0

00
55

,0
00

55
,0

00
55

,0
00

55
,0

00
55

,0
00

   
 C

IP
 (B

ui
ld

in
g)

12
,5

39
75

,0
00

15
,0

00
15

,0
00

75
,0

00
75

,0
00

75
,0

00
  S

ub
to

ta
l:

13
,7

68
,7

55
$ 

14
,2

79
,8

55
$ 

14
,6

71
,4

02
$ 

  
14

,6
71

,4
02

$ 
 

14
,8

96
,7

13
$ 

  
15

,1
06

,1
28

$ 
  

15
,1

06
,1

28
$ 

  C
ha

rg
es

 F
ro

m
 O

th
er

 D
ep

ts
   

 F
in

an
ce

 - 
B

ill
in

g 
(3

60
1)

12
,6

85
$ 

   
   

  
11

,2
67

$ 
   

   
  

11
,2

67
$ 

   
   

   
 

7,
91

2
$ 

   
   

   
 

12
,8

49
$ 

   
   

   
 

13
,1

18
$ 

   
   

   
 

13
,1

18
$ 

   
   

  
   

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 
- A

dm
n 

(5
40

1)
 +

Tx
cs

 (5
40

3)
11

,1
03

11
,5

12
11

,5
74

11
,3

04
12

,1
48

12
,2

97
12

,2
97

   
 In

te
rfu

nd
 T

ra
ns

fe
rs

Su
bt

ot
al

:
23

,7
88

$ 
   

   
 

22
,7

79
$ 

   
   

 
22

,8
41

$ 
   

   
   

19
,2

16
$ 

   
   

  
24

,9
97

$ 
   

   
   

25
,4

15
$ 

   
   

   
25

,4
15

$ 
   

   
 

TO
TA

L 
EX

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

ES
:

13
,7

92
,5

43
$ 

14
,3

02
,6

34
$ 

14
,6

94
,2

43
$ 

  
14

,6
90

,6
18

$ 
 

14
,9

21
,7

10
$ 

  
15

,1
31

,5
43

$ 
  

15
,1

31
,5

43
$ 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Su

rp
lu

s/
(S

ho
rt

fa
ll)

 
{R

ev
 - 

Ex
p}

35
9,

73
2

$ 
   

   
(1

35
,3

45
)

$ 
   

  
(4

78
,9

54
)

$ 
   

   
 

(3
22

,8
75

)
$ 

   
  

(3
68

,1
40

)
$ 

   
   

 
(3

63
,6

07
)

$ 
   

   
 

(9
8,

02
5)

$ 
   

   
 

G
R

O
SS

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

LA
N

C
E 

{B
al

 +
 R

ev
 - 

Ex
p}

1,
46

1,
88

3
$ 

   
1,

32
6,

53
8

$ 
   

98
2,

92
9

$ 
   

   
  

1,
13

9,
00

8
$ 

   
77

0,
86

9
$ 

   
   

  
40

7,
26

2
$ 

   
   

  
30

9,
23

7
$ 

   
   

C
:\U

se
rs

\d
d

a
n

d
\D

e
s
k
to

p
\[P

rjc
tn

 5
Y

R
_L

C
 4

M
A

R
11

.x
ls

x]
30

1
pr

in
te

d:
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
8

-M
ar

-1
1

III Consent, Item A 
Attachment D



 



B
E

R
K

E
L

E
Y

 P
U

B
L

IC
 L

IB
R

A
R

Y
O

T
H

E
R

 F
U

N
D

S 
(3

02
, 3

04
, 3

05
):

 5
-Y

E
A

R
 F

U
N

D
 A

N
A

L
Y

SI
S

3/
8

/2
01

1

FY
 2

01
0

FY
 2

01
1

FY
 2

01
1

FY
 2

01
1

FY
 2

01
2

FY
 2

01
3

FY
 2

01
4

FI
N

A
L

A
D

O
PT

ED
R

EV
IS

ED
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
PR

O
JE

C
TE

D
B

eg
in

ni
ng

 F
un

d 
B

al
an

ce
17

6,
75

8
$ 

   
   

14
7,

73
4

$ 
   

   
14

7,
73

4
$ 

   
   

  
14

7,
73

4
$ 

   
   

 
17

6,
33

4
$ 

   
   

19
6,

33
4

$ 
   

   
19

6,
33

4
$ 

   
   

  D
ire

ct
 L

oa
n 

Fu
nd

 (3
02

)
18

8,
85

3
14

2,
69

6
14

2,
69

6
14

2,
69

6
  G

ra
nt

s 
Fu

nd
 (3

04
)

(1
,6

55
)

(1
6,

69
3)

(1
6,

69
3)

(1
6,

69
3)

  P
ub

lic
 L

ib
ra

ry
 F

un
d 

(3
05

)
(1

0,
44

0)
21

,7
31

21
,7

31
21

,7
31

R
ev

en
ue

s
  D

ire
ct

 L
oa

n 
Fu

nd
10

5,
97

3
$ 

   
   

 
70

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

70
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

70
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  L

ite
ra

cy
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

&
 L

S
TA

49
,6

32
50

,0
00

50
,0

00
37

,4
61

  M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
G

ra
nt

 R
ev

en
ue

3,
75

0
23

,0
00

  P
ub

lic
 L

ib
ra

ry
 F

un
d 

(S
B

 3
58

)
37

,9
61

40
,0

00
40

,0
00

36
,1

56
  O

th
er

18
,1

05
20

,0
00

20
,0

00
20

,0
00

20
,0

00
TO

TA
L 

R
EV

EN
U

E:
21

5,
42

1
$ 

   
   

18
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
18

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

  
18

6,
61

7
$ 

   
   

 
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re
s

  O
pe

ra
tio

ns
   

 P
er

so
nn

el
 

61
,0

51
$ 

   
   

   
53

,7
05

$ 
   

   
   

56
,0

74
$ 

   
   

   
  

56
,0

74
$ 

   
   

   
   

 N
on

-P
er

so
nn

el
 

18
3,

39
4

76
,0

00
78

,9
43

10
1,

94
3

   
 L

ib
ra

ry
 M

at
er

ia
ls

TO
TA

L 
EX

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

ES
:

24
4,

44
5

$ 
   

   
12

9,
70

5
$ 

   
   

13
5,

01
7

$ 
   

   
  

15
8,

01
7

$ 
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
Su

rp
lu

s/
Sh

or
tfa

ll 
(R

ev
 - 

Ex
p)

(2
9,

02
4)

$ 
   

   
 

50
,2

95
$ 

   
   

   
44

,9
83

$ 
   

   
   

  
28

,6
00

$ 
   

   
   

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
G

R
O

SS
 F

U
N

D
 B

A
LA

N
C

E 
(B

al
 +

 R
ev

 - 
Ex

p)
14

7,
73

4
$ 

   
   

 
19

8,
02

9
$ 

   
   

 
19

2,
71

7
$ 

   
   

   
17

6,
33

4
$ 

   
   

 
19

6,
33

4
$ 

   
   

 
19

6,
33

4
$ 

   
   

 
19

6,
33

4
$ 

   
   

 
C

:\U
se

rs
\d

d
a
n
g
\D

e
s
k
to

p
\[P

rjc
tn

 5
Y

R
_L

C
 4

M
A

R
11

 (2
).x

ls
x]

O
th

r
pr

in
te

d:
  
  
  
8
-M

ar
-1

1

Attachment E



 



FY 2012 And FY 2013 Proposed Balancing Measures
Department: Library

Fund Fund Name Description Program Impacts F/V/H
FY 2012 

FTE  OT/R  Account Code 
FY 2012 
Amount

FY 2013 
FTE OT/R

FY 2013 
Amount

301 Library Tax Eliminate Program: Youth Enrollee 
Intern Program

Library / 
Youth 
Services

No impact loss to core library 
services; discontinuation of 
community service training 
program.

H 1.4000 R
 301-VARI-450.11-01+  
(9202/9302/9303/9304/
9305) 

($22,480.00) 1.4000 R ($22,590.00)

301 Library Tax Eliminate Program: Intern progam 
(4 placements)

Library / 
Circulation

No impact loss to core library 
services; discontinuation  of paid 
community service program; 
volunteers' program to continue.

H 0.5150 R  301-9201-450.11-03+ ($9,187.00) 0.5150 R ($9,187.00)

301 Library Tax Eliminate position: Youth Services - 
Library Services Manager

Library / 
Youth 
Services

Impact offset by Librarian II 
upgrade, reassigned Sup. 
Librarian, and realignment of  
Manager position

V 1.0000 R  301-9202-450.11-01+ ($137,575.00) R ($140,226.00)

301 Library Tax Eliminate position: Senior Librarian 
Library / 
Youth 
Services

Impact effect TBD. Coordination 
of delivery of Youth Services to 
be modified.

F 1.0000 R  301-9202-450.11-01+ ($131,515.00) 1.0000 R ($134,099.00)

301 Library Tax Eliminate position: Librarian I
Library / 
Childrens 
Services

No impact loss; position 
replaced by upgraded Librarian 
II.

V 0.8000 R  301-9202-450.11-01+ ($82,991.00) 0.8000 R ($83,917.00)

301 Library Tax Upgrade position: Librarian II
Library / 
Childrens 
Services

No impact loss; position is 
upgraded to mitigate 
reassignment of Youth Services 
Manager position. 

V 1.0000 R  301-9202-450.11-01+ $143,294.63 1.0000 R $136,644.00

301 Library Tax Eliminate position: Library 
Specialist II

Library / 
Claremont

Impact effect TBD. 
Responsibilites and tasks to shift 
to other staff.

F 0.5000 R  301-9305-450.11-01+ ($52,861.00) 0.5000 R ($53,385.00)

301 Library Tax Eliminate position: Library Special 
Services Coordinator 

Library / 
Outreach

Moderate reduction to 
community relations services. 
Current responsibilities and 
tasks to be reassigned to 
originating division or redirected 
to other divisions.

F 1.0000 R  301-9306-450.11-01+ ($143,296.00) 1.0000 R ($146,969.00)

301 Library Tax Eliminate position: Library 
Assistant

Library / 
Tech 
Services

Minimal impact to core library 
services; long-term vacancy; 
duties already absorbed.

V/H 0.6000 R  301-9401-450.11-01+ ($53,711.00) 0.6000 R ($54,965.00)

301 Library Tax Eliminate position: Library Aide
Library / 
Tech 
Services

Minimal impact to core library 
services; long-term vacancy; 
duties already absorbed.

V/H 0.0375 R  301-9401-450.11-04+ ($16,759.16) 0.0375 R ($16,759.16)
Services duties already absorbed.

301 Library Tax Increased expected Salary Savings Library / 
Library

Impact TBD; higher salary 
savings due to change in rate 
from 1% to 1.5% to be 
generated through reduced 
backfilling

O  301-9101-450.20-99 ($182,409.20) O ($186,025.43)

301 Library Tax Program participation fees Library / 
Admin

Increased membership costs for 
Downtown Berkeley PBID R  301-9101-450.40-10 $14,527.00 R $15,000.00

301 Library Tax Program participation fees Library / 
Admin

Increased membership costs for 
BALIS library consortium R  301-9101-450.40-10 $8,500.00 R $11,000.00

301 Library Tax Reduce Issued Blackberries Library / 
Admin No impact loss; 5 qty. R  301-9101-450.40-33 ($3,000.00) R ($3,000.00)

301 Library Tax Changeover to VoIP phone system 
in coordination with CoB

Library / 
Capital 
Prgms

Required projected hardware, 
software, and installation costs. O  301-9150-450.40-31 $86,250.00 O $86,250.00

301 Library Tax Acquisition of new self-check 
system

Library / 
Capital 
Prgms

Vendor contracting costs to 
complete project installation. O  301-9150-450.70-41 $127,896.00 O $38,892.00

301 Library Tax Integrated library system annual 
fees Library / I.T. Increased fees for circulation 

and cataloguing system R  301-9102-450.30-47 $51,500.00 R $51,500.00

301 Library Tax Patron notification services Library / 
Circulation

Patron notification to shift from 
postage to lower cost electronic 
means.

R  301-9201-450.51-10 ($10,000.00) R ($10,000.00)

301 Library Tax Reduction to purchased office 
supplies

Library / 
Various

5% across board cut; 
centralization and 
standardization of purchases

O  301-VARI-450.55-11 ($1,270.00) O ($1,370.00)

301 Library Tax Change of vendor for electronic 
library material subscription service

Library / 
T.S. Collctn Similar services at lower cost R  301-9401-450.55-11 ($14,600.00) R ($14,600.00)

301 Library Tax Reduction to purchased field 
supplies

Library / 
T.S. Collctn

Lower quantity of tagging labels  
due to new self-check system O  301-9401-450.55-20 ($20,000.00) O ($12,000.00)

301 Library Tax North and Claremont branch 
closures

Library / 
Mse FF

Anticipated savings to due 
Measure FF construction O  301-VARI-450.VARI ($49,720.00)

($499,406.73) ($549,806.59)BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY

Legend:
F/V/H = Filled/Vacant/Hourly (C = cut; A = Add)
OT/R = One-time/ Recurring

FY 12  13 Balancing Measures 3/9/2011 12:07 PM

III Consent, Item A 
Attachment F



 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             9‐Mar‐11

BIENNIAL BUDGET FY 2012 + FY 2013
PROPOSED EXPENDITURE REDUCTIONS
Fund DepDiv Base EleObj Description FY12 FY13 Comment Date
301 9101 450 40‐10 Professional Dues and Fee 14,527 15,000 Downtown PBID 14‐Feb‐11
301 9101 450 40‐10 Professional Dues and Fee 8,500 11,000 Higher PLP (BALIS) fee 20‐Dec‐10
301 9101 450 40‐33 Communications: Cellular (3,000) (3,000) Delete Blackberries (5qty): IT (4 qty) and JD 28‐Feb‐11
301 9101 450 55‐11 Office Supplies (300) (300) Reduce: 5% 14‐Feb‐11
301 9101 450 75‐60 City Parking Permits 20 20 To match $500 permit cost (1 qty) 28‐Feb‐11
301 9102 450 30‐47 Maint Svcs: Software Maintenance 51,500 51,500 Millenium 14‐Feb‐11
301 9102 450 40‐61 Travel: Commerical Travel (4,000) (4,000) Activity completed: Self‐check research travel 20‐Dec‐10
301 9102 450 40‐62 Travel: Meals and Lodging (6,000) (6,000) Activity completed: Self‐check research travel 20‐Dec‐10
301 9102 450 55‐11 Office Supplies (100) (100) Reduce: 5% 14‐Feb‐11
301 9150 450 40‐31 Communications: Telephones 86,250 86,250 VoIP system installation 14‐Feb‐11
301 9150 450 70‐41 Machinery and Equipment 127,896 38,892 Self‐check system replacement (Bibliotheca) 14‐Feb‐11
301 9201 450 30‐42 Maint Svcs: Office Equip (4,000) (4,000) JD: projects lower expense 20‐Dec‐10
301 9201 450 30‐51 Bank Credit Card Fees 2,400 2,400 CC fees 28‐Feb‐11
301 9201 450 40‐10 Professional Dues and Fee (2,000) (2,000) JD: projects lower expense 20‐Dec‐10
301 9201 450 40‐50 Printing and Binding (5,000) (5,000) JD: projects lower expense 20‐Dec‐10
301 9201 450 51‐10 Postage (10,000) (10,000) Reduce: sent patron notices 14‐Feb‐11
301 9201 450 55‐11 Office Supplies (250) (250) Reduce: 5% 14‐Feb‐11
301 9202 450 55‐11 Office Supplies (125) (125) Reduce: 5% 14‐Feb‐11
301 9203 450 55‐11 Office Supplies (75) (75) Reduce: 5% 14‐Feb‐11
301 9204 450 55‐11 Office Supplies (100) (100) Reduce: 5% 14‐Feb‐11
301 9205 450 55‐11 Office Supplies (45) (45) Reduce: 5% 14‐Feb‐11
301 9301 450 55‐11 Office Supplies (10) (10) Reduce: 5% 14‐Feb‐11
301 9302 450 30‐38 Maint Svcs: Bldg & Structures 3,800 Expense Shifting 28‐Feb‐11
301 9302 450 30‐42 Maint Svcs: Office Equip (500) FY12: Branch Closure Savings 28‐Feb‐11
301 9302 450 30‐43 Maint Svcs: Bldg & Structures (4,500) (3,800) FY12: Branch Closure Savings; FY13 Expense Shifting 28‐Feb‐11
301 9302 450 30‐51 Bank Credit Card Fees 60 240 CC fees 28‐Feb‐11
301 9302 450 40‐31 Communications: Telephones (3,000) FY12: Branch Closure Savings 28‐Feb‐11
301 9302 450 40‐41 Utilities: Water (4,500) FY12: Branch Closure Savings 28‐Feb‐11
301 9302 450 40‐42 Utilities: Gas/Electricity (11,250) FY12: Branch Closure Savings 28‐Feb‐11
301 9302 450 40‐43 Utilities: Refuse (1,620) FY12: Branch Closure Savings 28‐Feb‐11
301 9302 450 55‐11 Office Supplies (500) (50) FY12: Branch Closure Savings; FY13: Reduce: 5% 28‐Feb‐11
301 9302 450 55‐20 Field Supplies (1,000) FY12: Branch Closure Savings 28‐Feb‐11
301 9303 450 30‐38 Maint Svcs: Bldg & Structures 3,800 3,800 Expense Shifting 28‐Feb‐11
301 9303 450 30‐43 Maint Svcs: Bldg & Structures (3,800) (3,800) Expense Shifting 28‐Feb‐11
301 9303 450 30‐51 Bank Credit Card Fees 240 240 CC fees 28‐Feb‐11
301 9303 450 55‐11 Office Supplies (60) (60) Reduce: 5% 14‐Feb‐11
301 9304 450 30‐38 Maint Svcs: Bldg & Structures 3,800 3,800 Expense Shifting 28‐Feb‐11
301 9304 450 30‐43 Maint Svcs: Bldg & Structures (3,800) (3,800) Expense Shifting 28‐Feb‐11
301 9304 450 30‐51 Bank Credit Card Fees 240 240 CC fees 28‐Feb‐11
301 9304 450 55‐11 Office Supplies (45) (45) Reduce: 5% 14‐Feb‐11
301 9305 450 30‐38 Maint Svcs: Bldg & Structures (1,250) 3,800 FY12: Branch Closure Savings; FY13 Expense Shifting 28‐Feb‐11
301 9305 450 30‐43 Maint Svcs: Bldg & Structures (4,500) (3,800) FY12: Branch Closure Savings; FY13 Expense Shifting 28‐Feb‐11
301 9305 450 30‐51 Bank Credit Card Fees 60 240 CC fees 28‐Feb‐11
301 9305 450 40‐31 Communications: Telephones (2,625) FY12: Branch Closure Savings 28‐Feb‐11
301 9305 450 40‐41 Utilities: Water (975) FY12: Branch Closure Savings 28‐Feb‐11
301 9305 450 40‐42 Utilities: Gas/Electricity (10,500) FY12: Branch Closure Savings 28‐Feb‐11
301 9305 450 40‐43 Utilities: Refuse (1,500) FY12: Branch Closure Savings 28‐Feb‐11
301 9305 450 55‐11 Office Supplies (500) (50) FY12: Branch Closure Savings; FY13: Reduce: 5% 28‐Feb‐11
301 9305 450 55‐20 Field Supplies (1,000) FY12: Branch Closure Savings 28‐Feb‐11
301 9306 450 55‐11 Office Supplies (50) (50) Reduce: 5% 14‐Feb‐11
301 9307 450 55‐11 Office Supplies (10) (10) Reduce: 5% 14‐Feb‐11
301 9401 450 30‐38 Professional: Misc Prof Svcs (14,600) (14,600) Lower costs due to replacing OCLC by Sky River 20‐Dec‐10
301 9401 450 55‐11 Office Supplies (100) (100) Reduce: 5% 14‐Feb‐11
301 9401 450 55‐20 Field Supplies (20,000) (12,000) Lower qty of RFID tags to purchase 20‐Dec‐10
308 9902 470 82‐30 Debt Svc ‐ Issuance Costs (2,400) (2,400) Not applicable in FY12 & FY13 20‐Dec‐10

Non‐Labor 169,703 141,652
301 9306 450 (143,297) (146,968) Cut: Library Special Services Coordinator
301 9202 450 (131,515) (134,099) Cut: Senior Librarian
301 9305 450 (52,862) (53,386) Cut: Library Specialist II
301 9401 450 (53,711) (54,966) Cut: Library Assistant
301 9305 450 (22,480) (22,590) Cut: Youth Enrollee Intern Program
301 9401 450 (16,759) (16,759) Cut: Library Aide 0.375 FTE
301 9201 450 (9,187) (9,187) Cut: Intern placement positions (4)
301 9202 450 (82,992) (83,917) Cut: 80% Librarian I
301 9202 450 143,297 136,644 Add: 100% Librarian II; includes Y‐Rating for Year 1
301 9202 450 (137,575) (140,226) Cut: Youth Services ‐ Library Services Manager
301 9101 450 20‐99 Salary Savings (182,409) (186,025) at 1.5% 14‐Feb‐11

Labor (689,491) (711,479)
TOTAL (519,788) (569,827)

III Consent, Item A 
Attachment G



 



Fu
nd

 3
0

1: 
C

a
re

er
 S

ta
ff

 11
-0

1
Fu

nd
 3

0
1: 

C
a

re
er

 S
ta

ff
 11

0
1

Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
s Y

-O
-Y

 In
cr

em
en

ta
l C

ha
ng

e

FY
To

ta
l

St
ra

ig
ht

 
Ti

m
e

M
ed

ic
al

PE
R

S
O

th
er

 F
B

20
11

20
11

--
--

--
--

--

20
12

$1
,0

15
,3

98
 

$3
89

,8
35

$2
07

,6
32

$3
26

,0
31

$9
1,

90
0

20
13

$2
65

17
9

$3
6

51
2

$1
19

07
4

$7
9

44
5

$2
1

14
8

20
13

$2
65

,1
79

 
$3

6,
51

2
$1

19
,0

74
$7

9,
44

5 
$2

1,
14

8 

20
12

9.
2%

5.
6%

24
.2

%
17

.7
%

6.
7%

20
13

2
1%

0
5%

11
2%

3
7%

1
4%

20
13

2.
1%

0.
5%

11
.2

%
3.

7%
1.

4%

III Consent, Item A 
Attachment H



 



BE
RK

EL
EY
 P
U
BL
IC
 L
IB
RA

RY
LI
BR

A
RY

 T
A
X 
FU

N
D
 (3

01
)

FY
12
: B

U
D
G
ET
 P
RO

PO
SA

LS

D
ec
re
as
e 
1.
2%

 =
 S
al
ar
y 
Sa
vi
ng
s 
@
 1
.5
%

In
cr
ea
se
 1
.1
%
 =
 N
on

‐p
er
so
nn

el
 E
xp
en

se
s

D
ec
re
as
e 
3.
3%

 =
 P
er
so
nn

el

Pe
rs
on

ne
l ‐
 B
as
el
in
e

N
on

‐P
er
so
nn

el
 ‐ 
Ba

se
lin
e

EX
P:
 E
ac
h 
sq
ua
re
 re

pr
es
en
ts
 $
15

4,
39

0 
of
 $
15

,4
39

,0
98

 b
as
el
in
e 
bu

dg
et

   
Pe
rs
on

ne
l, 
(3
.3
%
)

   
Sa
la
ry
 S
av
in
gs
 @

 1
.5
%
, (
1.
2%

)

   
N
on

‐p
er
so
nn

el
, 1
.1
%

A
dj
us
te
d 
Bu

dg
et
 9
6.
7%

, (
3.
4%

)

(5
07

,0
82

)

17
2,
10

3

(1
82

,4
09

)

$1
4,
92

1,
71

0

Ba
se
lin
e 
Bu

dg
et

$1
5,
43

9,
09

8

III Consent, Item A 
Attachment I



 



B
u

d
ge

t 
St

ra
te

gi
es

B
u

d
ge

t 
St

ra
te

gi
es

fo
r 

FY
 2

0
12

-2
0

13

•
M

ul
ti-

ye
ar

 a
pp

ro
ac

h

•
Te

m
po

ra
ry

 b
ud

ge
t a

nd
 s

av
in

gs
 s

ol
ut

io
ns

•
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 a
nd

 s
av

in
gs

 s
hi

fti
ng

•
pr

oj
ec

t d
ef

er
ra

ls
 a

nd
 s

ca
le

ba
ck

s

•
ad

ju
st

 la
bo

r v
ac

an
cy

 s
av

in
gs

 ra
te

•
as

se
t s

al
es

III Consent, Item A 
Attachment J



 



1

March 9, 2011

Board of Library Trustees - Progress Report for

Branch Library Improvements Project

BOLT Progress Report 
Branch Library Improvement Project

March 9, 2011

Agenda

•General Program Update

•Progress Since 11/10/10

-Design Progress, Milestones

- Permitting Progress, Milestones

-Bid Results

•What’s Next?

•Schedule Update

•Budget & Cost Control Update

III Consent, Item A 
Attachment 3



2

BOLT Progress Report 
Branch Library Improvement Project

March 9, 2011

General Program Update – Progress Since 05/12/10

• DESIGN PROGRESS, MILESTONES

•Design Process:

•Conceptual Design

•Schematic Design

•Design Development

•Construction Documents

•1 project at 50% Construction Document level (South)

•1 project at end of Design Development phase (West)

BOLT Progress Report 
Branch Library Improvement Project

March 9, 2011

General Program Update – Progress Since 05/12/10

• PERMIT PROCESS, MILESTONES (CONTINUED)

•Structural Alteration Permit approved for North

•Structural Alteration Permit Application submitted for West in July 
2010 - No action to be taken until further in EIR process

•Building Permit Applications submitted for 2 projects (North and 
Claremont) – Both have only a couple of outstanding issues

III Consent, Item A 
Attachment 3



3

BOLT Progress Report 
Branch Library Improvement Project

March 9, 2011

General Program Update – Progress Since 05/12/10

• PERMIT PROCESS, MILESTONES

•Process:

- Planning Permits

•Use Permit 

•Structural Alteration Permit 

-Development of design through Construction Documents

- Building Permit

•Use Permits approved for North & Claremont  – Appeal withdrawn and 

Notice of Exemption filed with County of Alameda

•Use Permit Application submitted for South in July 2010 – No action 
to be taken until further in EIR process

•Use Permit Application submitted for West in January 2011 – No 
action to be taken until further in EIR process

BOLT Progress Report 
Branch Library Improvement Project

March 9, 2011

General Program Update – Progress Since 05/12/10

• BID RESULTS - NORTH

•Bid Opening 02/17/11, 6 bids received

•Apparent low bid $4.25M (DL Falk – bid later withdrawn)

•2nd bid $4.80M (John Plane Construction)

•Next steps under consideration by City of Berkeley

• BID RESULTS - CLAREMONT

•Bid Opening 03/01/11, 13 bids received

•Apparent low bid $2.97M (Fine Line Construction)

•Bid protest under review

III Consent, Item A 
Attachment 3



4

BOLT Progress Report 
Branch Library Improvement Project

March 9, 2011

General Program Update – What’s Next?

• Combined Program Environmental Impact Report

• Draft EIR published December 2010 with Public Comment period ending 

01/31/11

• Hearings Ongoing – Landmarks Preservation Commission, Zoning Adjustments 

Board, Planning Commission

• DC&E assembling Response to Comments document as part of Final EIR

• LEED design submittal for North and Claremont

• Design Progress on hold for South and West

• Preliminary review of West design by Design Review Committee 

BOLT Progress Report 
Branch Library Improvement Project

March 9, 2011

Master Schedule 

III Consent, Item A 
Attachment 3



5

BOLT Progress Report 
Branch Library Improvement Project

March 9, 2011

Schedule Update

• Since 11/10/10 report, detailed project schedules further 
developed for each branch

• Updates to project schedules include:

•Actual progress to date

•Clarifications & detail added to City building permit process, 
bidding procedures and contract execution

• EIR process duration could impact South and West project 
schedules as well as overall program schedule

BOLT Progress Report 
Branch Library Improvement Project

March 9, 2011

Schedule Update

• North Branch

•Delay to project schedule due to project over-bid

•Anticipated closure (revised) – 2nd Quarter 2011 to 2nd Quarter 
2012

•Anticipated construction duration – 1 year

• Claremont Branch 

•Slight delay anticipated due to bid protest

•Anticipated Closure – 1st Quarter 2011 to 1st Quarter 2012 (no 
change)

•Anticipated construction duration – 9 months

III Consent, Item A 
Attachment 3



6

BOLT Progress Report 
Branch Library Improvement Project

March 9, 2011

Budget & Cost Control Update

•Program Budget reviewed 02/24/11 and re-

allocations made.

• Pro-rated portion of program contingency moved to 

North branch project contingency

BOLT Progress Report 
Branch Library Improvement Project

March 9, 2011

III Consent, Item A 
Attachment 3



7

BOLT Progress Report 
Branch Library Improvement Project

March 9, 2011

Budget & Cost Control Update

•As of 02/28/11 - $2,676,428 of the $26M Bond 

Fund Expended – 10.3%

• Current expenses – Building permit fees, EIR & litigation work, Public 

Art selection and design

• Current budget assumes keeping to Master Schedule -

Schedule changes directly impact budget

BOLT Progress Report 
Branch Library Improvement Project

March 9, 2011

III Consent, Item A 
Attachment 3



8

BOLT Progress Report 
Branch Library Improvement Project

March 9, 2011

QUESTIONS?

III Consent, Item A 
Attachment 3



Berkeley Public Library 
Board of Library Trustees 

 
Special Meeting  MINUTES  Central Branch 
March 17, 2011  12:30 p.m.  2090 Kittredge Street 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981-6195  (510) 548-1240 (TDD)  (510) 981-6111 fax  BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

III Consent, Item B 

I. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 
A copy of the agenda packet and a digital recording of this meeting is accessible at 

http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/about_the_library/bolt/bolt.php 

A. Call to Order 

  The special meeting of March 16, 2011 was called to order by Chair Kupfer at 12:40 PM. 

Present:  Trustees Winston Burton, Abigail Franklin, Carolyn Henry‐Golphin, Susan Kupfer and Darryl 
Moore. 

Absent:  none   

Also present:  Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services; Dennis Dang, Library Admin Manager; Suzanne 
Olawski, Branch Library Manager; Eve Franklin, Administrative Secretary. 

  Steve Dewan and Maria Denny, Kitchell CEM 

B. Public Comments – none. 

 

II. ACTION 

A. Reject and rebid contract for renovation and construction of the North Branch Library project 

Director Corbeil provided a summary of the process to date. 6 bids were received. The two lowest bidders 
requested to withdraw their bids due to clerical errors on their bid submittals. The requests were reviewed 
and it is recommended those requests to withdraw be accepted. The bigger issue is that the lowest bid was 
well over what we were hoping to see.  We’re asking permission to take project back out to bid with 
clarifications and additional information.  

Trustee Franklin – What do we do if the bids don’t come in lower? Director Corbeil – We’ll have to see what 
happens, this is the next good step to try before we do something more drastic like consider redesign. There 
were some things that maybe were unclear to contractors there are also some things we could do looking at 
materials that wouldn’t change the scope of the project but could bring costs back down.  

Trustee Burton – Do the contractors that are going to bid know that we have a number we’re aiming for? 
Director Corbeil – It is public information, we gave City Council a range of numbers. The contractors will know 
what the bids amounts were in the first round. The list of bidders and bid amounts is a public document. Steve 
will work on the next addendum which will explain that we’ve rejected all the  bids and will identify some 
clarifications that we hope will lower costs, and some changes, for example looking at the lighting fixtures, 
steel downspouts as opposed to copper downspouts. Architects worked with staff to identify items for possible 
savings.  

Trustee Burton – How much will this process delay the schedule? Steve Dewan – One to two months. We’re 
looking at a bid opening date of March 31. 

Trustee Kupfer – Would it only be these contractors? No, the two contractors who asked to withdraw cannot 
resubmit bids, but the other four contractors can and other contractors who didn’t bid the first time may 
submit bids. The building plans are available in plan rooms. 

Trustee Moore – What were the reasons for the higher bids? There is no clear answer for that. An analysis of 
the bids that were already submitted will help us identify areas that might need clarification to help bring bid 
costs down. 



Berkeley Library Board of Trustees Minutes 
March 17, 2011      Page 2 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981‐6195   (510) 548‐1240 (TDD)   (510) 981‐6111 fax   BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

Trustee Burton – Each branch was assigned a dollar amount for the total project, are there any savings from 
architect portion that could be transferred to construction portion? Architect costs are on budget at this time. 
There is no leftover money from architects that could be transferred to construction portion of the project. 

Director Corbeil outlined the upcoming schedule. Bids will be opened March 31.  Staff will need time to 
analyze the bids, allow time for any bid protests, or bid withdrawals. We have asked City Council to put us on 
the agenda for the next meeting (April 26). Due to the tight schedule, we may need to have a special meeting 
in April to approve a recommendation to City Council on the contract. 

Trustee Burton – Is there a sense that the bidders are eager to re‐bid? Steve Dewan – the four other bidders 
have indicated they are interested in re‐bidding, other contractors who didn’t submit the first time may also 
submit bids. 

Trustee Franklin – Is it common to have 30% of the bids withdrawn? Steve Dewan ‐ It’s not that common, I 
think in this situation they just made an error. They have to prove that they made a clerical error not a error of 
judgment. 

R11‐019  Moved by Trustee Moore  seconded by Trustee Burton  to adopt a  resolution  to  recommend City Council 
adopt a resolution: Accepting the requests to withdraw bids received from D. L. Falk Construction and J. H. 
Fitzmaurice,  Inc.; and  reject all  remaining bids  received on February 17, 2011, prepare a new addendum, 
and reopen the bidding for the project as modified by the new addendum. Motion passed unanimously. 

B. Contract: Fine Line Construction for Renovation and Construction of the Claremont Branch Library   

Director Corbeil summarized process to date. Lowest bidder was Fine Line Construction. There was a bid 
protest .  John Rosenbrock arranged a meeting between the two contractors to discuss the issues and 
ultimately determined the protest should be denied. Amount of contract staff has requested includes an 11% 
contingency.  

Trustee Moore – Why more bidders on Claremont than North. Claremont is mostly interior work, North has 
expansion, different type of projects attract different contractors. 

Trustee Moore – Has Kitchell worked with Fine Line Construction before? Yes. 

Trustee Franklin – Has our architect worked with Fine Line Construction before? Director Corbeil – I don’t know 
if our architect has worked directly with them but Fine Line has worked quite a bit in the Bay Area, including a 
couple of the San Francisco Public Library projects. They are experienced, well‐established and have done a 
wide variety of projects including historic projects. We think they are going to bring good experience to the 
project. We have a really good team(Steve Dewan, Maria Denny and John Rosenbrock) who will help us 
through the construction phase, we will be well represented in the field. 

Trustee Burton – Are any of these local? Steve Dewan – Fine Line is based in San Francisco. We’d have to check 
their sub‐contractors addresses. Director Corbeil – keep in mind that the union requirement that was passed by 
city council will apply to these projects. Contractors and sub‐contractors will need to comply with the local 
requirement that was passed by city council. 

R11‐020  Moved by Trustee Moore, seconded by Trustee Franklin to adopt a resolution to recommend City Council 
adopt a resolution: 1) Approving plans and specifications for the Berkeley Public Library Claremont Branch 
Improvement  Project;  2) Denying  protest  filed  by  second  low  bidder;  3)  Accepting  the  bid  of  Fine  Line 
Construction;  and  4) Authorizing  the  City Manager  to  execute  a  contract  and  any  extensions  or  change 
orders until completion of the project in an amount not to exceed $3,300,000. Motion passed unanimously. 

C. Authorize temporary closure of Claremont and North Branch libraries for improvements 

Chair Kupfer – Will North Branch closure be delayed?  Director Corbeil –Yes, but we have a pretty aggressive 
schedule to mitigate. At this point we are assuming that we will get approval from the city council on April 26 
and have our notice to proceed soon after. We wouldn’t announce closures until we have better sense that we 
are actually moving forward. Will publicize closures and BranchVan schedules with banners, bookmarks, 
brochures, website announcements, signage, press releases.  



Berkeley Library Board of Trustees Minutes 
March 17, 2011      Page 3 
 

2090 Kittredge Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981‐6195   (510) 548‐1240 (TDD)   (510) 981‐6111 fax   BOLT@ci.berkeley.ca.us 

R11‐021  Moved by Trustee Moore, seconded by Trustee Franklin  to adopt a  resolution authorizing  the  temporary 
closures of the North Branch Library and Claremont Branch Library for renovations and new construction for 
a  term of approximately 12  ‐ 14 months  for  the period  from Spring 2011  through Summer 2012  for  the 
North Branch, and for a term of approximately 9 ‐ 12 months for the period from Spring 2011 through Spring 
2012  for  the Claremont Branch and authorizes  the Director of Library Services  to determine  the dates of 
closure. Motion passed unanimously. 

 

III. AGENDA BUILDING 

A. The next meeting will be  a  Regular Meeting held  at  6:30  PM on Wednesday, April  13, 2011  at  the  South 
Branch Library, 1901 Russell Street, Berkeley. 

Possible agenda topics: 
1. Budget 
2. BOLT Vacancy Interviews – Trustees to send possible questions to Director Corbeil. 

 

IV. ADJOURNMENT 

R10‐022  Moved  by  Trustee  Franklin,  seconded  by  Trustee Henry‐Golphin,  to  adjourn  the  regular meeting  of  the 
board at 1:18 PM. Motion passed unanimously.  

 

 

 



 



 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 

  CONSENT CALENDAR 
  April 13, 2011 
 
TO:  Board of Library Trustees 
 
FROM:  Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
 
SUBJECT:  ACCEPT AND APPROPRIATE GIFT FUNDS FOR FY 2011. 

     
RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt a  resolution authorizing  the Director of  Library  Services  to accept and appropriate  to  FY 2011 
three gift awards received by the Berkeley Public Library. 

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION 

Type  Source  Amount  Program 
Gift  Friends of the BPL  $500  Branch Measure FF Closure Festivities 
Gift  Private (Atkinson/Moniz)  $200  Non‐restricted 
Gift  BPL Foundation  $100,000  Branch Measure FF, funds for FF&E related expenses 
 
CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 

Library programs such as Berkeley READS and special projects are oftentimes substantially funded, if not 
wholly  funded, by grants and gifts.   The Library, as part of  its mission  to engage  the community  in  its 
services actively seeks and welcomes government and private funding support for its myriad of services, 
especially in this period of economic stress. 

The Library has recently received three gift donations that the board is asked to accept on behalf of the 
Library.   

With the North and Claremont branch libraries advancing into the construction phase of the Measure FF 
Branch Libraries Improvement Program the Friends of the Library has generously presented a check of 
$500  for  funding  branch  closure  festivities.    The  Library  requests  that  these  funds  be  accepted  and 
appropriated this fiscal year.   And a private party gift donation was received from DB Atkinson and KE 
Moniz in the amount of $200, this non‐restricted gift is requested to be accepted into the Gift Fund. 

The board of  the BPL  foundation has  committed  to  a  gift of  $100,000  this  fiscal  year  as part of  the 
capital  campaign  effort  underway  related  to  measure  FF.  Funds  will  be  used  for  the  North  and 
Claremont branch projects, as these are the first two closing for improvements, to cover shelving, desks, 
technology and other items within the FF&E budget. 

BACKGROUND 

III Consent, Item C



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
CONSENT CALENDAR REPORT 
Grants and Gifts FY 2011    Page 2 

 
During  the  fiscal  year  the  Library  receives  grants  and  gifts  as  either  non‐restricted,  for  needs  as 
determined by the Library; or restricted whereby the donor specifies a program or purpose. In general, 
received grants are  restricted and  targeted  to an  identified program or purpose.   Gift  funds vary, but 
typically, larger sized gifts most always specify a designated use, while smaller contributions tend to fall 
in the non‐restricted category.  Nonetheless, in order for the Library to access these funds the board 1) 
authorizes  acceptance  of  these monies,  and  2)  approves  the  appropriation  of  these monies  to  the 
budget before any portion thereof can be expended. 

RATIONAL FOR RECOMMENDATION 

By  accepting  and  appropriating  the  funds  received  the  Library will  be  able  to  honor  the  intent  and 
wishes of the grantor/donor and fulfill identified community needs. 

Attachments 
1. Resolution 
 
 



 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

RESOLUTION NO.: R11‐___ 
 

AUTHORIZING THE LIBRARY SERVICES DIRECTOR TO ACCEPT AND APPROPRIATE  
GIFT FUNDS FOR FY 2011. 

 
WHEREAS,  the Berkeley  Public  Library  actively  seeks  and welcomes  government  and  private  funding 
support for its myriad of services; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the  Friends  of  the  Berkeley  Public  Library  has  generously  presented  a  check  of  $500  for 
funding branch closure festivities of the Measure FF Branch Libraries Improvement Program; and 
 
WHEREAS, a private party non‐restricted gift of $200 from DB Atkinson and KE Moniz was received; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the  Library  foundation  has  undertaken  a  capital  campaign  to  fund  FF&E  related  to  the 
Measure FF bond program and stipulated a gift of $100,000 in FY 11 for this purpose; and 
 
WHEREAS, for the Library to access these funds the board 1) authorizes acceptance of these monies, and 
2)  approves  the  appropriation  of  these  monies  to  the  budget  before  any  portion  thereof  can  be 
expended; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE  IT RESOLVED  that  the Board of Library Trustees of  the City of Berkeley hereby 
authorizes the Director of Library Services to accept and appropriate to FY 2011 the gift of $500 from 
the Friends of the Berkeley Public Library, the gift of $100,000 from the BPL Foundation and to accept 
the private party gift donation of $200. 
 
ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley at a regular meeting held on April 13, 
2011 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:   
ABSTENTIONS:   

   
                       
        Susan Kupfer, Chairperson 
 
                       
        Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
        Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 
 
 
 

Attachment #1



 

 
 



 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
  April 13, 2011 

 
 
TO:  Board of Library Trustees 

FROM:  Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 

SUBJECT:  CONTRACT AMENDMENT: RICOH BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt a resolution authorizing the Director of Library Services to amend the value of contract no. 7605 
with  Ricoh  Business  Solutions  for  the  provision  of  equipment  leasing  and maintenance  services  for 
public‐use copiers at the Central Library and branch libraries by an incremental amount of $15,000 for a 
total contract not‐to‐exceed amount of $90,000. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Funding for these services do not require a supplemental appropriation to the FY11 revised budget of 
the Library Tax Fund (301).  The CMS number is EU3VC. 

BACKGROUND 

Ricoh Business Solutions provides equipment leasing and maintenance services for public‐use copiers at 
the  Central  Library  and  all  four  branch  library  locations  under  contract  no.  7605  for  an  original 
contracting  period  extending  from April  1,  2008  through  to April  1,  2011.   On  February  16,  2011  in 
anticipation of the expiration of the contract the Library extended the contract date out six months to 
October 1, 2011.  This extension was done to allow the Library to conduct a more in‐depth review of its 
public copier needs as well as to survey the extent of copy services offered by other area library systems 
prior to the Library issuing a public Request for Proposals (RFP). 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 

To  cover  the  costs  for  the  six month  extension  period  the  contract  not‐to‐exceed  amount must  be 
increased $15,000 to $90,000.  As of March 24, 2011, Ricoh has an authorized funding balance of $3,387 
available for access.   

FUTURE ACTION 

None. 

 

Attachments: 
1. Resolution 

III Consent, Item D



 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

 
RESOLUTION NO.: R11‐### 

CONTRACT NO. 7605 AMENDMENT: RICOH BUSINESS SOLUTIONS FOR EQUIPMENT LEASING AND 
MAINTENANCE SERVICING OF PUBLIC COPIERS FOR THE CENTRAL AND BRANCH LIBRARIES 

WHEREAS,  on  September  19,  2007  the  Board  of  Library  Trustees  authorized  the  Director  of  Library 
Services to execute a contract and any amendments with Ricoh Business Solutions to provide equipment 
leasing and maintenance servicing of public‐use copiers at  the Central Library and  four  library branch 
locations of the Berkeley Public Library for an amount not to exceed $75,000 for a three‐year term; and 

WHEREAS,  at  the  time of  contract  execution  the  Library made  a best  efforts  estimation of  a not‐to‐
exceed valuation for services to be rendered during the contract’s duration; and 

WHEREAS, on February 16, 2011 the Director of Library Services  in conformance with Section 3. of the 
contract amended the contract term expiration date from April 1, 2011 to October 1, 2011; and 

WHEREAS, the cost for services up to the contract’s amended expiration date is projected at $15,000 for 
a revised amount not to exceed $90,000; and 

WHEREAS, funds are available for equipment  leasing and maintenance services  in the Library Tax Fund 
(301), CMS number EU3VC; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley to authorize 
the Director of  Library Services  to execute a  contract amendment and approve payments with Ricoh 
Business  Solutions  for  the  provision  of  equipment  leasing  and maintenance  servicing  of  public‐use 
copiers at the Central Library and the four branch  library  locations of the Berkeley Public Library  for a 
revised amount not to exceed $90,000 for the period from April 1, 2008 through October 1, 2011.  

ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley at a regular meeting held on April 13, 
2011 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:   
ABSTENTIONS:   
 
                           
            Susan Kupfer, Chairperson 
 
 
 
                           
            Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
            Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 
 
 
 

Attachment #1 



 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
  April 13, 2011 

 
 
TO:  Board of Library Trustees 

FROM:  Douglas Smith, Deputy Director of Library Services 

SUBJECT:   

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt the resolution approving the Policy on Use of Library Collections by Library Staff for the Berkeley 
Public Library. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

This report will have no fiscal impacts. 

 

BACKGROUND 

Employees of the Berkeley Public Library are also very often patrons of the Library, making use of the 
Libraries services as would any member of the public not employed by the Library.  As is commonly the 
case with public  libraries  in other  cities,  the Berkeley Public  Library has  for many years had  informal 
policies  in which current paid career and temporary employees, and members of the Board of Library 
Trustees  are bound  to  the  same  circulation  rules  as  all patrons while  exempting  individuals  in  these 
categories from overdue fines. Additionally the Library has held these  individuals responsible for other 
fines and fees such as lost or damaged item charges.  

 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 

Currently  the  Library  does  not  have  written  policies  or  guidelines  which  specifically  delineate  the 
responsibilities  that  employees  have when  they  are  users  of  the  Library’s  collections.  Such  specific 
guidelines are  in particular needed by Library supervisors as an orientation  tool  for new hires, and as 
ongoing guidance with regard to staff accrual of large fines, adherence to standard loan periods, access 
to holds queues, patron records, and collections which are not yet fully processed. The attached draft 
policy  (Attachment  2)  sets  forth  guidelines  for  use  of  the  Library’s  circulating  and  non‐circulating 
collections by current employees, volunteers, and members of the Board of Library Trustees. 

FUTURE ACTION 

No future action is required. 

Attachments: 
1. Resolution 
2. Policy 

III Consent, Item E



 



 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

RESOLUTION NO.: R11‐___ 

POLICY ON USE OF LIBRARY COLLECTIONS BY LIBRARY STAFF 

WHEREAS, employees of the Berkeley Public Library are also very often patrons of the Library, making 
use of the Libraries services as would any member of the public not employed by the Library; 

WHEREAS, the Berkeley Public Library has had informal policies in which current paid career and 
temporary employees, and members of the Board of Library Trustees were bound to the same 
circulation rules as all patrons while exempting individuals in these categories from overdue fines; 

WHEREAS, the Library has held these individuals responsible for other fines and fees such as lost or 
damaged item charges; 

WHEREAS, the Library currently does not have written policies or guidelines which specifically delineate 
the responsibilities that employees have when they are users of the Library’s collections; 

WHEREAS, such specific guidelines are needed by Library supervisors as an orientation tool for new 
hires, and as ongoing guidance with regard to staff accrual of large fines, adherence to standard loan 
periods, access to holds queues, patron records, and collections which are not yet fully processed; 

WHEREAS, the attached draft policy (Attachment ‐‐) sets forth guidelines for use of the Library’s 
circulating and non‐circulating collections by current employees, volunteers, and members of the Board 
of Library Trustees. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley hereby adopt 
the resolution approving the Policy on Use of Library Collections by Library Staff for the Berkeley Public 
Library. 

ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley at a regular meeting held on [date] 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT:  
ABSTENTIONS: 

 
     _________________________________________   
    Susan Kupfer, Chairperson 
 
     _________________________________________   
    Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
    Serving as secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 

Attachment 1



 



 

 
 
BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
POLICIES 
 
 
SUBJECT: POLICY ON USE OF LIBRARY COLLECTIONS BY LIBRARY STAFF 
 
 

I. PURPOSE 
Library staff are very frequently also Library patrons, and therefore may use the Library’s 
collections as do those persons who are not employed by the Library. The purpose of this policy 
is to set forth guidelines for use of the Library’s circulating and non-circulating collections by 
current employees, volunteers, and members of the Board of Library Trustees. 

II. POLICY 
It is the policy of the Berkeley Public Library that all Library employees, volunteers, and 
members of the Board of Library Trustees are subject to the same rules and procedures, and have 
the same rights and responsibilities, relating to the use of the Library’s circulating and non-
circulating collections. This includes: 

1. All circulation policies and procedures. However, current paid career and temporary 
employees, and members of the Board of Library Trustees are exempt from paying 
overdue fines. Paid career and temporary employees, and members of the Board of 
Library Trustees are not exempt from the obligation to pay other fines and fees, including 
Tool Lending Library overdue fines, lost and damaged item charges, collection agency 
fees, and processing fees. 

2. Current paid career and temporary employees, and members of the Board of Library 
Trustees may not access their own, or another employee’s, patron record to manipulate or 
change due dates, fines owed, “block” messages, holds queue positions, or to renew items 
beyond the established limits applied to non-staff. 

3. Current paid career and temporary employees, and members of the Board of Library 
Trustees may not borrow items from the Library’s collections without first checking them 
out with a current Berkeley Public Library card with fine levels that are below the 
threshold at which borrowing privileges are restricted. Items may not be borrowed until 
they are fully processed and prior patron hold requests for that item have been filled. 

4. Upon separation from employment or membership on the Board of Library Trustees, the 
patron types of former staff and trustees shall be changed to the appropriate non-
staff/BOLT patron type 

 
 
 Reviewed by:   
 Director of Library Services Date 

 

 Approved by:   
 Chair, Board of Library Trustees  Date 
 

ORIGINAL DATE:  
BOLT Resolution #:  
REVISED DATE: 
PAGE: 1
  

Attachment 2 



 



III Consent, Item F

 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
April 13, 2011 

   
   
To:  Board of Library Trustees 

From:  Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 

Subject:  REVISIONS  TO  LIBRARY  AIDE &  LIBRARY  ASSISTANT  CLASSIFICATIONS  AND  CREATION  OF 
LIBRARY PAGE CLASSIFICATION 

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt a resolution approving and recommending to the Personnel Board that it revise the Library Aide 
and Library Assistant Classifications, Unit IB,  Service Employees International Union (SEIU), Local 1021, 
Community Services and PTRLA Association, to accurately reflect the scope of duties and to create a new 
classification of Library Page to meet library needs.  

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION 

None 

 

BACKGROUND 

The current Library Aide job specification is out dated, ambiguous and does not reflect the work being 
performed by incumbents in this classification. The current prerequisites for Library Assistant are 
difficult to meet and as a result many Library Aides are deemed ineligible for higher class opportunities. 
The Library Aide no longer represents a true entry‐level classification and as the tasks within the Aide 
classification become more varied and more demanding, incumbents require additional support with 
entry‐level manual library tasks like shelving and sorting to meet service needs.   
The City Council  is charged with establishing  job classifications and the compensation of all employees 
(Sections  31  and  32  of  City  Charter).    The  Board  approved  the  current  job  classifications  and must 
approve any changes to the scope of responsibility recommended by the Library prior to presentation to 
the Personnel Board.  

 

CURRENT SITUATION & ITS EFFECTS 

The City of Berkeley Personnel Board approved the recommendation to establish the Library Aide 
classification at its December, 1988 meeting. The classification was later revised in March, 2002. Since 
this time the duties assigned to the classification have diversified resulting in a job specification that is 
not a current reflection of work being performed. Additionally, the current job specification fails to 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
CONSENT CALENDAR REPORT 
Library Aide, Assistant, Page Classification Changes  Page 2 

 

 

distinguish itself from the Library Assistant classification. As a result, we are proposing some revisions to 
the Library Aide specification that we hope will better reflect the work needed and completed by this 
classification now and in the future.  
 
The City of Berkeley Personnel Board approved the recommendation to establish the Library Assistant 
classification at its meeting in December, 2008. The classification has since been revised once in June, 
1990 and again in March, 2002. Currently, the prerequisites for Library Assistant include 1560 hours 
work experience at the level equivalent to Library Aide at the Berkeley Public Library (BPL). This 
requirement is difficult to meet when working fifteen hours weekly and as a result many of our current, 
capable Library Aides are passed over for higher class opportunities due to ineligibility. We are 
proposing to reduce this requirement to 780 hours worked at the equivalent of Library Aide at BPL.  
  
As a result of various internal and external factors, our Library Aide classification no longer represents a 
true entry‐level classification. Current service needs force hiring supervisor’s to consider those 
candidates with previous library experience to ensure versatility should higher class opportunities arise. 
Additionally, Library Aides are responsible for a range of library support tasks and as circulation 
continues to rise, so do the demands on their time. This creates a need to devote additional resources to 
manual library support tasks such as sorting and shelving to avoid backlogs. Lastly, the Library remains 
committed to employing a diverse workforce and having a legitimate entry‐level classification in the 
library support series is essential to our plans to increase diversity at all levels throughout the 
organization through internal promotions. With that in mind we are proposing the development of a 
new, truly entry‐level classification, Library Page.  
 
The identification of issues covered and initial negotiation began at the Library Joint Labor Management 
meeting in February 2010, and entered the formal meet & confer process with our first session in 
October 2010, followed by additional sessions and requests for information related to a good faith 
bargaining effort on both sides.  At the meet and confer session on March 30, 2011,  SEIU 
representatives articulated impacts of the Library’s proposals and presented plans to address 
outstanding issues ultimately resulting in an agreement between Library administrators and union 
representatives marking the completion of the meet and confer process.  
 
Following  Library Board  adoption,  changes  to City  classifications must be  reviewed by  the  Personnel 
Board and then put before City Council for adoption.  

 

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION 

We believe that these proposed ideas move us closer to our goals of continuing to provide staff with 
opportunities to gain additional skills and experience where possible while ensuring that our staffing 
configurations are conducive to meeting our system’s service needs. More specifically, the proposed 
revisions to the Library Aide classification would provide much needed distinction between its adjacent 
Library Assistant classification. The introduction of tasks including assisting patrons with self‐check 
machines, library catalog and internet computers allows for more variety in tasks and increases 
opportunity for contact with public better preparing staff for advancement.  
 
Reducing the minimum qualifications for Library Assistant to 780 hours worked at the level equivalent to 
a Library Aide will create additional opportunities for our Library Aides to complete higher‐level tasks 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
CONSENT CALENDAR REPORT 
Library Aide, Assistant, Page Classification Changes  Page 3 

 

 

and qualify for differential pay. These higher‐class assignments allow staff to experience alternate 
classifications while exercising the skills required for those positions and making them better prepared 
for promotional opportunities that arise.  
 

Introducing the Library Page would provide cost‐effective relief to Library Aides enabling them to 
engage in the tasks introduced by the proposed revision by assisting with the time consuming tasks of 
sorting and shelving. Being able to allocate more staff to these entry‐level tasks will decrease the turn‐
around time on materials leading to more satisfied staff and patrons. Additionally and most importantly, 
by setting the minimum qualifications as no experience or degree required, we are able to provide 
employment opportunities to a more varied demographic, resulting in a more diverse applicant pool and 
ultimately a more diverse workforce.  
 

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED 

No alternative action was considered. 

FUTURE ACTION 

None 

 
Attachments: 
1. Resolution 
2. Library Page Job Specification 
3. Library Aide Job Specifications with Revisions 
4. Library Assistant Job Specification with Revisions 

 



 



 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

 
RESOLUTION NO.: R11‐___ 

REVISE THE LIBRARY AIDE AND LIBRARY ASSISTANT CLASSIFICATIONS, CLASSIFICATIONS REPRESENTED 
BY SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION (SEIU), LOCAL 1021, COMMUNITY SERVICES AND 
PTRLA ASSOCIATION TO ACCURATELY REFLECT THE SCOPE OF DUTIES AND REDUCED MINIMUM 
QUALIFICATIONS AND TO CREATE THE LIBRARY PAGE CLASSIFICATION, A CLASSIFICATION TO BE 

REPRESENTED BY SEIU, LOCAL 1021  

WHEREAS,  the  Library  Aide  and  Library  Assistant  classifications  which  are  Unit  IB,  Service  Employees 
International  Union  (SEIU),  Local  1021,  Community  Services  and  PTRLA  Association  which  are  support 
classifications unique to the Library; and 

WHEREAS, the Board approved the recommendation to establish the Library Aide classification  in 1988 and 
to revise it in 2002, duties assigned to the classification have since diversified resulting in an ambiguous job 
specification not reflective of work being performed and proposed revisions to the Library Aide classification 
will better reflect the work needed and completed by this classification now and in the future; and 

WHEREAS, the Board approved the recommendation to establish the Library Assistant classification in 1988 
and to revise it in 1990 and 2002, prerequisites for the classification are difficult to meet and the proposed 
revisions to the Library Assistant classification and its minimum qualifications will increase higher class 
opportunities for Library Aides; and 

WHEREAS, the Library Aide classification no longer represents an entry‐level classification with specific tasks 
requiring higher level skills and other basic duties requiring more cost‐effective staff support and the Library 
proposes the creation of the Library Page to support a diverse workforce and assist with expanding 
workloads; and 

WHEREAS, the Library believes that collectively these proposed changes will enable us to ensure that our 
staffing configurations are conducive to meeting our system’s service needs; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed classification changes have been the subject of a meet and confer process between 
the Library and members of SEIU 1021 which resulted in agreement to move forward; and 

WHEREAS,  the  Board must  approve  any  changes  to  the  scope  of  responsibility  and  the  creation  of  new 
classifications recommended by the Library prior to presentation to the Personnel Board; and 

WHEREAS,  following  Library  Board  adoption,  changes  to  City  classifications  must  be  reviewed  by  the 
Personnel Board and then put before City Council for adoption.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE  IT RESOLVED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley to approve the 
proposed revisions to the Library Aide and Library Assistant classifications, and to recommend creation of a 
new classification, Library Page to the Personnel Board for approval.  

ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley at a regular meeting held on April 13, 2011 
by the following vote: 

AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSTENTIONS:   
ABSENT:   
    _______________________________________________  
  Susan Kupfer, Chairperson 
 
 
    _______________________________________________  
  Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
  Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 



 



 

 

 
City of Berkeley 
Class No.  
Pay Rate: $13.00/hr 
January 2010 
February 2011 (Revised) 
 
 

LIBRARY PAGE 
 
 
DEFINITION  
 
Under direct supervision, performs a variety of manual tasks in support of library 
services. 
 
CLASS CHARACTERISTICS  
 
Library Page is the entry-level class in the library support series. Initially under close 
supervision, incumbents perform a variety of routine manual support tasks. The Library 
Page helps to provide public access to library materials by ensuring that all library 
materials are readily available in an organized and accurate order. 
 
This class is distinguished from Library Aide in that the latter independently performs 
related entry-level clerical and circulation duties in support of library services.  
 
This is a non-benefited, non-career at-will classification.  Persons appointed to 
positions in this classification will be classified as temporary, at-will employees, 
and will not gain property rights or have an expectation of continued 
employment.  Incumbents will work no more than 14 hours per week and no 
longer than 2 years from their first appointment date to the classification. 
Incumbents are not eligible for rehire to this classification or for promotional-only 
recruitment opportunities in the City of Berkeley.   
 
EXAMPLES OF DUTIES  
 
The following list of duties is intended only to describe the various types of work that 
may be performed and the level of technical complexity of the assignment(s) and is not 
intended to be an all-inclusive list of duties. The omission of a specific duty statement 
does not exclude it from the position if the work is consistent with the concept of the 
classification, or is similar or closely related to another duty statement.  
 

1. Performs a variety of routine manual library support tasks including, sorting,     
          shelving, stacking, retrieving a wide variety of library materials;  

 
2. Maintains Library materials according to alphabetical, numerical and                 

Attachment 2 



 

 

    categorical systems;  
 
3. Conducts shelf reading for accuracy and shifts and transports books and          
    other library materials to assigned areas of the library as directed; 
 
4. Assists in keeping all areas of the library in a clean, neat, and orderly condition 
    and public office supplies stocked;  
 
5. Packs, unpacks and distributes library shipments;   

 
      6. Assists in program and display set-up; 
 

7. Operates standard office equipment;  
 
8. Performs related work as assigned.  

 
 

QUALIFICATIONS  
 
Note: The level and scope of the abilities listed below are related to job duties a defined 
under Class Characteristics. 
 
Ability to:   
 
 1.    Understand and carry out oral verbal and written instructions;  
 
           2.    Sort and organize materials in alphabetical, numerical and topical order and 
                        attend to detail to ensure accuracy;  
 
           3.    Deal tactfully and effectively with a wide variety of library users and co-         
                  workers;   
 
           4.    Operate standard office equipment and computer workstations; and  

 
5.    Perform routine physical tasks such as bending, stooping and reaching.        

        
 
A TYPICAL WAY OF GAINING THE KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS OUTLINED ABOVE 
IS:  
Applicants under 18 years of age will be required to secure a work permit prior to 
employment. No experience required.  
 
OTHER REQUIREMENTS 
 
Must be able to work evenings and weekends. Performs a wide range of physical 
motions, which may include routine and repetitive bending, reaching and pushing, 



 

 

moving and carrying library materials. Must have sufficient strength to repeatedly lift 
books weighing between 1 and 10 pounds, including overhead lifting, to load transit 
boxes, book bins and push book trucks weighing excess of 50 pounds.  
 
 
 
 



 



 

 
City of Berkeley 
Class No. 4245 
May 2010 
 
 

LIBRARY AIDE 
 

DEFINITION  
 
Under general supervision, performs a variety of manual and related 
journey-level clerical and circulation tasks in support of library services.  
 
CLASS CHARACTERISTICS  
 
Library Aide is the journey-level class in the library support series. 
Initially under close supervision, incumbents perform a variety of routine 
manual and related clerical and circulation support tasks. As experience 
and proficiency are gained, assignments become more varied and may 
require the use of judgment and independence within clearly established 
guidelines. Library Aides may be assigned primarily to one task or may 
alternate between tasks as the need arises. This class is distinguished 
from Library Assistant in that the latter independently performs more 
responsible clerical and circulation library support tasks including cash 
handling and accessing/manipulating patrons’ records. 

 Examples of Duties:  

The following list of duties is intended only to describe the various types 
of work that may be performed and the level of technical complexity of 
the assignment(s) and is not intended to be an all-inclusive list of duties. 
The omission of a specific duty statement does not exclude it from the 
position if the work is consistent with the concept of the classification, or 
is similar or closely related to another duty statement.  
 
Performs basic processing returned materials (check in), and 
maintaining such materials according to alphabetical, numerical and 
categorical systems;  
 
2. Performs basic clerical tasks in support of technical support services, 
including performing simple mending, labeling, jacketing in preparation 
for circulation and minor repair of a variety of library materials;  
 
3. Assists patrons in utilizing library technology including; self-check 
machines, catalog and internet computers etc.   
 
4. Performs a variety of routine manual library support tasks including, 

Attachment 3 



 

sorting, shelving, stacking, retrieving a wide variety of library materials;  
 
5. Assists with maintenance of public computers by turning them on and 
off, cleaning screens, keyboards etc; 
 
6. Assists with creation and maintenance of public displays, bulletin 
boards etc; 
 
7. Performs basic data entry and clerical work; 
 
8. Conducts shelf reading for accuracy and shifting and transporting 
books and other library materials to assigned areas of the library as 
directed;  
 
9. Assists in keeping all areas of the library in a clean, neat, and orderly 
condition and assisting in a variety of special projects and services as 
assigned;  
 
10. Provides support to interoffice mail/delivery function;  
 
11. Assists with development of Library Pages, youth workers and 
volunteers; 
 
12. Performs related work as assigned.  

 Knowledge and Abilities:  

Note: The level and scope of the knowledge and skills listed below are 
related to job duties as defined under Class Characteristics.  
 
Knowledge of:  
 
1. Alphabetical, numerical and subject filing systems;  
 
2. Basic arithmetic; and  
 
3. Basic operation of library and office equipment including copy 
machines, self check machines and computer workstations.  
Ability to:  
 
1. Understand and carrying out oral verbal and written instructions;  
 
2. Sort and organize materials in alphabetical, numerical and topical 
order and attend to detail to ensure accuracy;  
 
3. Deal tactfully and effectively with a wide variety of library users and 
co-workers; and  



 

 
4. Operate standard office equipment and computer workstations.  

 Minimum Qualifications:  

A TYPICAL WAY OF GAINING THE KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS 
OUTLINED ABOVE IS:  
 
Equivalent to graduation from high school. Experience working in a 
library setting preferred but not required.   
 
 
OTHER REQUIREMENTS  
 
Must be able to work evenings and weekends. Performs a wide range of 
physical motions, which may include routine and repetitive bending, 
reaching and pushing, moving and carrying library materials; Must have 
sufficient strength to repeatedly lift books weighing between 1 and 10 
pounds, including overhead lifting, to load transit boxes, book bins and 
push book trucks weighing in excess of 50 pounds.    

 Classification History:  

Established: 12/1988  
Revised: 04/2011 

 



 



City of Berkeley 
Class No. 4213 
May 2010 

LIBRARY ASSISTANT 
 
 

DEFINITION  
 
Under general supervision, performs a variety of support and clerical 
work in the day-to-day operations of library services.  
 
CLASS CHARACTERISTICS  
 
Library Assistant is the experienced clerical level of the library support 
series. Incumbents exercise some independence of judgment in the 
application of library policies and performance of patron services but are 
not expected to handle reader's advisory or reference service questions. 
This class is distinguished from Library Specialist I in that the latter class 
requires additional training and experience, and performance of 
advanced library support work. This class is further distinguished from 
Supervising Library Assistant in that the latter has a broad range of 
responsibilities in addition to supervising Library Assistants, Library 
Aides and Library Pages.  

 Examples of Duties:  

The following list of duties is intended only to describe the various types 
of work that may be performed and the level of technical complexity of 
the assignment(s) and is not intended to be an all-inclusive list of duties. 
The omission of a specific duty statement does not exclude it from the 
position if the work is consistent with the concept of the classification, or 
is similar or closely related to another duty statement.  
 
1. Performs public service involving a variety of routine circulation 
activities, patron registration and updating, cash collection in payment of 
fines, fees and charges;  
 
2. Performs a variety of clerical tasks in connection with the daily 
operation of the library, including answering telephones, typing and/or 
data entry; assisting in the instruction of Library Aides and Library 
Pages; filing and maintaining records; preparing and posting public 
information displays; assisting in the opening and closing procedures for 
the library; taking inventory of and placing orders for supplies; 
 
3. Answers a variety of basic public service questions regarding library 
services; providing information to library users, including use of library 
catalogs, general circulation and operational policies, and referring to 

Attachment 4 



appropriate library divisions, dealing with difficult patrons in the absence 
of supervisors.  
 
4. Operates a variety of standard office equipment, including computer 
workstations, operating copy reproduction equipment; and performing 
basic checks to ensure proper operation of computer workstations;  
 
5. Performs a variety of clerical tasks in support of technical support 
services, including checking invoices against materials received; creating 
computerized order records; monitoring the condition of library materials 
and performing basic repairs that may include more specialized repairs; 
and preparing materials for display or placing in collection; and  
 
6. Performs a wide range of routine and repetitive physical motions 
including bending and reaching and pushing, moving and carrying library 
materials.  

 Knowledge and Abilities:  

Note: The level and scope of the knowledge and skills listed below are 
related to job duties as defined under Class Characteristics.  
 
Knowledge of:  
 
1. General library policies and procedures;  
 
2. Basic public desk etiquette and methods of providing information;  
 
3. Basic arithmetic;  
 
4. Equipment and systems used in the library and general office work; 
and  
 
5. Techniques and methods for dealing with difficult situations involving 
hostile and/or disorderly individuals.  
 
Ability to:   
 
1. Understand and carry out oral and written instructions;  
 
2. Deal tactfully and effectively with a variety of individuals including 
patrons and library staff;  
 
3. Make accurate arithmetic computations to determine library overdue 
fees, cash balances and related tasks;  
 
4. Make sound judgments and decisions within established guidelines;  



 
5. Interpret library procedures and operational manuals;  
 
6. Assist in direction and instruction Library Aides, Library Pages and 
volunteers;  
 
7. Perform office support work including, data entry, typing and filing; and 
 
8. Operate standard office equipment including computer workstations.  
 
Note: Specified positions may require typing at a net speed of 40 words 
per minute from printed copy.  

 Minimum Qualifications:  

A TYPICAL WAY OF GAINING THE KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS 
OUTLINED ABOVE IS:  
 
Equivalent to graduation from high school and 780 hours of experience 
involving public information and office support duties in a library setting.  
 
OTHER REQUIREMENTS  
 
Must be able to work evenings and weekends.  

 Classification History:  

Established: 12/1988  
Revised: 06/1990  
Revised: 03/2002 
Revised: 04/2011 

 



 



 
Fi

rs
tN

am
e 

L
as

tN
am

e 
A

dd
re

ss
1 

C
ity

 
St

at
e 

Po
st

al
C

od
e 

tim
e 

T
itl

e 
Ph

on
e 

 

1 
Su

za
nn

e 
W

ils
on

 
16

38
 T

en
th

 S
tre

et
 

B
er

ke
le

y
C

A
 

94
71

0 
7:

30
 –

 7
:4

5 
PM

M
s 

51
0-

68
4-

75
54

 H
 

51
0-

86
8-

08
55

 W
 

2 
Jo

hn
 

W
ei

l 
17

7 
H

ill
cr

es
t R

oa
d 

B
er

ke
le

y
C

A
 

94
70

5 
7:

45
 –

 8
:0

0 
PM

M
r.

51
0-

65
2-

96
64

 

 

3 
Ji

m
 

N
ov

os
el

 
24

18
 C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 S
tre

et
 

B
er

ke
le

y
C

A
 

94
70

3 
8:

00
 –

 8
:1

5 
PM

M
r.

51
0-

84
5-

24
19

 H
 

51
0-

42
0-

14
84

 W
 

4 
Ju

lie
 

H
ol

co
m

b 
18

36
 H

op
ki

ns
 S

tre
et

 
B

er
ke

le
y

C
A

 
94

70
7 

8:
15

 –
 8

:3
0 

PM
M

s.
51

0-
52

4-
85

13
 H

 

51
0-

65
4-

64
16

 W
 

5 
R

ob
er

t 
D

ix
on

 
20

20
 B

an
cr

of
t W

ay
 #

32
1

B
er

ke
le

y
C

A
 

94
70

4 
8:

45
 –

 9
:0

0 
PM

M
r.

51
0-

75
7-

87
48

 H
 

51
0-

66
5-

32
20

 W
 

6 
V

iv
ia

n 
Pi

sa
no

 
18

18
 B

ue
na

 A
ve

nu
e 

B
er

ke
le

y
C

A
 

94
70

3 
9:

00
 –

 9
:1

5 
PM

M
s.

51
0-

52
7-

19
59

 

vp
is

an
o@

ea
rth

lin
k.

ne
t 

7 
R

ee
d 

Sc
hm

id
t 

53
8 

V
in

ce
nt

e 
A

ve
nu

e 
B

er
ke

le
y

C
A

 
94

70
7 

9:
15

 –
 9

:3
0 

PM
M

r.
51

0-
52

4-
69

44
 H

 

51
0-

65
3-

33
99

 e
xt

 1
11

 W

Board of Library Trustees 
Applicant Interview Schedule 

 

IV Trustee Interviews, Item A

mailto:vpisano@earthlink.net


● #6 Vivian Pisano 

☻ ☻ ☻    AbigailAbigailAbigail   
   FrankliFrankliFranklinnn   

☻   Susan KupferSusan KupferSusan Kupfer   

☻    ☻    ☻    Darryl MooreDarryl MooreDarryl Moore   

☻☻☻   CarolynCarolynCarolyn   
         HenryHenryHenry---GolphinGolphinGolphin   

CENTRAL  

CLAREMONT 
BRANCH 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

Trustee and Applicant Locations 

NORTH 
BRANCH 

WEST 
BRANCH 

SOUTH 
BRANCH 

● #4 Julie Holcomb 

#2 John Weil ● 

● #5 Bob Dixon 

● #3 Jim Novosel 

● #1 Suzanne Wilson 
Winston Winston Winston Burton Burton Burton ☻   ☻   ☻      

● #7 Reed Schmidt 

IV Trustee Interviews, Item A



 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 

  ACTION CALENDAR 
  April 13, 2011 
 
TO:  Board of Library Trustees 
 
FROM:  Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
 
Subject:  Contract: BHM Construction for Renovation and Construction of the North Branch Library  

 
RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt a resolution to recommend City Council adopt a resolution:  

1. Approving plans and  specifications  for  the Berkeley Public Library North Branch  Improvement 
Project; 

2. Accepting the bid of BHM Construction; and 

3. Authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract, and any amendments, extensions or change 
orders until completion of the project in an amount not to exceed $4,760,000 which includes a 
contingency of approximately 9%.  

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION 

Funding for the award of this contract is in the FY 2011 budget as follows: 

PROJECT  COST  FUND  BUDGET CODE 
North Branch Project   $4,560,000  Measure FF –  Branch 

Improvement Program 
308‐9301‐450.65‐70 
 

Branch Libraries FF&E   $200,000  Foundation FF&E (gift funds)  307‐9301‐450.30‐38 
307‐9301‐450.70‐43 

Assigned CMS number is SBNNP. 

The bid day estimate for this project was $3.8M. In order to accept the lowest bidder for the rebid and 
to  include  a  change order  allowance of  approximately 9%  in  the  event unforeseen  conditions occur, 
North Branch Library Project contingency and some soft cost  funds were reallocated. The budget was 
developed with no adverse effect on the funding balance for the remaining three projects. In addition, 
$200,000  from gift  funds  is allocated toward Fixtures, Furniture & Equipment  for this project to cover 
the cost of shelving, the service desk and audio‐visual equipment included in the construction contract.  

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 

The North Branch Library located at 1170 The Alameda is in need of improvements to make it seismically 
safe, compliant with current codes – including the ADA, and to allow it to function as a modern library. 

V Action, Item A



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
ACTION CALENDAR REPORT 
Contract: BHM Construction for North Branch Library Construction  Page 2 

 
To ensure that Berkeley can serve the needs of  library patrons with adequate seating, computers, and 
for public functions, renovation and expansion is needed. 

BACKGROUND 

In November 2008 City residents voted  in favor of Measure FF, a Library bond measure not to exceed 
$26M to renovate, expand, and make seismic and access improvements at the four branch libraries. In 
July 2009  the Board of  Library  Trustees  voted  to  recommend  to  the City Council  a preferred  firm  to 
complete architectural design services for the North Branch Library; in September 2009 the City Council 
approved  the  hiring  of  Architectural  Resources  Group  with  Tom  Eliot  Fisch  to  design  and  develop 
construction documents for the renovation and expansion of the North Branch Library.   

The North Branch Improvement Project was released for bid on January 18, 2011, and bids were opened 
on February 17, 2011. On March 22, 2011, Council elected to reject all bids submitted on February 17, 
2011 and authorized  the City Manager  to modify  the plans and  specifications  in a  timely manner by 
addendum and receive new bids for the modified plans and specifications. Accordingly, the bid period 
that previously closed on February 17, 2011 was reopened and bids requested again for the work shown 
in  the original bid documents modified by  subsequent  addenda.    The  final Bid Documents  therefore 
included all documents related to the previous bid (including all plans, Project Manual and Addenda 1 
through 4) as well modifications included in Addenda 5, 6 and 7.   

The modified bid documents were  released on March 23, 2011, and bids were opened on March 31, 
2011.  Three bids were received from a low of $4,360,000 to a high of $4,558,197 (Attachment 2). The 
low bidder was determined according to the instructions sent out with the Request for Bids.  Based on 
these criteria the order of the three lowest bidders is as follows: 

1. BHM Construction                                       $4,360,000 
2. John Plane Construction           $4,398,253 
3. Vila Construction                                      $4,558,197 

BHM Construction has been determined to be the lowest responsive bidder.  After interviewing BHM’s 
references, it was determined that it was a responsible bidder as well.  Accordingly, it is recommended 
that a contract for this project be awarded to that firm. 

Pursuant  to  Berkeley  code  section  3.04.090(E)  the  Library  shall  recommend  to  the  City  Council  the 
execution  of  contracts  relating  to  the  improvements  at  the  four  branch  libraries,  including  but  not 
limited to, contracts for design, engineering, construction management, and construction.  

The contract is subject to the Community Workforce Agreement approved by the Berkeley City Council 
on January 18, 2011. As a result, the successful bidder and all subcontractors will be required to sign an 
agreement to be bound before being eligible for award of a contract. The Living Wage Ordinance does 
not apply to this project since public works construction contracts are, pursuant to City policy, subject to 
State prevailing wage laws. 

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION 

Three  bids  were  submitted  for  the  project  and  BHM  Construction  was  the  lowest  responsive  and 
responsible  bidder.  The  City  does  not  have  the  available  in‐house  work  force  to  perform  the 
construction services required for this scale of a project. It is therefore necessary to execute a contract 
with BHM. 

 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
ACTION CALENDAR REPORT 
Contract: BHM Construction for North Branch Library Construction  Page 3 

 
ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED 

No alternative actions have been considered. 
 

CONTACT PERSON 

John Rosenbrock, Office of the City Manager, 589‐9573 

Donna Corbeil, Berkeley Public Library, 981‐6195 

 
Attachments:  
1: Resolution 
2: Bid Results 



 



 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

RESOLUTION NO.: R10‐031 

CONTRACT:  BHM CONSTRUCTION FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THE NORTH BRANCH LIBRARY 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

WHEREAS, in November 2008 City residents voted in favor of Measure FF a Library bond measure not to 
exceed  $26M  to  renovate,  expand,  and make  seismic  and  access  improvements  at  the  four  branch 
libraries; and 

WHEREAS, the City hired Architectural Resources Group to design and develop construction documents 
for the renovation and expansion of the North Branch Library; and 

WHEREAS, the City lacks sufficient staff and resources to complete the construction in‐house; and 

WHEREAS, a request for bids from contractors to renovate the North Branch Library was released for bid 
on January 18, 2011 and opened on February 17, 2011; and 

WHEREAS, on March 22, 2011, Council elected  to  reject all bids  submitted on February 17, 2011 and 
authorized  the City Manager  to modify  the plans and specifications  in a  timely manner by addendum 
and receive new bids for the modified plans and specifications; and 

WHEREAS,  the  bid  period was  reopened  on March  23,  2011  and  bids  requested  again  for  the work 
shown in the original bid documents as modified, and bids were opened on March 31, 2011; and  

WHEREAS, BHM Construction was determined to be the lowest responsive and responsible bidder; and 

WHEREAS,  funding  is  available  in  FY  2011  of  $4,560,000  from  the  Neighborhood  Branch  Library 
Improvement  Program  / Measure  FF  Fund  budget  code  308‐930‐450.65‐70  and  $200,000  from  the 
Library Foundation FF&E Fund budget code 307‐9301‐450.30‐38 and 307‐9301‐450.70‐43; and 

WHEREAS, the assigned CMS number is SBNNP; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code section 3.04.090(E) the Library shall recommend to the 
City  Council  the  execution  of  contracts  relating  to  the  improvements  at  the  four  branch  libraries, 
including  but  not  limited  to,  contracts  for  design,  engineering,  construction  management,  and 
construction, and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE  IT RESOLVED  that  the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley adopt a 
resolution  to  recommend  City  Council  approve  execution  of  a  contract,  and  any  amendments, 
extensions, or change orders until completion of the project in accordance with the approved plans and 
Specifications  No.  11‐10564‐C  with  BHM  Construction,  for  the  North  Branch  Library  Improvement 
Project, in an amount not to exceed $4,760,000.  

ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley at a regular meeting held on April 13, 
2011 by the following vote: 

AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:   
ABSTENTIONS:   

                       
        Susan Kupfer, Chairperson 
 
                       
        Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
        Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 
 

Attachment 1



 



P
ro

je
c
t:

B
e
rk
e
le
y
 P
u
b
li
c
 L
ib
ra
ry

D
a
te

:
0
3
/3

1
/1

1

N
o
rt
h
 B
ra
n
c
h
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
je
c
t

B
id

 T
im

e
:

2
:0

0
 P

M

O
w

n
e
r:

C
ity

 o
f 
B

e
rk

e
le

y
B

id
 N

o
:

1
1
-1

0
5
6
4
-C

C
o
n
st

ru
c
tio

n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r:

K
itc

h
e
ll 

C
E

M

A
rc

h
ite

c
t:

A
rc

h
ite

c
tu

ra
l R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

G
ro

u
p
 (
in

 a
ss

o
c
ia

tio
n
 w

ith
 T

o
m

 E
lio

t 
F
is

c
h
)

B
o
n
d

N
o
n
-

B
id

A
c
c
o
m

p
a
n
yi

n
g

S
u
b
c
o
n
tr
a
c
to

r
C

o
llu

si
o
n

A
d
d
e
n
d
a

F
o
rm

B
id

L
is

t
A

ff
id

a
vi

t
1
 -
 7

B
A
S
E

C
O
N
T
R
A
C
T
O
R

0
0
3
0
0

0
0
4
1
1

0
0
4
3
0

0
0
4
8
1

A
c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
d

B
ID

1
B
H
M
 C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
, 
In
c
.

X
X

X
X

X
$
4
,3
6
0
,0
0
0

2
J
o
h
n
 P

la
n
e
 C

o
n
st

ru
c
tio

n
, 
In

c
.

X
X

X
X

X
$
4
,3

9
8
,2

5
3

3
V

ila
 C

o
n
st

ru
c
tio

n
 C

o
.

X
X

X
X

X
$
4
,5

5
8
,1

9
7

E
st

im
a
te

:
3
,8

0
0
,0

0
0

$
  
  
  
  
 

L
o
w

 R
e
sp

o
n
si

ve
 B

id
:

4
,3

6
0
,0

0
0

$
  
  
  
  
 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
:

5
6
0
,0

0
0

$
  
  
  
  
  
  

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
:

1
4
.7

4
%

A
ve

ra
g
e
 B

id
:

4
,4

3
8
,8

1
7

$
  
  
  
  
 

R
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 b

y:
 S

te
ve

n
 D

e
w

a
n
, 
K

itc
h
e
ll 

P
ro

je
c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
r

D
a
te

: 
 0

3
/3

1
/1

1

P
a
g
e
 1

 o
f 
1

p
ri
n
te
d
 o
n
: 
4
/1
/2
0
1
1

V Action, Item A 
    Attachment 2



 



 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 

ACTION CALENDAR 
April 13, 2011 

 
To:  Board of Library Trustees 
 
From:  Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services  
 
Subject:  Discussion and recommendation to the City Council on appointment of Trustees to serve a  four‐

year term commencing May 14, 2011, to fill vacancy  left by Susan Kupfer term end and a second 
appointment to serve a four‐year term commencing May 14, 2011, to fill the vacancy  left by the 
early resignation of Carolyn Henry‐Golphin, in advance of the term‐end date of October 1, 2011. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Discuss candidates interviewed and adopt a resolution naming the recommended candidates to the City 
Council for appointment. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact for the item. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Board of Library Trustees consists of five members appointed by the City Council upon recommendation of 
the  Board  of  Library  Trustees.    Board  members  are  appointed  for  terms  of  four  years,  serve  without 
compensation, and must be Berkeley residents.   
 
Trustee Susan Kupfer has served two four‐year terms on the Board. Her second term will end on May 13, 2011. 
Carolyn Henry‐Golphin notified the board by letter, dated April 30, 2011 that she will resign five months early 
(appointment ends October 1, 2011) from her first 4‐year term, her appointment will end on May 13, 2011. 
The process  for  replacement  is  for  the Board  to promote  the vacancy,  interview  candidates and  choose an 
individual to recommend to the City Council for appointment from the applicants to fill anticipated vacancies.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact.  
 
CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 
 
The process and criteria related to the search for a replacement began in January 2011 to ensure an 
appointment to replace Trustee Kupfer was made prior to May 13, 2011. The board recommends Council 
appoints a new Trustee to fill both this and the second vacancy for a 4‐year term and recommend the term of 
both be 4‐year appointments effective May 14, 2011.  Though Trustee Henry‐Golphin’s resignation was not 
anticipated in the initial recruitment effort, there are many applicants and an adequate pool from which to 
interview and select a second trustee applicant. If the Henry‐Golphin position is filled only for the remainder of 

V Action Calendar, Item B 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
ACTION CALENDAR 
Discussion and Recommendation to City Council for Trustee Appointments Effective May 14, 2011  Page 2 

 

 

the term, five‐months ending October 1, 2011, a new recruitment effort will need to be undertaken beginning 
immediately in order to complete the process in the allowed time.   

The following timeline reflects the process used for the recruitment effort:  

 

DATE  ACTIVITY 

January 12, 2011   Timeline for recruitment effort reviewed by BOLT 

January 1‐ March 31  Recruitment open, Advertisement in media and in library branches; 
open house planned for February & Application Review; staff reports 
to Board on recruitment efforts and gives update on process set to 
close in early April 2011 

February 1, 2011 

April 30, 2011 

Open House @ Central 6:30 PM 

Trustee Henry‐Golphin submits resignation 

April  13, 2011  BOLT regular meeting ‐ Interviews and Recommendation  

May 03, 2011  City Council meeting consent item to approve appointing the 
recommended candidates  

May 13, 2011 

May 13, 2011 

Trustee Kupfer’s term ends / new Trustee term begins 

Trustee Henry‐Golphin’s term ends / new Trustee term begins 

June 8, 2011   New Trustees’s first regular meeting as a Board member 

 
RECRUITMENT 
 
The  current  boards  and  commission  page  of  the  city’s  website  gives  general  information  on  commission 
vacancies and specific information for the Board of Library Trustees, including BOLT Application, Supplemental 
Questionnaire, meeting  times, minutes and a  link  to  the  Library's website and  the Board’s mission and  the 
following charter citations are listed with full text. In addition, the Library placed a paid advertisement in The 
Monthly (magazine) and Berkeleyside (online newspaper), posted flyers and distributed information regarding 
the upcoming vacancy. As a result of this effort seven applications were received. All were invited to interview 
at a regular meeting of the board.  
 
 
FUTURE ACTION 
There is no action required. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Resolution 
 



  

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

RESOLUTION NO. R11‐___ 

RECOMMENDATION TO THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BERKELEY REGARDING THE PREFERRED 
CANDIDATES TO FILL THE UPCOMING VACANCIES ON THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

WHEREAS, Trustee Therese Kupfer’s second term ends May 13, 2011; and 

WHEREAS, Trustee Henry‐Golphin’s submitted a letter of resignation effective May 13, 2011; and 

WHEREAS, during the January 12, 2011 regular meeting of the Board of Library Trustees, the Board instructed 
staff to begin solicitation for applications to fill the upcoming vacancy and issue public announcements; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Library Trustees directed staff to place paid advertisements  in  local publications and 
use other means to promote the vacancy; and 

WHEREAS, the City Clerk’s Office of the City of Berkeley received seven (7) applications from interested parties; 
and 

WHEREAS,  the Board of Library Trustees  interviewed seven of  the applicants during  the  regular meeting on 
April 13, 2011; and 

WHEREAS, the Board recommends Council set the conditions for appointment of ____________ as a 4‐year 
term with the effective dates of May 14, 2011 to May 14, 2014 to replace Trustee Kupfer; and 

WHEREAS, the Board recommends Council set the conditions of appointment of ______________as a 4‐year 
term with the effective dates of May 14, 2011 to May 14, 2014 to replace Trustee Henry‐Golphin, in order to 
ensure all board positions are filled.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley recommends to 
the City Council of  the City of Berkeley  that  the preferred  candidates be appointed  to  the Board of  Library 
Trustees.  

ADOPTED by the Board of Library Trustees of the City of Berkeley during a regular meeting held on April 13, 
2011.  

AYES:   

NOES:   

ABSENT:   

ABSTENTIONS:    

    __________________________________________________  
  Susan Kupfer, Chairperson 
 

    __________________________________________________  
  Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
  Serving as Secretary to the Board of Library Trustees 

Attachment 1



 



 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 
  INFORMATION CALENDAR 
  APRIL 13, 2011 
 
TO:  Board of Library Trustees 
 
FROM:  Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
   
SUBJECT:  APRIL  2011  MONTHLY  BRANCH  IMPROVEMENT  PROJECT  REPORT  FROM  LIBRARY 

DIRECTOR  
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
Every month the Library Director gives the Board a report on branch improvement activities and updates 
from the previous month.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
This report will have no fiscal impacts. 
 
SUMMARY OF WORK 
 
Meetings held during this reporting period include: 

• Weekly project meetings facilitated by the KCEM project manager, Steve Dewan or Bob Fusilier 

• Meeting with City’s Planning Department and architects as needed 
 
COMMUNICATION 
  
Staff continues to update the Library website with FAQs, announcements of meetings etc. as needed: 
http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/about_the_library/b‐renovation.php. A display of the latest plans 
for that branch and the appropriate FAQ is posted for public review. Comments are being taken and 
suggestions received are posted. Closure guides, FAQs and bookmarks related to construction closure 
for the first two projects were finalized and made available in paper and posted on the library’s website.  
 
FISCAL 
 
None. 
 
OTHER CITY AGENCIES, BOARDS AND BODIES 
 
Planning Department 
 

VI Information, Item A 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION CALENDAR REPORT 
April 2011 Monthly Branch Improvement Project Report from Library Director  Page 2 

   
EIR 
The Draft EIR was released on December 15, 2010 by the Planning Department: DEIR for the Proposed 
Zoning Ordinance Amendment for Public Libraries and the South and West Branch Libraries Project.  The 
final Library EIR was released on March 31, 2011.  A joint meeting of the ZAB and LPC is scheduled for 
April 14, 2011 (Attachment 1). The FEIR will require certification by ZAB, and finally by the City Council. 
The first reading of the ZOA is tentatively scheduled for the April 26, 2011 Council meeting, concurrent 
with the review and certification of the Final EIR. A hearing and final council action is anticipated in 
Spring 2011. 
 
To facilitate public participation the Library prepared and distributed flyers advertising the hearing on 
April 14, 2011 and highlighted it on our webpage: 
 

Special Meeting on West Branch and South Branch Library Projects 
The Zoning Adjustments Board and Landmarks Preservation Commission will hold a joint public hearing 

on these two projects, regarding use permit applications and consideration of the Final Environmental 

Impact Report. 

 West Branch Library Project (demolition of existing structure in order to construct a new branch 

library.) 

• South Branch Library Project (demolition of existing structure in order to construct a new branch 

library.) 

The public meeting will be held on Thursday, April 14, 2011 at the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134 Martin 

Luther King, Jr. Way, second floor Council chambers (wheelchair accessible) beginning at 6:00 p.m. For 

more information see the Notice of Public Hearing. The Agenda and staff report for this meeting will be 

available online 3 to 5 days prior to this meeting at  

(ZAB) www.cityofberkeley.info/zoningadjustmentsboard, 

 (LPC) www.cityofberkeley.info/ContentDisplay.aspx?id=13016. Plans and other application materials for 

this project is at: www.cityofberkeley.info/zoningapplications. 

 
PROJECT UPDATES 
 
West Branch Library 
 
Design Review Commission 
The West Branch proposed project – preliminary design was discussed at the February 17, 2011 meeting 
and a second time on March 17, 2011.  Preliminary Design Review of a new 9,399 sq. ft. branch library 
for the Berkeley Public Library was concluded at the second meeting, with a ruling and stipulations 
regarding future actions voted on.  The proposed project will include the demolition of the existing 
structure and site excavation. The Commission agenda, staff report and related documents for the item 
can be found at:  http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/ContentDisplay.aspx?id=66030 and  
http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/ContentDisplay.aspx?id=62562. Additional meetings will be held but no 
schedule for these has yet been set. 
 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION CALENDAR REPORT 
April 2011 Monthly Branch Improvement Project Report from Library Director  Page 3 

   
North Branch Library 
 
Events to mark the beginning of the construction phase, i.e. ground breaking was held at the branch on 
March 5 from 2:00 PM to 5:00 PM. Unfortunately, subsequent bids were over the projected budget and 
a rebid was recommended, delaying the project start date. 
 
At the March 22, 2011 regular meeting of the Council, an item regarding the current situation at North 
branch was included for action. This recommendation from the board was approved at the special BOLT 
meeting of March 17, 2011.    The consent item, which was approved, was a recommendation to: accept 
the requests to withdraw bids received from D.L. Falk Construction and J.H. Fitzmaurice, Inc.; and 
rejecting all remaining bids received on February 17, 2011, prepare a new addendum, and reopen the 
bidding for the project as modified by the new addendum number 5, 6 and 7; bids opened on March 31, 
2011.  
 
In anticipation of the approval of the construction contract, the library publicly announced that the 
North Branch Library will be temporarily closed beginning Monday, April 25th.  The last open day of 
service will be Saturday, April 23rd.  The branch is projected to be closed for 9 to 12 months. 
 
Claremont Branch Library 
 
An event to mark the beginning of the construction phase, i.e. ground breaking was held at the branch 
on March 19 from 2:00 PM to 5:00 PM.   
 
At the March 29, 2011 regular meeting of the Council an item regarding the current situation at 
Claremont branch was included for action. This recommendation from the board was approved at the 
Special BOLT meeting of March 17, 2011.  The Council approved on consent a resolution: approving 
plans and specifications for the Berkeley Public Library Claremont Branch Improvement Project: 
rejecting the Bid Protest of BHM Construction, Inc.;  accepting the bid of Fine Line Construction; and  
authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract, amendments, and any extensions or change orders 
until completion of the project in an amount not to exceed $3,300,000 which includes a contingency of 
approximately 11%. 
 
The Claremont Branch Library will be closing temporarily for  improvements starting Monday April 4th.  
The  last open day  for public  service will be  Saturday, April 2nd.  Information  regarding  the  temporary 
closure  is posted at the branch and on the  library’s website,  in addition to several articles  in the  local 
press.   BranchVan service to the Claremont Branch neighborhood will begin on Monday, April 11th and 
patrons may start to place holds for BranchVan pick‐up on Friday, April 8th.  These mobile services to the 
Claremont neighborhood will be via a stop at Garber Street and College Avenue, adjacent to St. John’s 
Presbyterian Church.  

 
OTHER 
 
Events and other information regarding the progress on Measure FF projects is posted to the Library’s 
website at http://berkeleypubliclibrary.org/branchimprovements.  
 
 
FF&E 
In early March, staff prepared and released a Request for Proposals (RFP) for the restoration of historic 
furniture and fabrication services for the North and Claremont branch measure FF projects, both of 



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION CALENDAR REPORT 
April 2011 Monthly Branch Improvement Project Report from Library Director  Page 4 

   
which contain historic furnishings.  Contracted service is to include move‐out, repair, refinish, 
reproduction or fabrication, storage, and move‐in of these historic furnishings. The due date for 
responses was March 22, 2011, following the closure of the RFP period staff accessed responses and will 
execute a contract with the selected vendor, Kay Chesterfield of Oakland, in an amount not to exceed 
$30,000.  Gift funds from the Library Foundation have been allocated to fund this activity.  



 
 
 

BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 

  INFORMATION CALENDAR 
  April 13, 2011 
 
 
TO:  Board of Library Trustees 
 
FROM:  Donna Corbeil, Director of Library Services 
     
SUBJECT:  APRIL 2011 MONTHLY REPORT FROM LIBRARY DIRECTOR  
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
Every month the Library Director gives the Board a report on Library activities and updates from the 
previous month.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
This report will have no fiscal impacts. 
 

PROFESSIONAL ACTIVITIES 
 
The Director attended a two‐day conference on Public Library Sustainability in San Jose on March 21‐22, 
the event was sponsored by the U.S. Institute of Museum and Library Services, organized by the 
California State Library and Infopeople. The focus of the event was to support activities directly related 
to innovations strengthening libraries in California during this difficult economic downturn, including 
how to communicate the value and importance of public libraries.   
 
 
PROGRAMS, SERVICES AND COLLECTIONS 
 
Programming 
 
Staff held an array of programs in the past month, among the most highly successful was the Sacred 
Spaces series. The most recent program had 30 attendees, focused on local open‐spaces, East Bay Parks 
and parks in general.  Included were slides from the early days of Tilden. The overall program was a 
balance of history, stories, pictures, and people. 
 
Please, check the online calendar at: http://www.berkeleypubliclibrary.org/ for a list of regular and 
special programs. Staff also prepares a paper calendar monthly of events that can be printed form the 
website or picked up at the branches.  
 

VI Information, Item B



BERKELEY PUBLIC LIBRARY  
INFORMATION CALENDAR REPORT 
April 2011 Monthly Report from Library Director  Page 2 

   
FACILITIES/ OPERATIONS & PERSONNEL 
At its March 8th meeting the City Council adopted the City’s Open Government Ordinance.  The Open 
Government Ordinance (OGO), also known as the "sunshine ordinance," is a local law that provides 
additional assurances that community members have access to public meetings and public documents.   
There is no direct impact on the board, except for the revised schedule for submitting agenda items to 
the Council, the lead time has been increased.  
 
In an effort to reduce costs staff will initiate two changes: 

1. Set the BOLT webpage up so that people can sign up to be notified when a new agenda gets 
posted. Some of the recipients of the paper BOLT agenda packets may prefer this option to the 
paper packets we send out. Of course, paper will still be an option for those that prefer it, but 
some individuals may be interested in forgoing the printed copy and view their agenda online 
and can self select what to print.  

2. We have begun, with this agenda packet to include a list with a link to all of the media 
references to the library and not include the full‐text articles, advertisements and other 
mentions of the library in the packet unless it is directly related to an agenda item, in those 
cases the item will be an attachment to the agenda item. An example would be the BOLT 
recruitment ads. The printing and mailing costs will be reduced as a result. 

 
Attachments: None 



D
at
e 

Pu
bl
ic
at
io
n 

D
es
cr
ip
ti
on

 
Li
nk

 /
 N
ot
es
 

03
/0
2/
20

11
 
Ea
st
 B
ay
 E
xp
re
ss
 

Ch
ild
re
n’
s 
D
ep

ar
tm

en
t A

d 
ht
tp
:/
/w

w
w
.e
as
tb
ay
ex
pr
es
s.
co
m
/g
en

er
al
/f
la
sh
/0
3‐
02

‐2
01

1/
 

Pa
ge
 1
3 

03
/0
3/
20

11
 
Be

rk
el
ey
 T
im

es
 

A
ut
ho

rs
 D
in
ne

r 
 

03
/0
4/
20

11
 
Be

rk
el
ey
 V
oi
ce
 

Be
rk
el
ey
 h
is
to
ry
: B

er
ke
le
y 
so
ug
ht
 v
ot
es
 fo

r 
w
om

en
 in

 1
91

1 
by

 S
te
ve
n 
Fi
na
co
m
.  
 

Ex
hi
bi
t p

la
nn

ed
 fo

r 
Ce

nt
ra
l L
ib
ra
ry
 th

is
 F
al
l. 

03
/0
4/
20

11
 
Be

rk
el
ey
 V
oi
ce
 

Ca
le
nd

ar
 L
is
tin

g 
fo
r 
Ev
en

ts
, S
ou

l W
om

en
 a
nd

 
Ro

ck
er
s 
on

 F
ilm

 
 

03
/0
9/
20

11
 
Be

rk
el
ey
 D
ai
ly
 P
la
ne

t 
Le
tt
er
s 
to
 th

e 
Ed

ito
r 
‐ B

er
ke
le
y 
Li
br
ar
y 
Fu
nd

s 
by

 y
ol
an
da

 h
ua
ng

 
ht
tp
:/
/w

w
w
.b
er
ke
le
yd
ai
ly
pl
an
et
.c
om

/i
ss
ue

/2
01

1‐
03

‐
09

/a
rt
ic
le
/3
74

75
?h
ea
dl
in
e=
Le
tt
er
s‐
to
‐t
he

‐E
di
to
r 

03
/0
9/
20

11
 
Be

rk
el
ey
 D
ai
ly
 P
la
ne

t 
Re

ad
er
 C
om

m
en

ta
ri
es
 ‐ 
Th

e 
H
id
de

n 
Co

st
 o
f 

Li
br
ar
y 
D
em

ol
iti
on

s 
by

 L
or
i K
os
so
w
sk
y 

ht
tp
:/
/w

w
w
.b
er
ke
le
yd
ai
ly
pl
an
et
.c
om

/i
ss
ue

/2
01

1‐
03

‐
09

/a
rt
ic
le
/3
74

73
?h
ea
dl
in
e=
Th
e‐
H
id
de

n‐
Co

st
s‐
of
‐L
ib
ra
ry
‐

D
em

ol
iti
on

s 

03
/1
5/
20

11
 
Be

rk
el
ey
si
de

.c
om

 
Be

rk
el
ey
 w
om

en
 h
on

or
ed

 fo
r 
go
in
g 
ab
ov
e 

an
d 
be

yo
nd

 b
y 
G
in
ge
r 
O
gl
e 

ht
tp
:/
/w

w
w
.b
er
ke
le
ys
id
e.
co
m
/2
01

1/
03

/1
5/
be

rk
el
ey
‐w

om
en

‐
ho

no
re
d‐
fo
r‐
go
in
g‐
ab
ov
e‐
an
d‐
be

yo
nd

/ 

03
/1
5/
20

11
 
D
ai
ly
 C
al
ifo

rn
ia
n 

Ev
en

t H
on

or
s 
O
ut
st
an
di
ng

 W
om

en
 o
f 

Be
rk
el
ey
 b
y 
Vi
ct
or
ia
 P
ar
di
ni
 

ht
tp
:/
/w

w
w
.d
ai
ly
ca
l.o
rg
/a
rt
ic
le
/1
12

39
6/
ev
en

t_
ho

no
rs
_o

ut
st
an

di
ng
_w

om
en

_o
f_
be

rk
el
ey
 

03
/1
6/
20

11
 
Be

rk
el
ey
 D
ai
ly
 P
la
ne

t 
"C
om

m
un

ity
 E
ng
ag
em

en
t"
 M

ee
tin

g 
on

 
Be

rk
el
ey
 L
ib
ra
ry
 L
aw

su
it 
Be

co
m
es
 "
Pr
iv
at
e"
 

by
 S
te
ve
n 
Fi
na
co
m
 

ht
tp
:/
/w

w
w
.b
er
ke
le
yd
ai
ly
pl
an
et
.c
om

/i
ss
ue

/2
01

1‐
03

‐
16

/a
rt
ic
le
/3
75

15
?h
ea
dl
in
e=

‐C
om

m
un

ity
‐E
ng
ag
em

en
t‐
M
ee
tin

g‐
on

‐B
er
ke
le
y‐
Li
br
ar
y‐
La
w
su
it‐
Be

co
m
es
‐P
ri
va
te
‐ 

03
/1
6/
20

11
 
Be

rk
el
ey
 D
ai
ly
 P
la
ne

t 
Le
t t
he

 S
un

 S
hi
ne

 in
 B
er
ke
le
y 
To

o 
by

 B
ec
ky
 

O
’M

al
le
y 

ht
tp
:/
/w

w
w
.b
er
ke
le
yd
ai
ly
pl
an
et
.c
om

/i
ss
ue

/2
01

1‐
03

‐
16

/a
rt
ic
le
/3
75

19
?h
ea
dl
in
e=
Le
t‐
th
e‐
Su
n‐
Sh
in
e‐
in
‐B
er
ke
le
y‐
To

o 

se
e 
th
ir
d 
to
 la
st
 p
ar
ag
ra
ph

 

03
/2
2/
20

11
 
Be

rk
el
ey
si
de

.c
om

 
N
or
th
 B
ra
nc
h 
lib
ra
ry
 c
on

st
ru
ct
io
n 
de

la
ye
d 
by

 
Fr
an
ce
s 
D
in
ke
ls
pi
el
 

ht
tp
:/
/w

w
w
.b
er
ke
le
ys
id
e.
co
m
/2
01

1/
03

/2
2/
no

rt
h‐
br
an
ch
‐

lib
ra
ry
‐c
on

st
ru
ct
io
n‐
de

la
ye
d/

 
03

/2
3/
20

11
 
Be

rk
el
ey
 D
ai
ly
 P
la
ne

t 
Cl
ar
em

on
t B

ra
nc
h 
Li
br
ar
y 
Te
m
po

ra
ry
 C
lo
su
re
 

fo
r 
Re

no
va
tio

ns
 a
nd

 N
ew

 C
on

st
ru
ct
io
n 
by

 
A
la
n 
Be

rn
  

ht
tp
:/
/w

w
w
.b
er
ke
le
yd
ai
ly
pl
an
et
.c
om

/i
ss
ue

/2
01

1‐
03

‐
23

/a
rt
ic
le
/3
75

58
?h
ea
dl
in
e=
Cl
ar
em

on
t‐
Br
an
ch
‐L
ib
ra
ry
‐

Te
m
po

ra
ry
‐C
lo
su
re
‐f
or
‐R
en

ov
at
io
ns
‐a
nd

‐N
ew

‐C
on

st
ru
ct
io
n 
 

VI Information, Item C
Media, Events , etc.



D
at
e 

Pu
bl
ic
at
io
n 

D
es
cr
ip
ti
on

 
Li
nk

 /
 N
ot
es
 

03
/2
3/
20

11
 
Be

rk
el
ey
 D
ai
ly
 P
la
ne

t 
Le
tt
er
s 
to
 th

e 
Ed

ito
r 

By
 L
in
da

 S
ch
ac
ht
 

By
 S
te
ve
 F
in
ac
om

 

By
 G
ay
le
 G
ar
ci
a 

By
 P
et
er
 W

ar
fie

ld
 

By
 L
en

ny
 C
he

n 

ht
tp
:/
/w

w
w
.b
er
ke
le
yd
ai
ly
pl
an
et
.c
om

/i
ss
ue

/2
01

1‐
03

‐
23

/a
rt
ic
le
/3
75

62
?h
ea
dl
in
e=
Le
tt
er
s‐
to
‐t
he

‐E
di
to
r 
 

03
/2
8/
20

11
 
Be

rk
el
ey
si
de

.c
om

 
Cl
ar
em

on
t 
br
an
ch
 o

f 
th
e 

lib
ra
ry
 w

ill
 c
lo
se
 

A
pr
il 
2 
by

 F
ra
nc
es
 D
in
ke
ls
pi
el
 

ht
tp
:/
/w

w
w
.b
er
ke
le
ys
id
e.
co
m
/2
01

1/
03

/2
8/
cl
ar
em

on
t‐
br
an
ch
‐

of
‐t
he

‐li
br
ar
y‐
w
ill
‐c
lo
se
‐a
pr
il‐
2/
 

03
/3
0/
20

11
 
D
ai
ly
 C
al
ifo

rn
ia
 

Cl
ar
em

on
t 
Br
an
ch
 o
f 
Be

rk
el
ey
 P
ub

lic
 L
ib
ra
ry
 

to
 B
eg
in
 R
en

ov
at
io
ns
 

ht
tp
:/
/w

w
w
.d
ai
ly
ca
l.o
rg
/a
rt
ic
le
/1
12

52
6/
cl
ar
em

on
t_
br
an
ch
_o

f_
be

rk
el
ey
_p

ub
lic
_l
ib
ra
ry
_t
o_

be
g#
co
m
m
en

ts
  

03
/3
0/
20

11
 
Be

rk
el
ey
 D
ai
ly
 P
la
ne

t 
Re

ad
er
 
Co

m
m
en

ta
ri
es
 
‐ 
To

to
! 
A
re
 
W
e 

in
 

Ka
ns
as
? 
By

 W
in
st
on

 B
ur
to
n,
 B
oa
rd
 o
f 
Li
br
ar
y 

Tr
us
te
e 
 

ht
tp
:/
/w

w
w
.b
er
ke
le
yd
ai
ly
pl
an
et
.c
om

/i
ss
ue

/2
01

1‐
03

‐
30

/a
rt
ic
le
/3
75

87
?h
ea
dl
in
e=
To

to
‐A
re
‐W

e‐
in
‐K
an
sa
s‐
  

03
/3
0/
20

11
 
Be

rk
el
ey
 D
ai
ly
 P
la
ne

t 
Re

ad
er
 C
om

m
en

ta
ri
es
 ‐ 
Pu

bl
ic
 C
on

ce
rn
s 

Br
us
he

d 
A
si
de

 a
s 
Be

rk
el
ey
 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

A
pp

ro
ve
s 
Cl
ar
em

on
t B

ra
nc
h 
Re

no
va
tio

n 
Co

nt
ra
ct
 W

ith
 N
o 
Q
ue

st
io
ns
 A
ns
w
er
ed

, N
o 

D
is
cu
ss
io
n.
  B
y 
Pe

te
r W

ar
fie

ld
 

ht
tp
:/
/w

w
w
.b
er
ke
le
yd
ai
ly
pl
an
et
.c
om

/i
ss
ue

/2
01

1‐
03

‐
30

/a
rt
ic
le
/3
76

03
?h
ea
dl
in
e=
Pu

bl
ic
‐C
on

ce
rn
s‐
Br
us
he

d‐
A
si
de

‐a
s‐

Be
rk
el
ey
‐C
ity

‐C
ou

nc
il‐
A
pp

ro
ve
s‐
Cl
ar
em

on
t‐
Br
an
ch
‐R
en

ov
at
io
n‐

Co
nt
ra
ct
‐W

ith
‐N
o‐
Q
ue

st
io
ns
‐A
ns
w
er
ed

‐N
o‐
D
is
cu
ss
io
n 
 

04
/0
6/
20

11
 
Be

rk
el
ey
 D
ai
ly
 P
la
ne

t 
Sp
ec
ia
l M

ee
tin

g 
A
bo

ut
 th

e 
Br
an
ch
 L
ib
ra
ry
 

Pr
oj
ec
ts
 

 

ht
tp
:/
/w

w
w
.b
er
ke
le
yd
ai
ly
pl
an
et
.c
om

/i
ss
ue

/2
01

1‐
04

‐
06

/a
rt
ic
le
/3
76

33
?h
ea
dl
in
e=
Sp
ec
ia
l‐M

ee
tin

g‐
A
bo

ut
‐t
he

‐B
ra
nc
h‐

Li
br
ar
y‐
Pr
oj
ec
ts
  

 


	2011_04_13 Agenda BOLT v9
	2011_04_13 Biennial Budget Adoption v3
	Budget Attachment 1
	Rev

	Budget Attachment 2
	Exp
	rvn
	per
	noper
	301
	Othr
	306
	308

	Budget Attachment 3
	Budget Attachment 4
	Budget Attachment 5
	Budget Attachment 6
	Budget Attachment 7
	Budget Attachment 8
	Budget Attachment 9
	Prop Org Chart FY12
	Budget Attachment 11
	schd

	Budget Attachment 12
	pos
	div

	Budget Attachment 13
	2011_03_09 BOLT Minutes  v3
	2011_03_09 BOLT Minutes Attachment 1
	2011_03_09 BOLT Minutes Attachment 2
	2011_03_09 BOLT Minutes Attachment 2A
	2011_03_09 BOLT Minutes Attachment 2B
	2011_03_09 BOLT Minutes Attachment 2C
	2011_03_09 BOLT Minutes Attachment 2D
	2011_03_09 BOLT Minutes Attachment 2E
	2011_03_09 BOLT Minutes Attachment 2F
	2011_03_09 BOLT Minutes Attachment 2G
	2011_03_09 BOLT Minutes Attachment 2H
	2011_03_09 BOLT Minutes Attachment 2I
	2011_03_09 BOLT Minutes Attachment 2J
	2011_03_09 BOLT Minutes Attachment 3
	2011_03_17 BOLT Minutes v1
	2011_04_13 Grants and Gifts Report v2
	2011_04_13 Public Copier Services v1
	2011_04_13 Consent Staff Circ v1
	Circ policy staff use
	2011_04_13 Consent Staff Circ v1
	Library Page 1021 (F)
	Lib Aide DA JS
	Lib Asst JS
	2011_04_13 BOLT Trustee Applicant Map
	2011_04_13 contract BHM construction for North v6
	BPL North - Bid Tabulation 033111 KCEM
	2011_04_13 BOLT Trustee Appointment Report v1
	2011_04_13 brch bond report v3
	2011_04_13 Directors report v1
	2011_04_13 Library Events List
	ADPA3CC.tmp
	RECOMMENDATION




